PN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Agenda

www.oxford.gov.uk

City Executive Board

Date: Thursday 15 October 2015

Time: 5.00 pm

Place: Long Room - Town Hall

For any further information please contact:

Catherine Phythian, Committee and Member Services Officer
Telephone: 01865 252402

Email: executiveboard@oxford.gov.uk

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the
Contact Officer know how you wish to do this before the start of the meeting.



City Executive Board

Membership
Chair
Councillor Bob Price Corporate Strategy and Economic
Development
Councillor Ed Turner Finance, Corporate Asset
Management and Public Health
Councillor Susan Brown Customer Services and Corporate
Services
Councillor Alex Hollingsworth Planning, Transport and Regulatory
Service
Councillor Pat Kennedy Young People, Schools and Skills
Councillor Mark Lygo Leisure, Sports and Events
Councillor Mike Rowley Housing
Councillor Christine Simm Culture and Communities
Councillor Dee Sinclair Crime, Community Safety and
Licensing
Councillor John Tanner Climate Change and Cleaner,
Greener Oxford

The quorum for this meeting is three, substitutes are not allowed.

Future items to be discussed by the City Executive Board can be found on the Forward Plan which is
available on the Council’'s website

HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no
longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum requirements.
Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services,
St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library

A copy of the agenda may be:-

- Viewed on our website — mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk

- Downloaded from our website

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk




AGENDA

PART ONE
PUBLIC BUSINESS

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

PUBLIC QUESTIONS

When the Chair agrees, the public can ask questions about any item for
decision at the meeting for up to 15 minutes. Questions must have been
given to the Head of Law and Governance by 9.30am one clear working day
before the meeting (email executiveboard@oxford.gov.uk or telephone the
person named as staff contact). No supplementary questions or questioning
will be permitted. Questions by the public will be taken as read and, when
the Chair agrees, be responded to at the meeting.

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORTS

The following scrutiny committee / panel reports are expected to be
submitted to this meeting and will be published in a supplementary agenda.
4a: Report of the Scrutiny PSPO Panel on the City Centre PSPO

4b: Report of the Scrutiny Committee on Community Centre Leases

4c: Report of the Scrutiny Inequality Panel - Combatting inequality: Is Oxford
City Council doing all it can to make Oxford a fairer, more equal place?

4d: Report of the Scrutiny Committee on the Financial Inclusion Strategy
4e: Report of the Scrutiny Housing Panel on HMO Licensing

4f. Report of the Scrutiny Housing Panel on the fitting of solar panels on
council-owned housing stock

COUNCILLOR ADDRESSES ON ANY ITEM FOR DECISION ON
THE BOARD'S AGENDA

City Councillors may, where the Chair agrees, address the Board on an item
for decision on the agenda (other than on the minutes). The member seeking
to make an address must notify the Head of Law and Governance by no later
than 9.30am at least one clear working day before the meeting. An address
may last for no more than three minutes. If an address is made, the Board
member who has political responsibility for the item for decision may respond
or the Board will have regard to the points raised in reaching its decision.

COUNCILLOR ADDRESSES ON NEIGHBOURHOOD ISSUES
10 minutes of the meeting is available for any Councillor to raise local issues

Pages



on behalf of communities directly with the Board. Priority will be given to
those who have not already attended within the year and in the order
received. Issues can only be raised once unless otherwise agreed by the
Board. The Board’s responsibility will be to hear the issue and respond at the
meeting, if possible, or arrange a written response within 10 working days.

CITY CENTRE PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER (PSPO)

Lead Member: Councillor Dee Sinclair, Executive Board Member for Crime,
Community Safety and Licensing

The Executive Director Community Services has submitted a report which
provides details of the consultation regarding a Public Spaces Protection
Order for the city centre, and seeks approval of a draft Order.

Officer Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Agree to make a Public Spaces Protection Order under S 59 of the Anti-
Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 9 ‘the Act’) on the terms
set out at Appendix One, for the area of the city centre shown on the map
at Paragraph 28 for the duration of three years from a date to be
determined by the Executive Director Community Services by reference
to the installation of adequate public signage and statutory notifications in
accordance with the Act.

PROPOSED LEASE AND MONITORING ARRANGEMENTS FOR
COMMUNITY CENTRES

Lead Member: Councillor Christine Simm, Executive Board Member for
Culture & Communities

The Head of Community Services has submitted a report which proposes a
framework for the determination of leases in respect of city council owned
community centres occupied and operated by community associations.

Officer Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. AGREE that for community centres that currently have a licence to
occupy a notice to quit be served in respect of that licence along with a
proposed replacement lease on the terms broadly set out in paragraph 8
of this report.

FINANCIAL INCLUSION STRATEGY (FIS) - ACTION PLAN
UPDATE

Lead Member: Councillor Susan Brown, Executive Board Member for
Customer Services and Corporate Services

The Executive Director of Organisational Development & Corporate Services
has submitted a report details the progress with delivery of the Financial
Inclusion Strategy Action Plan and seeks agreement to an update of the
Action Plan.

Officer Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Approve the updated Financial Inclusion Strategy Action Plan as set out
at Appendix 2; and
2. Delegate authority to the Executive Director, Organisational Development

13 - 60

61 -68

69 - 86



10

11

12

and Corporate Services, in consultation with the Executive Member for
Customer and Corporate Services, to further update the Action Plan as
necessary.

CHANGES TO CHARGING FOR PLANNING AND LISTED
BUILDING PRE-APPLICATION ADVICE AND BUILDING CONTROL
APPLICATION FEES

Lead Member: Councillor Alex Hollingsworth, Executive Board Member for
Planning, Transport and Regulatory Services

The Planning and Regulatory Service Manager has submitted a report which
proposes to increase the level of fees for pre-application planning advice, and
to introduce charges for pre-application advice for listed buildings and
householder developments.

Officer Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Approve the proposed increase in the level of fees for pre-application
planning advice, and the proposed introduction of charges for pre-
application advice in respect of listed buildings and householder
developments, effective from 1 November 2015.

ARRANGEMENTS TO FACILITATE THE FITTING OF SOLAR
PANELS ON COUNCIL-OWNED HOUSING STOCK

Lead Member: Councillor Mike Rowley, Executive Board Member for
Housing

The Head of Housing and Property has submitted a report which outlines
proposals to facilitate the fitting of solar panels on Council-owned housing
stock in such a way that it reduces the demands on the HRA capital
programme.

Officer Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Grant project approval to fit solar panels on Council-owned housing
stock in the manner described in this report;

2. Delegate authority to the Chief Executive, in conjunction with the
Head of Finance, to enter into an Agreement to Lease with the Low
Carbon Hub IPS (on the basis that this would permit leases to the roof
space of individual Council properties to be drawn up and executed if
required) plus any ancillary agreement required; and to submit an
appropriate VEAT notice to the EU; and

3. Agree that on the basis of the matters set out in this report, the proposed
arrangement with the Low Carbon Hub IPS represents best value to the
Council.

REVIEW OF ADDITIONAL LICENSING SCHEME FOR HOUSES IN
MULTIPLE OCCUPATION (HMOS) IN OXFORD.

Lead Member: Councillor Bob Price, Executive Board Member for Corporate
Strategy and Economic Development

The Executive Director, Regeneration and Housing has submitted a report
which provides the results from the consultation carried out for the HMO

87 - 96

97 - 106

107 - 350



13

Licensing Scheme and seeks approval to designate the whole of the City as
subject to additional licensing under section 56(1) (a) of the Housing Act
2004 in relation to the size and type of HMO specified in the
recommendations of this report for 5 years commencing the 25 January
2016.

Officer Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Note the report of the Consultation of Licensing of Houses in Multiple
Occupation 2015 and its findings attached at Appendix 1.

2. Agree that having considered the report of the consultation, which
shows that a significant proportion of HMOs in the City are being
managed ineffectively, an additional licensing scheme is required for
a further 5 years.

3. Agree to designate the whole of the City as subject to additional
licensing under section 56(1)(a) of the Housing Act 2004 for all three
storey Houses in Multiple Occupation that contain three or four
occupiers and all two storey Houses in Multiple Occupation that
contain five or more occupiers with the designation coming into force
on 25 January 2016 for a period of 5 years.

4, Agree to designate the whole of the City as subject to additional
licensing under section 56(1)(a) of the Housing Act 2004 in relation to
all two storey or single storey Houses in Multiple Occupation that
contain three or four occupiers and all self-contained flats that are
Houses in Multiple Occupation, irrespective of the number of storeys,
but, so far as concerns section 257, Houses in Multiple Occupation,
limit the designation to those that are mainly or wholly tenanted,
Including those with resident landlords. This second designation will
come into force on the 31 January 2017 and will last for 4 years.

5. Recommend Council to resolve to adopt the proposed fees and
charges structure attached at Appendix 2.

6. Recommend Council to resolve to adopt the eligibility criteria for the
new scheme as attached at Appendix 3.

OXPENS DELIVERY STRATEGY

Lead Member: Councillor Bob Price, Executive Board Member for Corporate
Strategy and Economic Development

The Executive Director Regeneration and Housing has submitted a report
which provides an update and seeks approval for an amendment to the
Oxpens Delivery Strategy and budgetary adjustments.

Officer Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Note the contents of this report;

2. Delegate to the Executive Director Regeneration and Housing authority
to agree terms for the acquisition of land at Oxpens (in consultation with
the Chief Executive, s151 Officer and Monitoring Officer) subject to
Council agreeing the recommendation set out at number 4 below;

3. Approve the creation of a wholly owned investment vehicle and the
commencement of a competitive exercise to secure a joint venture
partner to become a Member of such a vehicle; and

351 - 358



14

15

16

17

18

4. Recommend Council to resolve to approve the establishment of a
capital budget of £8.4m to progress the project through the next stages.

ITEMS RAISED BY BOARD MEMBERS

MINUTES
Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2015.

Recommendation: The City Executive Board NOTES the minutes of the
meeting held on 10 September 2015 as a true and accurate record.

MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION

If the Board wishes to exclude the press and the public from the meeting
during consideration of any of the items on the exempt from publication part
of the agenda, it will be necessary for the Board to pass a resolution in
accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 21(1)(b) of the Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations
2000 on the grounds that their presence could involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as described in specific paragraphs of Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972.

The Board may maintain the exemption if and so long as, in all the
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

PART TWO
MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION

CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX: COMMUNITY CENTRES

This is exempt from publication by virtue of Paragraph 5, Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 for the following reasons:

. information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege
could be maintained in legal proceedings

CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX: OXPENS DELIVERY STRATEGY

This is exempt from publication by virtue of Paragraph 3, Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 for the following reasons:

. Commercial affairs of the Council.

359 - 370

371-372

373 - 376



DECLARING INTERESTS
General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses);
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licences for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies;
and securities. These declarations must be recorded in each councillor's Register of Interests which
is publicly available on the Council’s website.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must
declare that you have an interest. You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of
the interest.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter
is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself’ and that “you must not place yourself
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”. What this means is that the
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should
continue to be paid to the perception of the public.

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself
but also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife or
as if they were civil partners.















Agenda Item 7

=
S
E| 299
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
To: City Executive Board
Date: 150ctober 2015
Report of: Executive Director Community Services

Title of Report: City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO)

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report: To report on the consultation regarding a Public Spaces
Protection Order for the city centre, and to seek approval of a draft Order.

Key Decision: Yes

Executive lead member: Councillor Dee Sinclair, Board Member Crime,
Community Safety and Licensing

Policy Framework: Corporate Plan priorities — Strong, Active Communities;
Cleaner, Greener Oxford

Recommendations:That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Agree to make a Public Spaces Protection Order under S 59 of the Anti-
Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 9 ‘the Act’) on the terms
set out at Appendix One, for the area of the city centre shown on the map
at Paragraph 28 for the duration of three years from a date to be
determined by the Executive Director Community Services by reference
to the installation of adequate public signage and statutory notifications in
accordance with the Act.

Appendix 1: Draft PSPO

Appendix 2: Data tables

Appendix 3: eConsult consultation results
Appendix 4: Crisis Skylight email and signatory list
Appendix 5: Consultation engagement methods
Appendix 6: Risk Assessment

Appendix 7: Equality Impact Assessment

13



Introduction to Public Spaces Protection Order

1.

The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (‘the Act’) gained Royal
Assent in April 2014. The Public Spaces Protection Order provision has been in
operation since 20th October 2014.The Act isdesigned to put victims at the heart
of the response to anti-social behaviour, and give professionals the flexibility
they need to deal with any given situation.

Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs)are intended to provide means of
preventing individuals or groups committing anti-social behaviour in a public
space where the behaviour is having, or likely to have, a detrimental effect on
the quality of life of those in the locality; be persistent or continuing in nature; and
be unreasonable.

PSPOs also create a framework that either replaces or updates existing public
space restrictions such as alcohol Designated Public Place Orders and Dog
Control Orders and permits local authorities to introduce new regulations.

The power to make an Order rests with local authorities, in consultation with the
police and other relevant bodies who may be affected.

A local authority can make a PSPO in respect of any public space within its
administrative boundary. The definition of public space is wide and includes any
place to which the public or any section of the public has access, on payment or
otherwise, as of right or by virtue of express or implied permission.

A PSPO can be in force for any period up to a maximum ofthree years.

Appeals against a draft PSPO can be madein the High Court within six weeks of
issue by anyone who lives in, or regularly works in or visits the area. Further
appeal can be made if a PSPO is varied by alocal authority.

Section 59 of the Act sets out the basis on which local authorities may make a
PSPO. It provides as follows -

(1) A local authority may make a public spaces protection order if satisfied on
reasonable grounds that two conditions are met.

(2) The first condition is that—
(a) activities carried on in a public place within the authority's area have
had a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or
(b) it is likely that activities will be carried on in a public place within that
area and that they will have such an effect.

(3) The second condition is that the effect, or likely effect, of the activities—
(a) is, oris likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature,
(b) is, oris likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable, and
(c) justifies the restrictions imposed by the notice.
(4) A public spaces protection order is an order that identifies the public place
referred to in subsection (2) (“the restricted area”)and—

14



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

(a) prohibits specified things being done in the restricted area,

(b) requires specified things to be done by persons carrying on specified
activities in that area, or

(c) does both of those things.

(5) The only prohibitions or requirements that may be imposed are ones thatare
reasonable to impose in order—
(a) to prevent the detrimental effect referred to in subsection (2) from
continuing, occurring or recurring, or
(b) to reduce that detrimental effect or to reduce the risk of its continuance,
occurrence or recurrence.

(6) A prohibition or requirement may be framed—
(a) so as to apply to all persons, or only to persons in specified categories,
or to all persons except those in specified categories;
(b) so as to apply at all times, or only at specified times, or at all times
except those specified;
(c) so as to apply in all circumstances, or only in specified circumstances,
or in all circumstances except those specified.

(7) A public spaces protection order must—
(a) identify the activities referred to in subsection (2);
(b) explain the effect of section 63 (where it applies) and section 67;
(c) specify the period for which the order has effect.

(8) A public spaces protection order must be published in accordance with
regulations made by the Secretary of State.

The restrictions and requirements included ina PSPOmay be comprehensive or
targetedon specific behaviours by particular groups and/or at specified times.

Orders can be enforced by a police officer, a police community support officer,
designated council officers and employees of otherdelegated organisations. The
council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Policy section 4.3 describes the council’s
approach to enforcementand states that all cases will be addressed firmly, fairly
and proportionately. The policy goes onto say that we will always seek to
resolve cases at the lowest level of intervention, taking formal action when the
ASB is serious or persistent or when it threatens people’s safety or health.

The policy is available on the council’'s website.

A breach of the PSPO can be dealt with through the issuingof a Fixed Penalty
Notice of up to £100, or a level 3 fine of up to £1000 on prosecution.

In establishing a PSPO, appropriate signage must be displayed in accordance
with the requirements of the Act.

The Authority is also bound by the terms of the Human Rights Act 1998 and
must not act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. Human

15



rights are enforced through existing rights of review and may therefore be taken
as points in any challenge to the validity of any Order made by the Authority.

15. If Convention rights are engaged (as they are with the making of a PSPO) any
interference with them must be —

(a) In accordance with the law (in other words the Board must be satisfied that
the statutory conditions in S59 set out above are satisfied)

(b) In pursuit of a legitimate aim (in this instance the control of activities which,
if not controlled, would have a detrimental effect on the quality of life of
those in the locality) and

(c) A proportionate means of achieving the legitimate aim

16. The two issues which must therefore be addressed for every proposed restriction
in the PSPO are whether the statutory criteria are met and whether the
restrictions proposed are proportionate having regard to the legitimate aim of
preserving the quality of life for everyone who lives or works in or who visits the
city centre.

17. The Board must also have regard to the public sector equality duty at s149 of the
Equality Act 2010, which is as follows —

(1) A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the
need to:

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it; and

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

(2) A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions
must, in the exercise of those functions, have due regard to the matters
mentioned in (1) above.

(3) Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do
not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to:

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that
characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons
who do not share it; and

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by
such persons is disproportionately low.

18. The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation.

16



Overview of the City Centre

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Oxford’s population grew by 12% over the decade 2003-2013, making it the
eighth fastest growing English city. It has 155,000 residents and an additional
45,000 people live in adjacent urban areas. The city’s population is projected to
reach 165,000 by 2023.

Oxford has the seventh highest number of international visitors for any UK city.
An estimated nine million domestic and international visitors come to the city for
tourism each year.

Footfall statistics show an estimated 320,000 people per week access
Cornmarket Street, peaking between 11 a.m. and 4 p.m. with over 5,000 visitors
per hour. Figures for Queen Street show a total of 230,000 people per week,
with a similar pattern over 3,000 visitors per hour during peak times.

The Oxford city centre Police Inspector has provided an overview of the issues
his team faces in the city centre.

‘I have been a Police officer for Thames Valley Police for approximately 15 years
and | have worked in Oxford City for 7 of those years, first arriving in the City in
2007 as a neighbourhood Sergeant for the City Centre neighbourhood where |
was in post for approximately two and a half years. | returned to Oxford City
centre as the neighbourhood Inspector in 2013 and have remained in my
position for approximately 2 years.

My role on the neighbourhood has been to manage a team of officers whilst
working with partners and residents to problem solve the priorities that have
been identified by the local community.

Throughout my time as both a Sergeant and Inspector there have been a
number of areas that continue to be raised by the public that are having a
detrimental effect on the lives of those that live in and attend the area of Oxford
City Centre. These issues include begging, street drinking, graffiti, cycling on
pavements or in prohibited areas, dogs that are not on the leads, pedlars, and
buskers. Over the 7 years since | first started on the neighbourhood these
issues have been tackled using a variety of different tactics to both deal with the
behaviours/offences and the causes of the behaviours. In spite of all this work
these behaviours continue to be seen in the area and continue to be complained
about.

In spite of all this work these behaviours continue to be seen in the area and
continue to be complained about due to their having a detrimental impact on the
quality of life for those in Oxford City centre. The nature of these activities and
behaviours are unreasonable and are likely to continue in spite of the tactics
used to date. It is for this fact that | believe the restrictions contained within the
proposed PSPO are entirely justifiable.”

17



Consultation

27. A full programme of public consultation using the council’s eConsult
questionnaire began on Monday 9" February and concluded on the 31t March
2015. Engagement methods to encourage respondents included:

» Media coverage and press release

= Over 3000 letters sent to businesses, universities and residents within the
area of the order.

» Public consultation face-to-face on the street

» Representation at key forums

» Consultation with Thames Valley Police and the Police Crime
Commissioner’s office

28. The table in Appendix 2 illustrates the results of theeConsult consultation
received up to the closing date on the 31 March 2015 and for 26" March
2015.From the 26th March to the end of the consultation period, and beyond,
therewas significant media interest in the proposals generated by an on-line
petition. Responses to the eConsult questionnaireincreased by128%. 58% of
respondents stated they visited, lived or worked in, the city centre. A further
32% stated they live in Oxford but not in the city centre.

Map showing area to be covered b)! the proposed cit wgentrgﬁl?S_PO

% s B g o

i W ¢ g o
M, &

: . - ’g‘ i ‘t.b syt MR _:"g
. This map is fruly;__avai!ab!%frorg httpHwWw.openstreetmap.com.”
: . o B | AT

=

E-r,\-d:-;'--.
AT
e

o

29. Initial consultation with a cross party group of Members resulted in theproposed
prohibition on feeding pigeons, being withdrawn from the draft order. While

18



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

acknowledging the impact large flocks of pigeons in the city centre, it was felt
that there were more effective methods for controlling numbers.

Following the end of the consultation period a number of additional
representations were made to the Councilconcerning the proposal to include a
prohibition restriction people from sleeping on the streets when they have
accommodated. This proposal is also not being pursued within the draft Order
recommended by this report.

The Board should have regard to the entirety of the consultation responses set
out in Appendix 2.

CEB deferred consideration of a city centre PSPO at its meeting held on the 11"
June due to the submission, on the day of the meeting, of a detailed legal
opinion commissioned by the National Council for Civil Liberties. As the opinion
made a number of criticisms of the June report the opportunity has been taken to
address those criticisms by re-drafting sections of the report. This report differs
therefore from the report before CEB in June of this year.

The principal criticisms of the June CEB report made by the Liberty opinion
related to three matters. First, it was said that the statutory conditions which
must be satisfied before a PSPO can be adopted were not met by the previous
report. This report deals with that issue more clearly and comprehensively by
addressing the statutory criteria for each aspect of the proposed Order.
Second,that the report had not dealt adequately with the public sector equality
duty (S149 Equality Act 2010). This report also deals with that issue more
comprehensively and the equality impact assessment has been re-drafted and
expanded. Third, that there were legal flaws in specific prohibitions, namely
begging, remaining in a public toilet and busking. Whilst it is not accepted that
the previous prohibitions were incapable of being lawfully adopted, the
opportunity has been taken to amend the prohibitions in respect of begging and
busking such that the criticisms are no longer applicable. Remaining in a public
toilet without reasonable excuse is still a recommended prohibition and in the
view of the Council’s Solicitor the Board may lawfully adopt it.

The remainder of this report deals with each of the behavioural issues dealt with
by the draft Order, paying particular regard to whether the statutory conditions
are met, and if so, the proportionality of the proposed restrictions. The statutory
conditions are whether the activity has a detrimental effect on the quality of life of
those in the locality, and is persistent and unreasonable.

Begging

35.

36.

Between the 1st July 2014 and 15th June 2015 there were 89 reports of begging
made to the police in Oxford.There were 41 arrests or voluntary interviews for
begging under the Vagrancy Act 1824.

On the 30" October 2014 the police introduced a 48-hour dispersal authorisation
from George Street to Little Clarendon Street to deal with begging.

19



37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

eConsult survey results found that during the last 12 months, of the total
respondents:

* 81% had seen this issue in Oxford city centre

»  16% felt that the situation had got worse, 9% felt it had got better

» 40% had been affected by begging in the last 12 months

= 34% felt it should be included in a PSPO, 54% felt it shouldn’t

Published independent research from DrugScope, 2004: “Drug Misuse and
Begging” concludes that the majority of the funds raised through begging are
used to sustain a significant substance misuse habit, not for food or shelter.

This conclusionis supported by Oxford City Council’s independent research into
the effectiveness of the council’'s Kindness Can Kill campaign in 2012. The
research found that the majority of money from begging is used by drug users
and those addicted to alcohol to sustain their habits. Supported by local
homelessness organisations, the council and police, the campaign encouraged
members of the public not to give to people begging but to donate to local
homeless charities instead. The views of Crisis, are attached as Appendix Four,
who do not condone aggressive or threatening behaviour but, alongside a
number of charities who support the homeless, were concerned that persistent
begging was proposed within the order.

Freedom of Information figures from 34 of the 43 police forces in England and
Wales, obtained by the BBC in July 2015, suggest that less than one in five
beggars are in fact homeless.

Begging is illegal under the Vagrancy Act 1824 and enforced by the police by
way of arrest and summons to court. It is a recordable offence which allows the
court to impose community sentences. The PSPO provides an alternative to
arrest, through FPNs (£100) or a summons to court.

Conditions test for begging.

Condition 1: 89 reports of begging in a 12 month period to
Detrimental effect on those in | the police.
the locality 40% of people who responded to the survey

had been affected by the activity in the city
and 34% of people who responded to the
survey agreed that the activity should be
included in the PSPO.

National research shows that begging
primarily funds substance misuse.

Condition 2 (a) and (b): Patterns of recorded incidents to the police
Effect of the activities are occur throughout the year.

persistent and unreasonable Begging by nature is often persistent whether
through “location” or “mobile” begging as an
individual will rarely beg for money just once.
The effect of the activity of begging is
unreasonable to some members of the public
who feel intimidated or harassed by those

begging.

20



Condition 2 (c): justifies the The order provides a power to authorised
restrictions imposed by the officers to reduce or prevent aggressive
notice begging continuing, occurring or recurring.
The order will target aggressive begging,
including begging near cash machines or
when a person is made to feel intimidated or
harassed.

Proper use of public toilets

43. Significant health and safety issues are being raised with regard to substance
misuse, vandalism and sleeping in public toilets. The council are responsible for
the upkeep, maintenance and safe use of the facilities. Records from Oxford City
Council Street Scene Operatives show that between January and June 2015
there were 72 incidents relating to city centre toilets, including:

» On 15 occasions, a person was found drinking alcohol in the toilet or alcohol
containers werefound.

» On 26 occasions, one or more people were sleeping or occupying the toilet for
an extended period of time.

* On 9 occasions, a person was found using drugs in the toilet or drugs
paraphernalia was left in the toilet. There has been one death from a drug
overdose in the toilet in the time period. A further two overdoses occurred in
July.

» Other incidents include lighting fires and vandalism.

44, eConsult survey results found that during the last 12 months, of the total
respondents:
* 9% had seen this issue in Oxford city centre
» 4% felt that the situation had got worse, 1% felt it had got better
* 6% had been affected by the issue
=  33% felt it should be included in a PSPO, 48% felt it shouldn’t

45. The data demonstrates how public facilities are being used for illicit purposes,
denying access to the public and costing a significant amount of money to clean
and maintain. Over the weekend of the 3" July a dispersal power was invoked
by the police in the area of one toilet block to deal with the anti-social behaviour
and substance misuse taking place.

46. Conditions test for proper use of public toilets.

Condition 1: 72 incidents of these activities in the first six

Detrimental effect on those in months of 2015.

the locality 33% of people who responded to the survey
agreed that the activity should be included in
the PSPO.

Council staff are put at risk when having to
remove people and drug-related
paraphernalia from the toilets.

Condition 2 (a) and (b): Patterns of recorded incidents to the council
Effect of the activities are occur throughout this year.

21



persistent and unreasonable

It is unreasonable to deny others access to
public facilities or leave drug paraphernalia in
the toilets. The facilities are used by families
and young children.

Condition 2 (c): justifies the
restrictions imposed by the
notice

The order provides a power to authorised
officers to reduce or prevent activities in toilets
that are continuing, occurring or recurring.
The order will target behaviours that are a risk
to the public accessing the facilities and the
perpetrator.

Urination and defecation in public spaces

47. Police data shows that between 15! August 2014 and 29" July 2015, there were
20 incidents of urinating or defecating in public in the city centre. This is very
likely to be below the actual number of occurrences due to the nature of the

offence.

48. eConsult survey results found that during the last 12 months, of the total

respondents:

» 32% seen this issue in Oxford city centre

» 10% felt that the situation had got worse, 1% felt it had got better
» 25% had been affected by the issue

58% felt it should be included in a PSPO, 29% felt it shouldn’t

49. Conditions test for urination and defecation in public spaces.

Condition 1:

the locality

Detrimental effect on those in

There were 20 incidents logged by the police.
58% of respondents felt that this activity
should be included in the PSPO, with 32%
having seen it take place.

Condition 2 (a) and (b):
Effect of the activities are

persistent and unreasonable

Business premises regularly have to clean up
their properties. It is unreasonable to urinate
or defecate in a public place.

Condition 2 (c): justifies the
restrictions imposed by the
notice

The order provides a power to authorised
officers to reduce or prevent urination or
defecation that are continuing, occurring or
recurring.

The order is proportionate in tackling the
public health risk of this activity.

Cycling prohibitions

50. Officers have witnessed the issue on a daily basis and ran an operation in 2014.
Over five days officers spoke to 320 people regarding cycling in the restricted
areas of Queen Street and Cornmarket Street.

51. In July 2015, officers conducted a two-hour operation in Queen St and
Cornmarket St and spoke to 51 people contravening the traffic order. Four

22




members of the public complimented officers on the action they were taking.

52. Footfall figures for the two streets put the number of people using the area at

over 3,000 per hour.

53. eConsult survey results found that during the last 12 months, of the total

respondents:

67% seen this issue in Oxford city centre

3% felt that the situation had got worse, 19% felt it had got better
41% had been affected by the issue

40% felt it should be included in a PSPO, 44% felt it shouldn’t

54. Conditions test for cycling in prohibited areas.

Busking and street entertainment

Condition 1:
Detrimental effect on those in
the locality

The Traffic Restriction Order was introduced
to reduce the risk of harm to the public and
cyclists during the peak hours of 10 a.m. to 6
p.m. Contravention of the order increases the
risk of accidents between pedestrians and
cyclists.

41% of respondents had been affected by the
issue, and 40% felt that this activity should be
included in the PSPO. 67% of respondents
have seen it take place.

Condition 2 (a) and (b):
Effect of the activities are
persistent and unreasonable

As evidenced by the operations, the activity
occurs many times each day. The increased
risk of harm to pedestrians and cyclist is
unreasonable.

Condition 2 (c): justifies the
restrictions imposed by the
notice

The order provides a power to authorised
officers to reduce or prevent cycling in
restricted areas that are continuing, occurring
or recurring.

The order is proportionate in supporting an
existing traffic restriction to prevent injury to
cyclists and pedestrians.

55. There are 501 complaints logged by the council between 2004 and 2014. The
seasonal profile shows complaints tend to begin in March and remain stable until
June. In July and August there is a peak in complaints to nearly double the June
levels. Between October and February the number of complaints remains low.

56.

In 2010 a dedicated email address was created to handle all noise complaints
reported to the council. To date 160 complaints have been sent to the email
address. However, busking complaints often come in by telephone and an
officer attends immediately, therefore they are not captured on the email system

or logged as a case.

23




57. eConsult survey results found that during the last 12 months, of the total
respondents:
» 54% seen this issue in Oxford city centre
»  11% felt that the situation had got worse, 4% felt it had got better
» 26% had been affected by the issue
= 32% felt it should be included in a PSPO, 53% felt it shouldn’t

58. Oxford has a Busking Code of Conduct that has been in operation for over a
decade. Discussions have taken place with interested parties who have worked
with York and Liverpool City Council’s to develop their Code of Conduct. The
York Code of Conduct describes the enforcement approach that the council will
take regarding nuisance buskers. The problems of obstruction of the highway
and noisy, invasive or repetitious music are identified within the Code.
Enforcement options in York’s are Community Protection Notices (including
seizure of equipment), Statutory Noise Abatement Notices (including the power
to seize equipment), a busking bye-law and Highways Act powers to deal with
obstruction. These enforcement options are available in Oxford, with the PSPO
fulfilling the purpose of the York byelaw.

59. Complaints relating to street entertainment are usually made when the Code of
Conduct has not been adhered to. The PSPO gives officers a tool to deal with
people who continually refuse to comply, and provides quicker respite to those
affected. Likewise, complaints about entertainers who are complying with the
Code of Conduct will not be taken forward, and an explanation given to the
complainant.

60. Conditions test for busking and street entertainment.

Condition 1: There is an average of 50 complaints per
Detrimental effect on those in | year, mainly relating to noise levels and
the locality obstruction. Complaints peak during the

summer months when footfall is highest.

11% of respondents felt the issue had got
worse, compared to 4% who felt it had
improved. 32% felt that this activity should be
included in the PSPO.

Condition 2 (a) and (b): Complaints commonly relate to intrusive noise
Effect of the activities are levels. Busking sites are often utilised
persistent and unreasonable throughout the day during the Easter and
Summer months. The effect of not adhering
to acode of conduct is unreasonable,
particularly on those who live or work in the

city centre.
Condition 2 (c): justifies the The order provides a power to authorised
restrictions imposed by the officers to reduce or prevent nuisance caused
notice by busking or street entertainment that are

continuing, occurring or recurring.

The order is proportionate for addressing
complaints of noise nuisance. Advice will
always be given as set out in a code of
conduct.

24



lllegal peddling

61.

62.

63.

There are 39 cases of illegal peddling on council systems since 2003. Pedlars
are required to ply their trade from town to town, moving between sales. Selling
goods from a static position requires a Street Trading Licence. Complaints from
businesses are mostly in regards to obstruction and the sale of goods in
competition with shops without paying for a street trading licence.

eConsult survey results found that during the last 12 months, of the total
respondents:

» 36% seen this issue in Oxford city centre

» 8% felt that the situation had got worse, 2% felt it had got better

*» 15% had been affected by the issue

» 37% felt it should be included in a PSPO, 32% felt it shouldn’t

Stall holders selling their goods who aren’t using a static pitch trade using a
pedlar’s licence. Officers witness stall holders trading most days during the
Easter, Christmas and summer periods, without a street trading consent. They
are not peddling but street trading without a licence. Existing street trading
powers are no deterrent, with illegal traders paying a nominal court fine and
returning to the location the following day.

64. Conditions test for peddling.

Condition 1: Complaints from
Detrimental effect on those in | 8% of respondents felt the issue had got
the locality worse, compared to 2% who felt it had

improved. 37% felt that this activity should be
included in the PSPO.

Condition 2 (a) and (b): Stall holders sell their goods in Oxford City
Effect of the activities are centre daily during the Christmas, Easter and
persistent and unreasonable summer periods, in contravention of street
trading and peddling legislation. The stalls
cause obstruction to the highway and trade
without the necessary consents.

Condition 2 (c): justifies the The order provides a power to authorised

restrictions imposed by the officers to reduce or prevent illegal street

notice trading that is continuing, occurring or
recurring.

The order is proportionate in giving immediate
respite through advice, warning and
enforcement. Advice will always be given as
set out in a code of conduct.

Alcohol consumption in a public place

65. Since 2004 Oxford City Council has a Designated Public Places Order (DPPO)

that enables a police officer to confiscate alcohol if they believe it is, or could, be
a contributing factor in public disorder. The Order covers the whole of Oxford

25



and has been successful in limiting anti-social behaviour linked to drinking in
public. The Act requires a DPPO to be replaced by a PSPO within three years of
their repeal in October 2014.

66. Between 1% August 2014 and 29" July 2015 there were 161 reports of street
drinking logged by the police in the Oxford Central Neighbourhood.

67. Alcohol is a key factor in violent crime. There were 249 violence and sexual
offences recorded by the police in the area of the proposed PSPO between
January and May 2015. Data is not available that shows whether the offences
are in a public place. However, police officers witness alcohol-related violence in
the city centre and have a dedicated operation to target these incidents:
Operation Nightsafe.

68. eConsult survey results found that during the last 12 months, of the total
respondents:

72% seen this issue in Oxford city centre

17% felt that the situation had got worse, 4% felt it had got better

43% had been affected by the issue

52% felt it should be included in a PSPO, 36% felt it shouldn’t

69. Conditions test for alcohol consumption in a public place.

Condition 1: There were 161 incidents of street drinking
Detrimental effect on those in reported to the police between 1% August
the locality 2014 and 29" July 2015

72% of respondents had seen the issue, with
43% affected by it.
52% felt that this activity should be included in

the PSPO.
Condition 2 (a) and (b): Police data indicates that street drinking is
Effect of the activities are persistent in nature and connected to violent
persistent and unreasonable crime and disorder.
Condition 2 (c): justifies the The order provides a power to authorised
restrictions imposed by the officers to reduce or prevent alcohol
notice consumption in a public place that is

continuing, occurring or recurring. The order
will be used where alcohol consumption in a
public place causes, or is likely to cause, anti-
social behaviour.

The order is proportionate by replacing the
existing Designated Public Places Order, as
required by the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014.

Dogs out of control

70. From 2013 to July 2015, 112 incidents of dog fouling in the city centre wards of
Carfax and Holywell have been recorded by Oxford City Council.

26



71. Since 2007 Oxford City Council has had Dog Control Orders. The Act requires
Dog Control Orders to be replaced by a PSPO within three years of their repeal

in October 2014.

72. eConsult survey results found that during the last 12 months, of the total

respondents:

39% seen this issue in Oxford city centre

14% felt that the situation had got worse, 3% felt it had got better
28% had been affected by the issue

55% felt it should be included in a PSPO, 28% felt it shouldn’t

73. Conditions test for dogs out of control.

Condition 1:
Detrimental effect on those in
the locality

There were 112 dog fouling incidents
recorded by Oxford City Council between
2013 and July 2015 in the city centre.

39% of respondents had seen the issue, with
14% feeling it had got worse.

55% felt that this activity should be included in
the PSPO.

Respondents views on conditions for the
control of dogs:

All dogs to be on a lead — Majority Agree

No more than 4 dogs to be walked by one
person - Majority Agree

Dog mess to be cleaned up by the person
walking the dog — Majority Strongly Agree

No dogs allowed in indoor/covered areas of
the City (medical exemptions) - Majority Agree

Condition 2 (a) and (b):
Effect of the activities are
persistent and unreasonable

There are no significant trends in dog control
issues, they occur throughout the year. The
risk to public health and the cost of cleaning
the pavements are unreasonable. Dogs not
kept under proper control in high footfall areas
with large numbers of vehicles passing can
cause a risk to the public.

Condition 2 (c): justifies the
restrictions imposed by the
notice

The order provides a power to authorised
officers to reduce or prevent the impact of
dogs that are not under the control of the
owner, which is continuing, occurring or
recurring.

Dogs not on a lead are not adequately under
control in a high footfall area with a large
number of buses and taxis using the roads
throughout the day and evening.

The order is proportionate by replacing the
existing Dog Control Orders, as required by
the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing
Act 2014.

27




Conclusion

74.

75.

76.

The evidence presented in the report and the views of the respondents
demonstrate that existing legal remedies are slow and inadequate. The draft
order targets nuisance behaviours that require a proportionate level of
involvement by local authorities and the police, and timely respite for the
complainant.

Enforcement of the order will be taken in accordance with the Council’'s ASB
Policy. The policy clearly sets out the approach that starts with advice and
explanation, prior to warnings and any enforcement action.

On consideration of the requirements of the Act, other relevant legislation, the
evidence and consultation the following anti-social behaviours areproposed to be
restricted in the draft PSPO, as set out in Appendix One:

Aggressive begging

Inappropriate use of public toilets

Urinating or defecating in public places

Cycling in Queen Street or Cornmarket Street outside permitted hours.
Busking or street entertainment that causes nuisance

lllegal street trading

Drinking alcohol in a public place

Control of dogs

Environmental

77.

No expected issues

Risks

78.

See Risk Assessment.

Financial Implications

79. The cost of implementing PSPOs will be funded through existing budgets.

Name and contact details of author:-

Name: Richard Adams
Job title: Environmental Protection Service Manager,
Communities Services
Tel: 01865 249811 e-mail: jadams@oxford.gov.uk

28



Appendix 1: Draft PSPO
OXFORD CITY COUNCIL
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014
PART 4, SECTION 59

PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER

Oxford City Council (the Council) in exercise of the power under section 59 of The
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the Act), being satisfied that the
conditions set out in section 59 of the Act have been met, makes the following order:

1 The Order applies to the public areas shown delineated by the black line on
the plan annexed to this Order (the Restricted Area):

a) No person shall aggressively beg. Aggressive begging includes begging near
a cash machine or begging in a manner perceived to be intimidation or
aggressive.

b) No person shall remain in a public toilet without reasonable excuse.

c) No person shall urinate or defecate in a public place. This includes the
doorway or alcove of any premises to which the public has access.

d) No person shall cycle within Queen Street or Cornmarket Street outside the
permitted cycling times of 6 p.m. to 10 a.m.

e) No person shall perform any type of street entertainment that causes a
nuisance to nearby premises or members of the public. This includes
obstructing the highway or shop entrances, or using street furniture including
public seats, lamp posts and railings.

f) No person trading as a pedlar shall:
e remain in any location for more than 10 minutes unless it is to make a
transaction
e locate themselves within 50 metres of their previous location
e return to any location already occupied in the last three hours
e obstruct the highway or shop entrances

g) No person shall refuse to stop drinking alcohol or hand over any containers
(sealed or unsealed) which are believed to contain alcohol, when required, to
do so by an authorised officer in order to prevent public nuisance or disorder.

h) Any person in charge of a dog within the restricted area shall be in breach of
this Order if he/she:

29



o fails to keep the dog on a lead and under physical control at all times
¢ is found to be in charge of more than four dogs whilst in a public place

¢ allows the dog to foul in a public place and then fails to remove the waste
and dispose of it in an appropriate receptacle

o allows the dog to enter any covered public space

The provisions of this order relating to the control of dogs shall not apply to
any person who is registered blind in accordance with section 29 of The
National Assistance Act 1948, to any person who is deaf and in charge of a
dog trained by Hearing Dogs for Deaf People and to any person suffering a
disability and in charge of a dog trained to assist with his/her mobility, manual
dexterity, physical coordination or ability to lift and carry everyday objects and
the said dog has been trained by a prescribed charity.

2 Any person who, without reasonable excuse, fails to comply with the
requirements of this Order commits an offence and shall be liable, on
summary conviction, to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

3 This Order shall come into forceon ........................... and remain in place
for a period of three years.

Dated 2015

30



SCHEDULE

iz .Y -?ﬁ i T A 1
3 1:'{ ﬂ.?w" o _,F p o "“11 (2=
B T = N Feg st
B S o = : ok
-3 B e ' - ; B0 g
.I L] ot i J-‘_p"l g +§
1 et ' L o
- p t\ s,
il - = v A b
4 i P %A
£ o5 i % 4.
&, o L i o y
[ ] o i ™, S
IR Ay ey
5 1.6- % it - 4
e - b l i i il M,
o e, i ¢
s I-"'_rr': "p“ ,,--*"-‘ ‘\T.\J'J“ ..H*"'
b = X ]
.!!':_ # 4 1?“"'”""9' i‘.- .E'. _'u_-)" "
oy % % ) % P Bty EL e
W "'d_ "L, LS .ﬂ,ﬁ' ]
AN ELT &N ! . & i D |
F 1 PR TR 5 & " E R .-.?m. L aru -:. %‘h }e"r o
AT -h:_d Pant: ‘: i ] " %_-. T E Y “rﬁ?.r_‘
AT €5 e B oghm L ' i A
1 e : L1 i ; & e .. oy g .f
w THN Bl T ¥erastar b i ;rng,-.-nr TR u..-. _‘::1_
”“"‘ﬂ;\.t }"‘.3{ A ki) nﬂ-w s e = e i
2 | R p it [GEllege E: "
e W s Bt B P iy T N
o f ool e lEe | e B L e :
3 2 i = -] " m‘ =5 ! 2 T ;
ALDNEAE i i 3 Ui - I 2
;i:; E .'. ey - i F-Q‘\- 19 .r~u|l-'= i e :" u'-_ f‘\f
p— S [T s o 4 g
] ) : i b i o e bl o gt For
MR = n g E Gt
i = b I b 4 g ey ]
. i
| " " X % .!"-:r. vl HW
4 A :? - ) b gy = o .
-1 b I-u.,.- rl fr ¥ [+ i 1
4 h‘ lF F¥ i d e L t“”"h“ qi: H|
..l,."y i F = 1y .j? % i ¥
{Ih.._, o : | vy | -’lj.. &
2P H"'-u,h g - o !
g 4 2 % s
4 P 1 = chaath 4 y J:Jt'“
. g 5 - s it e 5 e
L Nt g 0 Headn o
nTTIRE ! g
- | i, P % e
J " |'.-r.¢.-e1:-:'--1 W q 4 ‘E"-:'- } I' '-'?
i AT r Y ‘Af1ka e
B 5 S i % S, \ Sy
e a . = 1 o 3
. This map is freely avnliahqufrnrg http:HwWw.openstreetmap.com ~
] 5 S 1 . e
. o = = e, =18 P & 'i ;p‘*

CHALLENGING THE VALIDITY OF ORDERS

An interested person may apply to the High Court to question the validity of—
a) This Order, or

b) A future variation of this Order.

“‘Interested person” means an individual who lives in the restricted area or who
regularly works in or visits that area.

An appeal against this Order or a future variation of this Order may be made to the
High Court within six weeks from the date on which the order or variation is made, on
the grounds that:

a) Oxford City Council did not have power to make the order or variation, or to

include particular prohibitions or requirements imposed by the order (or by the
order as varied);

b) a requirement under Chapter 2 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Act 2014 was not complied with in relation to the order or variation.

31



32



Appendix Two: The eConsult consultation survey and results as at 31 March

2015

The table shows whether responses were for (Yes) or against (No) the inclusion of
each prohibition in the Order.

Behaviour Responses presented Responses received Increase
to the Member by the end of the in
Reference Group on consultation period, | responses

26/03/2015 31/03/2015
Persistent Yes 52%(154) Yes 34%(187) 33
Begging No 28%(84) No 54%(294) 210
Sleeping in Yes 51%(150) Yes 33%(180) 30
toilets No 23%(68) No 48%(264) 196
Urinating / Yes 75%(223) Yes 58%(317) 94
Defecating No 13%(39) No 29%(161) 122
Cycling Yes 56%(165) Yes 40%(221) 56
prohibitions No 30%(90) No 44%(238) 148
Sleeping on the Yes 46%(136) Yes 28%(152) 16
streets when No 36%(107) No 60%(330) 223

accommodated

Busking / Street Yes 49%(145) Yes 32%(176) 31
entertainment No 35%(103) No 53%(289) 186
Peddling Yes 55%(160) Yes 37%(201) 41
No 19%(56) No 34%(185) 129
Street Drinking Yes 73%(218) Yes 52%(285) 67
No 16%(47) No 36%(197) 150
Graffiti / Street Yes 56%(167) Yes 38%(210) 43
art No 31%(92) No 49%(268) 176
Pigeon feeding Yes 53%(159) Yes 43%(232) 73
No 28%(84) No 38%(212) 128
Dog Control Yes 70%(203) Yes 55%(292) 89
No 15%(45) No 28%(150) 105

33




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix Three: The eConsult consultation survey and results as at 31°t March
2015

Closing date: 31 March 2015.
Topography of respondents

I live in Oxford city centre 35% (240)

I live in Oxford, but not the city centre 32% (215)
| live outside Oxford 6% (44)

| work in Oxford city centre 22% (146)

| am a visitor to Oxford 3% (22)

Other 2% (11)

Consultation topics
1 Persistent begging

Oxford City Council and Thames Valley Police are working together to tackle
persistent begging, which is an offence under the Vagrancy Act 1824. Under the
Public Spaces Protection Order people persistently begging will be identified by a
multi-agency working group, warned about their behaviour and encouraged to
access the support available to them. If their behaviour continues they could be in
breach of the Order.

Have you seen people persistently begging in Oxford city centre in the last 12
months?

Yes 81% (444)

No 19% (102)

Has this got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 9% (48)

Worse 16% (88)

No change 53% (292)

Don't know 22% (119)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 40% (220)
No 60% (324)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public
Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 34% (187)

No 54% (294)

Don't Know 12% (67)

35



2 Sleeping in public toilets

Oxford City Council has identified that toilets are sometimes being used to sleep in
and other associated behaviour. This can prevent access to the facilities by the
public.

Have you seen people sleeping in public toilets in Oxford city centre in the last 12
months?

Yes 9% (47)

No 91% (501)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 1% (7)

Worse 4% (23)

No Change 15% (82)

Don't Know 79% (432)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 6% (31)
No 94% (514)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public
Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 33% (180)

No 48% (264)

Don't Know 19% (103)

3 Urinating or defecating in public places

The problem of people urinating or defecating in Oxford city centre has been
identified by partners as an issue that affects the public, public services and traders
alike.

Have you seen this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 32% (172)
No 68% (373)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 1% (6)

Worse 10% (53)

No Change 26% (143)

Don't Know 63% (341)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 25% (136)
No 75% (408)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public

Spaces Protection Order?
Yes 58% (317)

36



No 29% (161)
Don't Know 13% (69)

4 Cycling prohibitions

Oxford City Council fully supports cycling throughout the city. However, for public
safety reasons there are some roads with cycling prohibitions, and these prohibitions
are sometimes being ignored.

Have you seen this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 67% (365)
No 33% (180)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 3% (16)

Worse 19% (102)

No Change 48% (262)

Don't Know 31% (167)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 41% (222)
No 59% (321)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public
Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 40% (221)

No 44% (238)

Don't Know 16% (87)

5 Sleeping on the streets

Oxford City Council strongly supports agencies to help people who find themselves
sleeping on the city streets due to difficult circumstances. However, a small number
of people who have been provided with support and accommodation choose to
continue to sleep on the streets, putting their health and well-being at risk. These
people are identified by a multi-agency working group, are encouraged to access the
support available to them and could be warned about their behaviour.

Have you seen this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 80% (432)
No 20% (109)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 5% (25)

Worse 22% (120)

No Change 40% (219)

Don't Know 33% (181)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford City Centre in the last twelve
months?

37



Yes 29% (160)
No 71% (383)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public
Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 28% (152)

No 60% (330)

Don't Know 12% (66)

6 Non-compliant busking and street entertainment

Oxford City Council encourages safe busking and street entertainment in Oxford city
centre. A voluntary code of practice has been developed over a number of years to
support this aim for the benefit of the public and the entertainers. The code of
practice covers noise levels, length of time in one place, authorised locations, size of
pitch area and the authorised period of entertainment. The code of

practice is available on the City Council's website. However, some entertainers do
not comply with the code resulting in unfair and sometimes unsafe practices.

Have you seen this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 54% (296)
No 46% (248)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 4% (21)

Worse 11% (60)

No Change 43% (234)

Don't Know 42% (227)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 26% (137)
No 74% (398)

Should the busking and street entertainment code of practice be regulated through
the Public Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 32% (176)

No 53% (289)

Don't Know 14% (77)

Should the Public Spaces Protection Order regulate behaviour(s) that are not
covered by the busking and street entertainment code of practice?

Yes (please comment) 13% (72)

No 51% (277)

Don't Know 36% (194)

7 lllegal peddling
Oxford City Council supports legal peddling in accordance with the Pedlars Act 1871.

There is a code of practice available on the City Council's website that identifies what
peddling is and how it should be conducted in order to comply with the law.

38



However, there are certain people who do not comply and therefore unfairly
disadvantage others within the city centre.

Have you seen this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 36% (193)
No 64% (349)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 2% (12)

Worse 8% (46)

No Change 31% (167)

Don't Know 58% (317)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 15% (83)
No 85% (455)

Should the peddling code of practice be regulated through the Public Spaces
Protection Order?

Yes 37% (201)

No 34% (185)

Don't Know 28% (153)

Should the Public Spaces Protection Order regulate behaviour(s) that are not
covered by the peddling code of practice?

Yes (please comment) 14% (74)

No 41% (221)

Don't Know 46% (248)

8 Street drinking

Oxford City Council currently has a Designated Public Protection Order in place for
the whole city with regard to anti-social behaviour associated with street drinking.
The order doesn’t stop street drinking but does deal with the associated anti-social
behaviour. The new Act requires current Designated Public Protection Orders to be
replaced by Public Spaces Protection Orders.

Have you seen anti-social behaviour associated with alcohol consumption in Oxford
city centre in the last 12 months?

Yes 72% (393)

No 28% (150)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 4% (20)

Worse 17% (93)

No Change 52% (280)

Don't Know 27% (148)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 43% (235)

39



No 57% (307)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public
Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 52% (285)

No 36% (197)

Don't Know 12% (65)

9 Graffiti and pavement drawings

Graffiti is defined as a criminal damage offence. Drawing directly onto pavements is
also an offence. Oxford City Council is working closely with its partners to clean up
and prevent graffiti. However it encourages responsible street art that is not placed
directly onto structures or highways.

Have you seen this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 69% (374)
No 31% (171)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford City Centre in the last twelve months?
Better 5% (29)

Worse 16% (88)

No Change 49% (263)

Don't Know 30% (160)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 26% (143)
No 74% (399)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public
Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 38% (210)

No 49% (268)

Don't Know 13% (69)

10 Pigeon feeding

Pigeon feeding is littering and encourages an overpopulation of pigeons within the
city centre. The food not eaten encourages vermin such as rats and the pigeons
cause significant damage to properties within the city. Certain areas of the city
require the presence of a hawk to try and reduce the impact of the large population
of pigeons in their area.

Have you seen pigeon feeding in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 36% (196)
No 64% (347)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?

Better 3% (15)
Worse 8% (43)

40



No Change 39% (209)
Don't Know 50% (270)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 21% (111)
No 79% (428)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public
Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 43% (232)

No 39% (212)

Don't Know 19% (101)

11 Out of control dogs

Dog control orders are being phased out and where necessary are being replaced by
Public Spaces Protection Orders. Out of control dogs and dog mess are issues that
Oxford City Council believes should be controlled within the City centre.

Have you seen this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 39% (209)
No 61% (330)

Has the issue got better or worse in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Better 3% (18)

Worse 14% (76)

No Change 38% (205)

Don't Know 45% (241)

Have you been affected by this issue in Oxford city centre in the last 12 months?
Yes 28% (152)
No 72% (384)

Should Oxford City Council seek to prohibit this activity through a City Centre Public
Spaces Protection Order?

Yes 55% (292)

No 28% (150)

Don't Know 17% (91)

To what extent do you agree with the following proposals?

e All dogs to be on a lead — Majority Agree
No more than 4 dogs to be walked by one person - Majority Agree

¢ Dog mess to be cleaned up by the person walking the dog — Majority Strongly
agree

e No dogs allowed in indoor/covered areas of the City (medical exemptions -
Majority Agree

41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix Four: Crisis Skylight email and signatory list
“Dear Sirs

We are responding to this consultation as a group of organisations and individuals
who work with homeless people or are concerned about homelessness in Oxford.
We are sending this consultation response by email as we do not consider the tick
boxes given on the online questionnaire to be sufficient to give our considered view
on these important issues

Rough Sleeping

We are very concerned that, as part of the consultation on the new proposed Public
Spaces Protection Order, Oxford City Council appears to be considering banning or
further restricting rough sleeping. While we appreciate that no specific plans have
been announced, we believe that any such policy would be particularly ill thought out
and likely to be counter-productive.

We do appreciate that Oxford residents and businesses can experience problems
from rough sleeping in the city centre. It is also to be welcomed that the reasons the
council uses to defend their proposals include a commitment to outreach work and
an acknowledgement that, wherever possible, rough sleepers should be supported
into hostels and other services. However, we simply do not see how making rough
sleeping a criminal offence will contribute to the council’s aim of ‘reducing rough
sleeping to as near zero as we can achieve.’

We believe that any such ban or further restriction would be ill-conceived for the
following reasons:

¢ Moving rough sleepers out of the designated area with the threat of criminal
charges will only result in them moving to another location, which could
include moving out of sight and away from services. It will not help them to
resolve their homelessness, nor will it be a constructive way to encourage
them to engage with services.

¢ Imposing fines on rough sleepers which they have no possible way of paying
is an ultimately pointless exercise, and giving extremely vulnerable people a
criminal record could jeopardise their chances of recovery.

e ltis likely to antagonise a range of voluntary and statutory bodies which work
with rough sleeping and will damage their relationships with Oxford City
Council.

e The police and the council already have extensive powers to deal with any
criminal and anti-social behaviour by rough sleepers, so new legislation is
unnecessary.

We reject the notion that underpins this proposal and suggests that rough sleeping
and particularly vulnerability is in some instance a “life style” choice - which needs
enforcement action taken against it. We believe instead it is a situation which
requires society and statutory and voluntary agencies to actively work together to
engage the individuals involved as quickly as possible and then provide a holistic

43



package of support for as long as is necessary to help them out of homelessness
and back into society.

We do not believe that criminalising the act of rough sleeping has any benefits at all
for the individuals concerned, for the local community, for society at large or for any
other statutory or voluntary agency working to tackle rough sleeping and help the
individuals involved in Oxford.

‘Persistent’ begging

We are also concerned that, as part of the consultation on the new proposed Public
Spaces Protection Order, Oxford City Council appears to be considering banning or
further restricting begging.

We believe that such a ban on begging would be ill-conceived for the following
reasons:

e People who beg are some of the most vulnerable in our society and begging
is a sign of deeper rooted problems, including homelessness, mental health
and addiction problems.

o Though there is little evidence or research available on the people who beg,
we know that the majority sleep rough or live in hostels and night shelters.

¢ We do not condone aggressive or threatening behaviour. However, homeless
people are actually more likely to be the victims of violent crime than the
perpetrators — with homeless people 13 times more likely to be a victim of
violent crime than the general public.

We are also unclear as to why the focus is on “persistent” begging—as begging may
be persistent without being in any way aggressive or threatening. As with rough
sleeping, we believe that banning begging could criminalise vulnerable people, lead
to fines being levied which cannot be paid (except, perhaps, through further begging)
and displace vulnerable people away from services which can support them.
Ultimately, the solution lies in society and statutory and voluntary agencies to
actively working together to engage the individuals involved as quickly as possible
and then provide a holistic package of support for as long as is necessary to help
them until their issues have been addressed and they no longer turn to begging.

Signed

Organisations

Crisis, Crisis Skylight Oxford, Aspire Oxford, Emmaus Oxford, Affordable Oxford, On
Your Doorstep (Oxford University Students Union), The Gatehouse”

Subsequent additional organisations:

North Oxford Action Against Homelessness, The Big Issue Foundation, Homeless
Link, Oxford Homeless Pathways

44



Appendix Five: Consultation engagement methods
The Consultation involved:

Letters to all businesses within the city centre (over 3000 letters)

Letters to the Universities within the city centre

Letters to the residents in the city centre (as per businesses)

Public consultation on the street by city centre Ambassadors - to capture the

opinion of the transient population (tourists etc) using a 1000 business cards.

e Representation at key forums — NAGS, business meetings and resident
associations

¢ Media — Press release given to Oxford Malil in first week of March. This
release is a continuation of a number of PSPO press releases since the new
powers were released.
Social media —released on Twitter
Webpage — full details placed on the council website
Buskers and street entertainers- City centre Ambassadors and Community
Response Officers have approached a number of buskers.

¢ BBC Radio Oxford — ClIr Dee Sinclair (Board Member for Crime) took part in a
radio discussion programme about the PSPO.

¢ Discussions with Area Commander Thames Valley Police and the Police
Crime Commissioner’s office

e 1000 registered members of eConsult contacted

45



This page is intentionally left blank



LY

Appendix Six: City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order Risk Assessment

Risk description

Opp/ threat

Cause

Consequence

Date Raised

Owner

Current

Residual

Comments

Control description

Due date

Controls

Status

Progress %

Action Owner

City Centre Public Multi agency Lack of Financial cutbacks in Ineffective legislation and| 30th March 2015 Daryl Edmunds 4 2 2 2 Delegation of PSPO Ambassadors will be 11th June 2015 On-going Simon manton / Laure
Spaces Protection enforcement enforcement |police and council negative public feedback enforcement powers to |[trained by the ASB service Taylor
Order officers the City Centre to enforce in accordance
Ambassadors will with the Oxford City
ensure consistent Council's ASB
presence and Enforcement Policy
enforcement
City Centre Public Negative public Council Lack of clear Negative reputation of 30th March 2015 Daryl Edmunds 3 3 2 2 |Regular press briefings |Regular clear positive 11th June 2015 On-going Chafhomba Sithole /
Spaces Protection perception due to reputation |communication over the  |council will continue to be press briefings explaining Daryl Edmunds
Order negative press introduction and manged through the ethos of council
management of the PSPO council media office
City Centre Public Council reputation with Council Mismangement of Negative reputation of 30th March 2015 Daryl Edmunds 3 3 2 2 Enforcement policy is Strong management of 11th June 2015 On-going Daryl Edmunds /
Spaces Protection regard to zealous reputation |enforcement of the PSPO |council, wasted being written in line with |staff in accordance with Richard adams
Order enforcement and resources, failure of the ethos of Oxford City |Oxford City Councils ASB
targetting vulnerable prosecutions. Council Enforcement Policy
members of society

Page 31




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

Form to be used for the Full Equalities Impact Assessment

-

£ 2

=

% %

=

E A

% OXFORD

é CITY
COUNCIL

614

Service Area: Section: Date of Initial | Key Person responsible for | Date assessment commenced:

assessment: | assessment:
Community Community | 5™January Richard Adams 5" August 2015
Services Safety 2015
Name of Policy to be assessed: City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order
1. In what area are there concerns Race Disability Age
that the pol!cy could have a Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation
differential impact

Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership

Other strategic/ equalities
considerations

Safeguarding/ Welfare of
Children and vulnerable
adults

Mental Wellbeing/
Community Resilience

2. Background:

Give the background information to
the policy and the perceived
problems with the policy which are
the reason for the Impact
Assessment.

Oxford City Council is proposing to introduce a City Centre PSPO restricting a number of behaviours
within the city centre. A breach of the order is a criminal offence that can result in the offender being
reported to the court or the breach being discharged through a £100 Fixed Penalty Notice.

Restrictions on the proposed behaviours may have an impact on protected characteristics or other
strategic equalities considerations, in particular the safeguarding of children and vulnerable adults,
mental well-being and community resilience, and disability. The impact on all factors has been

considered.

Page 1 of 11




0S

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

The assessment makes due regard to whether implementation of the order will:

e Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited under
the Equalities Act;

¢ Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it;

o Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it.

3. Methodology and Sources of
Data:

The methods used to collect data and
what sources of data

Data used to identify the types of behaviours within the proposed PSPO has come from the City
Council and police databases. The datasets indicate the number of reports from members of the
public and officers who have witnessed the behaviours.

Use of the PSPO powers and advice given will be recorded in pocket note books and on council
databases. The information will be analysed to determine whether the implementation of the powers
has had a disproportionate effect upon the equality factors.

4. Consultation

This section should outline all the

consultation that has taken place on

the EIA. It should include the

following.

. Why you carried out the
consultation.

. Details about how you went

about it.

. A summary of the replies you
received from people you
consulted.

. An assessment of your

proposed policy (or policy
options) in the light of the
responses you received.

. A statement of what you plan

Implementation of a Public Spaces Protection Order requires public consultation as set out in the
Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014. The consultation methodology was approved by
the city council’s Public Involvement Board.

Consultation responses gave rise to concerns over:
» Begging
» Sleeping in toilets
» Drinking alcohol in a public place

Consultation responses did not raise concerns over:
Urinating or defecating in public places
Cycling in prohibited areas

Nuisance behaviours relating to noise

lllegal street trading

Graffiti

Control of dogs

Please refer to the consultation report at appendix two of the City Centre PSPO CEB report.

Page 2 of 11




1S

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

to do next

5. Assessment of Impact:

Provide details of the assessment of
the policy on the six primary equality
strands. There may have been other
groups or individuals that you
considered. Please also consider
whether the policy, strategy or
spending decisions could have an
impact on safeguarding and / or the
welfare of children and vulnerable
adults

Begging

A case management panel of officers from the police, city council and outreach team meet on a
monthly basis to discuss individuals who beg in the city centre. The support needs of each
individual are considered including their housing situation, physical and mental health needs. Their
offending behaviour is assessed and an appropriate plan put in place to move people off the streets
and into accommodation and support.

Where engagement with the large number of local support services fails, enforcement action may be
taken as determined by the panel. This approach balances the needs of the individual, principally
substance misuse, physical and mental health concerns, with the need to tackle anti-social
behaviour, respond effectively to complaints from the public and take action against illegal activities.

Research commissioned by the city council in 2012 supported the conclusion from other national
research that the majority of money from begging is spent on drugs and alcohol. Very little is spent
on shelter or food.

None of the people case managed by the panel has been, or is,a child. Any child identified would be
dealt with under the police and council’s safeguarding policies.

Race Disability
Negative

Mental health considerations

will be taken into account by

officers.

Age

Positive
Young people will be referred
into safeguarding mechanisms.

Neutral

Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation

Neutral Neutral Neutral
Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership
Neutral Neutral Neutral

Page 3 of 11




¢S

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

Inappropriate use of public toilets.

The common behaviours regarding the inappropriate use of public toilets fall into three categories:
drug misuse, alcohol misuse and sleeping or suspected sexual activity.

Public toilets within the city centre are designed as gender-neutral single toilet access or
male/female cubicles. The single toilet access blocks enable a person to lock themselves in the
toilet for long periods of time.

Drug users and alcoholics often have physical and mental health needs. Toilets provide facilities for
a drug user including clean water, adequate lighting, warmth and privacy.

City council cleansing staff regularly find discarded needles and alcohol containers in the toilets, and
have difficulty removing people who have locked themselves in.

Public toilets are not a suitable place for drug users and alcoholics to use to support their addictions.
They may fall unconscious or overdose. Clients have easy access to a wide range of support
services including GPs, rehabilitation and hostels with “wet” facilities, some within 200m of the toilet
block.

Race Disability Age

Neutral Positive Neutral
Disabled people will be able to
access clean toilets.

Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation
Neutral Neutral Neutral
Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership
Neutral Positive Neutral

Parents with infants can
access clean baby-changing
facilities.

Urinating or defecating in public places

Page 4 of 11




€a

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

Police data shows that the level of defecation in a public places happens relatively infrequently.
Urination is commonly linked to the consumption of alcohol, whether in the evening economy from
revellers leaving pubs and clubs, or people drinking alcohol in public areas.

Toilet facilities are available for any person with an equalities consideration, whether during the day
through the use of public toilets or cafés and restaurants, and during the evening with pubs and
clubs having to provide toilet facilities.

People with very complex mental or physical health issues may have reasonable excuse, a provision
built into the PSPO. This would be assessed on a case by case basis and the situation would be
very rare. Urination and defecation in a public place is a public health risk.

Race Disability Age
Neutral Neutral Neutral
Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation
Neutral Neutral Neutral
Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership
Neutral Neutral Neutral

Cycling in prohibited areas

This behaviour supports the existing traffic control order in Queen Street and Cornmarket Street.
Disability considerations would be made on a case by case basis as there is no evidence to suggest
disability would be affected by the order.

Race Disability Age
Neutral Neutral Neutral

Page 5 of 11



14°]

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation
Neutral Neutral Neutral
Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership
Neutral Neutral Neutral

Nuisance behaviours relating to noise

Noise nuisance in the city is caused by amplified or intrusive noise, including music and building
work. The PSPO takes an even handed approach towards music noise, supporting the Code of
Conduct that all buskers are expected to adhere to.

If there is a language barrier, the person has a disability or cannot read officers will engage with the
busker and explain the Code. If the Code is not adhered to officers will move the person onto the
next available pitch or require them to turn down their music. No-one under the age of 16 should
busk in the city centre without a parent or guardian. Children busking will be engaged with and the
appropriate adult spoken to.

Building works fall outside of the PSPO and are dealt with through the city council’s Environmental
Health Service.

Race Disability Age
Neutral Negative Positive
Lack of understanding of Code For under-16s officers will
of Conduct. speak to the parent or guardian
Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation
Neutral Neutral Neutral
Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership
Neutral Neutral Neutral

Page 6 of 11




GG

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

lllegal street trading
During peak holiday seasons the city centre experiences many traders pertaining to be pedlars, yet
are illegally street trading.

The PSPO takes an even handed approach towards peddling, supporting the Code of Conduct that
all pedlars are expected to adhere to. If there is a language barrier, the person has a disability or
cannot read officers will engage with the busker and explain the Code. If the Code is not adhered to
officers will warn them that they are in breach of the PSPO. Children under-18 will be engaged with
and the appropriate adult spoken to.

Race Disability Age

Neutral Neutral Positive
For under-18s officers will
speak to the parent or guardian

Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation
Neutral Neutral Neutral
Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership
Neutral Neutral Neutral

Drinking alcohol in a public place

It is currently an offence to drink alcohol in a public place in Oxford if asked by a police officer not to
do so. Incidents of street drinking take place during the evening economy period from revellers
leaving pubs and clubs, or people drinking alcohol in public areas during the day.

If necessary there is easy access to a wide range of support services including GPs, rehabilitation
and hostels with “wet” facilities. Safeguarding issues are dealt with through agencies estanlished
safeguarding practices and referrals into appropriate support agencies.

Anyone under-18 found drinking alcohol in committing an offence and the police will take appropriate

Page 7 of 11




9%

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

action in line with their safeguarding responsibilities.

Race Disability Age

Neutral Negative Positive
Mental health considerations Young people will be referred
will be taken into account by  into safeguarding mechanisms.

officers.
Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation
Neutral Neutral Neutral
Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership
Neutral Positive Neutral

Pregnant women will be
referred into safeguarding
mechanisms.

Control of dogs

The provisions of the PSPO relating to the control of dogs does not apply to any person who is
registered blind in accordance with section 29 of The National Assistance Act 1948, to any person
who is deaf and in charge of a dog trained by Hearing Dogs for Deaf People and to any person
suffering a disability and in charge of a dog trained to assist with his/her mobility, manual dexterity,
physical coordination or ability to lift and carry everyday objects and the said dog has been trained
by a prescribed charity.

The most common complaint relating to dogs is fouling of the footpath and the associated public
health risks. This is particularly difficult to control if the owner does not have the dog on a lead.

Any mental health considerations will be dealt with on a case by case basis.

Race Disability Age

Page 8 of 11




LS

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

Neutral Negative Neutral
Mental health considerations
will be taken into account by

officers.
Gender reassignment Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation
Neutral Neutral Neutral
Sex Pregnancy and Maternity Marriage & Civil Partnership
Neutral Neutral Neutral

6. Consideration of Measures:

This section should explain in detalil
all the consideration of alternative
approaches/mitigation of adverse
impact of the policy

Mitigations relating to each of the proposed behaviours are detailed in the preceding section.
Concerns relating to children are dealt with through each agency safeguarding policies and
procedures. Prohibitions on behaviours that affect clients with complex physical and mental needs
are mitigated through access to appropriate services, with trained staff skilled at dealing with the
needs of the client group.

All cases will be dealt with on their individual merits and the PSPO has written into it the test of
‘reasonable excuse”, providing an exemption from the order if the excuse for the behaviour is
reasonable.

Oxford City Council has a strong record of supporting people who are vulnerable and at risk of
becoming homeless. Through the No Second Night Out project, the council funds services that
assist individuals into appropriate accommodation and that work with homeless individuals to
access education, training and employment. The Council’s current financial investment in homeless
prevention totals £1.4m p.a.

Oxford is one of nine areas in the country that was selected to take part in the Making Every Adult
Matter (MEAM) project designed to improve outcomes and interventions for people with multiple
needs. Since August 2014 clients who are hard to engage, live chaotic lives and have a multitude of
support needs have been identified by services within the homelessness, mental health, substance
misuse and criminal justice services. Clients are ‘case conferenced’ in order to put sustainable

Page 9 of 11




89

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

support in place for each individual and enable him/her to receive the services and support that they
need to stabilise their lives.

The Tenants At Risk meeting is managed by the City Council and brings together agencies including
floating support services, housing associations and hostels. The meeting identifies individuals that
may be struggling with sustaining their tenancies and are at risk of being evicted. The aim is for
support agencies around the table to make sure relevant support is put in place for the individuals in
order to ensure they do not lose their tenancies and become homeless.

6a. Monitoring Arrangements:

Outline systems which will be put in
place to monitor for adverse impact in
the future and this should include all
relevant timetables. In addition it
could include a summary and
assessment of your monitoring,
making clear whether you found any
evidence of discrimination.

The multi-agency case management panel will continue to assess the use of all enforcement
actions, first taking into consideration the support needs of the individual.

Advice, warnings and enforcement of the PSPO will be logged in pocket notebooks and council and
police databases.

The City Centre PSPO will be referred to the scrutiny panel for monitoring purposes.

7. Date reported and signed off by
City Executive Board:

October 2015

8. Conclusions:

What are your conclusions drawn
from the results in terms of the policy
impact

The introduction of the city centre PSPO will impact on the lives of people who live, work and visit
the city. The proposed restrictions will impact positively on people whose protective characteristics
are impacted upon by the anti-social behaviour the order is designed to address. For example,
pregnant women and disabled people can be denied access to facilities they need. Young people in
breach of the order will be referred through safeguarding arrangements when appropriate. Mental
health considerations are assessed on a case by case basis and support and early intervention is
used prior to more serious enforcement action. This approach is detailed in Oxford City Council’s
Anti-Social Behaviour Policy, available on the council’s website.

Page 10 of 11




6S

Appendix 7: Oxford City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order — Equalities Impact Assessment

11. Date copy sent

. .. . to Equalities th
9. Are there implications 10. Date the Service - - 5" August
for the Service Plans? YES Plans will be updated November 2015 Ofﬂ??f in HR & 2015
Facilities
.13. Date reported to . 12. The date the
Scrutiny and Executive October 2015 14. Datg reportec! to City October 2015 report on EqlA will October
Executive Board: 2015

Board:

be published

Signed (completing officer)

ﬁ,z/%

Signed (Lead Officer)

Please list the team members and service areas that were involved in this process:

Jarlath Brine, Organisational Development & Learning Advisor
Richard Adams,Service Manager
Jeremy Thomas, Head of Legal Services

Page 11 of 11




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda lte

OXFORD
CITY

www.oxford.gov.u

To: City Executive Board
Date: 15 October 2015
Report of: Head of Community Services

Title of Report: Proposed Lease and monitoring arrangements for
community centres

COUNCIL

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report. To propose a framework for the determination of leases
in respect of city council owned community centres occupied and operated by
community associations.

Key decision? Yes
Executive lead member: Clir Christine Simm, Culture and Communities

Policy Framework: Asset Management Plan, Stronger
Communities

Recommendation(s): That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. AGREE that for community centres that currently have a licence to occupy
a notice to quit be served in respect of that licence along with a proposed
replacement lease on the terms broadly set out in paragraph 8 of this
report.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Lease Lengths and impact
Appendix 2 Confidential Appendix
Appendix 3 Risk Register

Current Position

1. There are currently 20 community centres operating in Oxford. By
December 2015 5 will be run in-house by the Council (including part of
Barton Neighbourhood Centre), 2 will be independently owned and run at
Northway and Cowley as they are rebuilt by Greensquare housing
association as part of the housing development. In addition 1 is leased by
Jericho Community Association from St Barnabus Church. The other 12
together with part of Barton Neighbourhood Centre have been run by
independent charitable bodies for a significant number of years. Each of
these 13 Community Associations has either a licence dating from the
mid-1980s, or is holding over on an expired lease.

2. Members have indicated that they prefer to remain involved in the

provision of community centres in the city in order to protect that provision
in terms of quality and location rather than simply carrying out an asset

61



transfer to third parties. On that basis it is likely that the council’s
involvement will continue through either the council operating centres or
providing effectively rent free, maintained premises for Community
Associations. By and large the council is content to enable the
Associations to have a free hand in how they operate the centre they
occupy. However, these premises are provided at a significant public
subsidy and it is right and proper that the council maintains a watching
brief on the performance of the association and some form of sanction if
that performance is unacceptable. It is how this oversight and sanction is
reflected in lease arrangements that has been at the heart of the inability
to reach a conclusion in the negotiation of lease terms.

The Council has been working with the associations and the Oxford
Federation of Community Associations (OFCA) since December 2011 to
update and clarify the situation in respect of the continued occupation of
the community centres. Itis in the interests of both parties to resolve this
to agree leases that have sufficient term that enables community
associations to bid for external funding and protect the interests of both
the associations and the council. This report proposes a way forward that
offers the potential to break the current impasse.

Proposals for new leases

4.

For some time the Council worked with the OFCA to identify a single form
of lease that could apply to all associations. The Council put forward a
proposal that met this objective but this was rejected by the Federation as
it meant some Associations compromising on their existing rights.
Recognising that a one size fits all approach would not be appropriate;
this report proposes separating the associations into two broad
categories.

The first group are those 5 that are currently holding over on a lease
which has protected status within the meaning of the 1954 Landlord and
Tenant Act. This means that the Associations are entitled to a new lease.
The terms of which will be worked through with each Association in
consultation with the Council Leader, the Executive Member and the local
Ward Councillors.

The second and larger group of Associations are those who currently
occupy their centre by way of a licence to occupy. Such licences give
little security and are not protected tenancies. The current licence gives
the ability to the council to terminate the agreement on 12 months notice
and the licence has no fixed term. They are therefore unattractive to the
Associations and are not now the Council’s preferred means of granting
occupation.

Officers advise that the council should take steps to avoid new protected
tenancies being formed therefore a new un- protected lease is proposed
for these Associations.

The nature of these leases would be:

62



a. A lease excluded from the protection provided under the
Landlord and Tenant Act 1954.

b. Include a rolling break, similar to that in the existing licence (with

no pre-conditions attached).

Be for a term of 25 years.

Be rent free.

e. With standard forfeiture (termination) provisions on tenant
default or insolvency.

oo

9. Such a lease would provide an appropriate level of security and comfort to
both the Council and Associations. It is recommended that the existing
licence arrangements are formally ended and a new lease is offered at the
same time.

10. Where there are concerns about the performance of an Association that
may lead to its lease being terminated for default (forfeiture) the dispute
resolution process mentioned above would be invoked. It is hoped
process will be agreed with the working group looking at the Community
Centre Strategy. That group includes Councillors, representatives of the
federation and the Oxfordshire Council for Voluntary Organisations.

Financial Implications
11. There are none arising directly from the implementation of this report.
The agreement of long leases should improve the ability of Associations

to attract charitable funding and where appropriate raise capital by other
means.

Risk

12. Arisk register is included at Appendix 3.

Climate change / environmental impact

13. There is no impact to this recommendation

Equalities impact

14. There are no equalities implications to this recommendation

Legal implications

15. The council will need to ensure notices are correctly served on the
Associations currently occupying under licence and that the correct

procedures are followed for these associations to ensure they do not
obtain security of tenure under their new leases.

Name and contact details of author:-
Name Mark Spriggs
Job title Strategic Community Centres Coordinator

63




Service Area / Department: Community Services
Tel: 01865 252822 e-mail: mspriggs@oxford.gov.uk

List of background papers: none

64




Appendix 1

Centre Current Impact
arrangement
1 | Asian Cultural | Licence Terminate licence. New un protected lease -25yrs term subject to
Centre rolling break as at present

2 | Barton (part) | Licence Terminate licence. New un protected lease -25yrs term subject to
rolling break as at present.

2 | Barton (part) | - OCC managed

3 | Bullingdon Lease New protected lease —25yrs, market rent covered by grant,
agreed performance measures. If not accepted continue to hold
over on existing terms.

4 | Blackbird Leys | - OCC managed

5 | Cowley To be managed by Greensquare

6 | Cutteslowe Licence Terminate licence. New un protected lease -25yrs term subject to
rolling break as at present.

7 | Donnington Licence Terminate licence. New un protected lease -25yrs term subject to
rolling break as at present

8 | EOCC - 0CC managed from 2"September

9 | Florence Park | Lease New protected lease —25yrs, market rent covered by
grant,agreed performance measures. If not accepted continue to
hold over on existing terms.

10 | Headington Lease New protected lease —25yrs, market rent covered by grant,
agreed performance measures. If not accepted continue to hold
over on existing terms.

11 | Jericho - Non-OCC

12 | Jubilee - OCC managed

13 | Littlemore Licence Terminate licence. New un protected lease -25yrs term subject to
rolling break as at present

14 | Northway - To be managed by Greensquare

15 | North Oxford | Licence Terminate licence. New un protected lease -25yrs term subject to
rolling break as at present

16 | Risinghurst Lease New protected lease — 25yrs, market rent covered by grant,
agreed performance measures. If not accepted continue to hold
over on existing terms.

17 | Rose Hill - OCC managed from December 2015

18 | Regal Licence Terminate licence. New un protected lease -25yrs term subject to
rolling break as at present

19 | South Oxford | Licence Terminate licence. New un protected lease -25yrs term subject to
rolling break as at present

20 | West Oxford Lease New protected lease —25yrs, market rent covered by

grant,agreed performance measures. If not accepted continue to
hold over on existing terms.

65




This page is intentionally left blank



L9

Appendix 3: Risk Register

Item | Description of Risk/ Assessment Degree of Risk | Consequence Strategy to Control
Opportunity (Cost, Time, Fitness for | Risk
Purpose)
LO | CR |RRN
1 Failure of all/ some 3 2 6 High T The report proposes
Associations to sign leases a clear approach for
dealing with this.
2 Reputational risk to OCC 3 |1 3 Significant CT Clear strategy and
communication.
Key

Likelihood of occurrence

Consequence of Risk

4 Frequent Likely to occur frequently, many times during the period | 4 Catastrophic Major failure in meeting prime project
of concern (e.g. project duration, life of building) objectives

3 Probable Several times in the period of concern 3 Critical Significant failure in meeting prime project

objectives

2 Possible Some time in the period of concern 2 Serious Failure to meet major project objectives

1 Remote Unlikely but possible in the period of concern 1 Marginal Failure to meet lesser project objectives

0 Improbable So unlikely that it can be assumed that it will not occuror | 0 Negligible Minor effect on meeting project objectives
it cannot occur

RISK Significant High

RRN 0 1 2 3-4 6 8 9 12+




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 9

E
=
S
=
(=]
g

To: City Executive Board

Date: 15 October 2015

Report of: Executive Director of Organisational Development &

Corporate Services

Title of Report: Financial Inclusion Strategy — Action Plan Update

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report: To update members on progress with delivery of the
Financial Inclusion StrategyAction Plan and seek agreement to an update of
the Action Plan.

Key decision Yes

Executive lead member: Councillor Susan Brown, Customer and Corporate
Services

Policy Framework:

Recommendation(s): That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Approve the updated Financial Inclusion Strategy Action Plan as set out
at Appendix 2; and

2. Delegate authority to the Executive Director, Organisational Development
and Corporate Services, in consultation with the Executive Member for
Customer and Corporate Services, to further update the Action Plan as
necessary.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Review of original Action Plan
Appendix 2 Revised Action Plan
Appendix 3 Risk Register

Background

1. The Financial Inclusion Strategy(FIS) was adopted by the City Executive
Board(CEB) on 3 July 2014 for a period of three years. The Strategy
incorporated an Action Plan, much of which has been achieved. The

69

%

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL



Action Plan now requires refreshing to ensure that work continues to
deliver the objectives under the four themes of Debt, Income, Housing
and Skills.

The nature of Financial Inclusion(Fl) work is that it is on-going and long
term in nature. Although many actions have been completed, these lead
on to further work. This means that many of the objectives within the
original Action Plan are reflected in the second iteration of the Plan.The
revised Action Plan builds on work in the original plan, and incorporates
new learning, in particular the recommendations from research
conducted by the Centre for Economic and Social Inclusion (CESI) in
2014.

Appendix 1 provides an update on all the actions within the original
action plan and explains if and how these actions are being carried
forward into the revised Plan.

Of the 37 actions in the original Plan, 24 have been completed, 11 are in
progress and have been carried forward into the revised Action Plan,
and one has not been delivered, and has been amended in the revised
Action Plan. This last action related to the training of customer contact
staff to recognise signs of financial exclusion and to make appropriate
referrals for support. Time pressures in the contact centre mean that this
is not practical. As such, the action has been revised to train other
frontline staff likely to come into contact with people who are financially
excluded.

The revised Action Plan is set out in Appendix 2. It contains a fifth theme
of Customer Insight which sits above the four themes within the FIS. Its
inclusion reflects the intent to a get a better understanding of how
financial exclusion affects people, in order to better target support.

Climate change / environmental impact

6.

Risk
7.

There areno negative climate change or environmental impact issues
related to this report. A number of the activities proposed in the FI Action
Plan will lead to reduced carbon footprints for affected properties.
Alleviating fuel poverty locally by improving the energy efficiency of
homes reduces energy bills for occupants, improves health and
contributes to the Council’s carbon reduction target for the whole city
(40% by 2020). The Council has a duty under the Home Energy
Conservation Act to report on plans to help householders lower their fuel
bills.

A risk assessment can be found at Appendix 3.

Equalities impact

8.

An initial equalities impact assessment was conducted when the FIS
was introduced. As the thematic areas have not changed, this
assessment is still valid. Although a new theme of Customer Insight has

70



been added. This relates to the internal management of data, rather than
having a direct impact on customers.

Financial implications

9.  This report does not propose any new expenditure. Instead it seeks to
align a number of different initiatives to produce greater outcomes.
Following the July budget, all capital investment is now subject to review,
which may impact on the delivery of some items in the Action Plan.

Legal implications
10. There are no legal implications.

Name and contact details of author:-

Name Paul Wilding

Job title Revenues & Benefits Programme Manager
Service Area / Department Welfare Reform Team
Tel: 01865 252461 e-mail: pwilding@oxford.gov.uk

71




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 — Review of Initial Action Plan

THEME | TASK TARGET/OUTCOME STATUS OF ACTION
Agree revised outcomes with Advice | Agree a set of outcomes which reflect the Completed — Agreements are in place and being
Sector and draft revised Service customers’ needs and respond to monitored.
I % Level Agreements(SLA’s) for 14/15 challenges of Welfare Reform and
'5 - increasing living costs.
TS Map provision of emergency support | Ensure Council staff can refer people in Completed — This document is a resource for
= 5 available in the City to those in crisis | crisis to appropriate emergency support. Council staff and partners to refer client groups to
(e.g. Foodbanks, grants, loans) Understand the implications of any gaps the most appropriate outlet.
and demand for services.
Monitor performance against SLA’s, | Complete data sets in relation to outcomes | Completed — Monitoring is underway, with the first
and use data to inform agreed in SLA’s (above) quarter’s data for the priority area of debt having
commissioning process for 15/16 to been received.
17/18
iy Map advice provision in City, with Understand gaps in service provision which | Completed — DWP have departed from the LSSF in
W reference to services required under | need to be addressed to deliver LSSF the rollout of Universal Credit. However pathways
Localised Support Services have been developed for anyone requiring support,
Framework(LSSF) though numbers are very low.
£ Ensure Corporate Debt Recovery To ensure all Council debts are considered | On Going— This action has been carried forward to
E policy is embedded in debt collection | when making payment arrangements, the revised Action Plan.
o processes introduction of single Income & Expenditure
S form for Council debts, and to ensure
—I' customers are referred for debt advice and
— budgeting support where appropriate.
E Work towards providing a single view of
@] customer debts.

Work with Credit Unions to promote
their services, and to inform the
public about the dangers of
unaffordable credit

Increase the number of Oxford residents
who are saving with the Credit Unions.

Ongoing - An independent review of provision has
been completed. The Council is currently
considering its response to the recommendations.
This action has been carried forward to the revised
Action Plan.

Ensure provision is made for
providing basic bank accounts when
retendering the Council’s bank

Ensure the Council’s provider of banking
services has a commitment to providing
basic bank accounts for those that require

Completed — Barclays is the new provider, and
partnership work is being undertaken to enable
Council officers to make referrals for customers.




contract

them

Investigate the establishment of a
citywide Financial Inclusion
Partnership

Work with partners in the most effective way
to ensure Financial Inclusion issues are
affectively tackled.

Ongoing - This action has been carried forward to
the new version of the Action Plan.

Review recommendations contained
in CESI research on the local impact

Determine new actions and amend actions
within this plan to meet the challenges

Completed — Recommendations from this research
have been included in the revised Action Plan

= of Welfare Reform. identified in the research.
7
,_,'J Promote DHP’s to Private Rented Ensure there is a higher take up of support | Complete — Expenditure on PRS customers
= Sector(PRS) Tenants from the private sector compared to doubled as a result of this work.
c = 2013/14, by targeting recipients likely to
zQC require support.
Train frontline staff to recognise Customers correctly referred for internal or | Action Amended — It was envisaged that Contact
indicators of financial exclusion external support. Data gathered on extent of | Centre staff would deliver this action, however time
financial exclusion pressures in the Contact Centre mean this isn’t
possible .Instead this action has been amended in
~ the revised Action Plan and will be addressed by
B other frontline teams likely to come into contact
= with target groups.
E Roll out direct payment of Housing Prepare tenants and the Council for On Going— Most working age tenants have
o Benefit to all eligible working age introduction of Universal Credit, and identify | participated in the pilot, and new tenants are
S tenants tenants likely to be excluded from the direct | assessed for their ability to manage direct payment
5 payment element of Universal Credit of their housing benefit.
a0 Deliver financial capability training to | Young people better informed to make On Going— Work is required to identify the young
(23 young people decisions which impact on their financial people who would benefit most from this action.
(23 wellbeing

Gain accreditation with Living Wage
Foundation

Acting as a role model for businesses and
other organisations in the City. Encourage
that the Council’s suppliers and contractors
also gain accreditation.

Completed — As well as paying the Living Wage,
the Council promotes payment of living wage
through its supply chain.

Identify local providers of affordable
childcare

Range of providers identified to be used in
assisting people moving into work

Completed — Used as a resource to help customers
identify childcare provision.




When reviewing related policies,
ensure the aims of the Financial
Inclusion Strategy are supported

Ensure the Council adopts a consistent
approach to matters related to Financial
Inclusion

On Going— Revenues &Benefits Programme
Manager reviews new and updated policies in light
of the FI Strategy

Support tenants to downsize where
Welfare Reforms mean their rent is
unaffordable

Host further Mutual Exchange Speed Dating
events. Facilitate more moves by providing
financial support to people downsizing.

Completed — Two years of funding provided to
Landlord Services to facilitate moves. The number
of households affected by the Bedroom Tax has
reduced from 956 in April 2013 to 609 in July 2015.

Monitor & Review Discretionary
Housing Payment policy

Ensure conditionality effectively supports
tenants.

Completed — Regularly reviewed by Scrutiny and
new policy adopted for 2015/16

Programme of council housing
energy efficiency and renewable
energy works to be incorporated into
Asset Management Strategy based
on stock condition data

Target and prioritisation of stock according
to energy efficiency and vulnerable
residents. Rolling programme set, adapted
according to available funding

In Progress - First phase of loft and cavity wall
insulation currently being installed. Domestic solar
PV has been rolled out. Action carried forward into
updated Action Plan.

VA

Introduce a Tenant Ready Scheme

Ensure tenants are equipped with the skills
to manage their tenancy, especially
payment of rent.

Completed — This is provided by Crisis and
Connections.

HOUSING - Short Term

Pilot project utilising thermal imaging
to inform Housing Health & Safety
Rating System

Poorly performing properties identified, and
landlords informed how to make required
changes.

Completed - Initial trial of around 20 properties
completed. Officers have been skilled up to carry
this work out in future.

Roll out of Winter Warmth outreach
project to help vulnerable old people
access guidance and funding for
affordable warmth

Future years dependent on resources
available

Completed - 250 people reached and 426 engaged
with Affordable Warmth network.

Affordable Warmth grants - currently
£25k/y to lever in additional funding.

Continue to use to lever in external funding
to alleviate fuel poverty for Oxford
households where possible.

Completed - Council is coordinating work to share
data and access funding for local community
groups. Affordable warmth training for groups and
advice centres has also been offered.

HOU
SIN
G-

Long

Programme of insulation, heating
and ventilation improvements carried
out within the Tower Blocks

Better insulated, ventilated properties that
result in lower energy bills for residents

On Going — Carried out as part of the Great Estates
programme.




9/

refurbishment programme

Pilot to change Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMO) licensing
conditions to necessitate carrying
out of recommended measures in
Energy Performance Certificates
rated F and G

Changes to HMO licensing researched,
consulted on as necessary and
implemented. Achieved by working with
landlords supporting identification of good
practice, and providing support where
required.

Complete — Now part of new licence conditions.

Work with Affordable Warmth
Network and Health Improvement
Board to find a meaningful way to
monitor the health impacts of fuel
poverty across Oxford (and
Oxfordshire)

A standard fuel poverty indicator with health
indicators that enable monitoring of impacts
of work around fuel poverty

Complete — Public Health Improvement Board have
a new outcome measure looking at the number of
interventions the Affordable Warmth Network have
made, which have had a positive impact on fuel
poverty.

Determine programme of insulation
in housing stock, maximising
available funding

Clarification of properties to be insulated in
priority order, to be carried out as per
available funding

Ongoing - This is a significant programme of work
and has been carried forward into the new version
of the Action Plan.

Investigate ways of minimising
expenditure on energy for Council
tenants

Reduce fuel bills for Council tenants.

Ongoing - Focus in 2014/15 was on tenants with
pre-payment meters. Focus in 2015/16 will be
delivering a programme of energy audits to tenants.

Continue to investigate new ways to
maximise available funding for
insulation and other measures
across Oxford as available funding
changes

Maximise funding for energy efficiency
measures

Completed, although this is annual activity —
Pursued via Green Deal and Energy Company
Obligation (ECO) funding.

Use the Building Research
Establishment Stock modelling and
other data to find private rental
areas most at risk of fuel poverty

Target residents in private rented sector in
areas found to be most at risk of fuel
poverty

Completed — Outreach work undertaken

Identify households covered by the
new low income, high cost” definition
of fuel poverty and give further
consideration to low income, smaller
homes that may not meet this
classification but still be fuel poor

Ensure customers in fuel poverty are
provided with the support to which they are
entitled

Completed — Fuel Poverty model developed to
identify areas of Oxford at greatest risk. This is
already being used to target funding available for
people in fuel poverty.




Energy strategy and training to be
implemented for all housing staff
with communications plan for
external promotions

Ensure consideration of fuel poverty is
embedded in all Housing services.

Completed — Staff are upskilled and able to
consider issues of fuel poverty when dealing with
other matters.

Support customers to access digital

As part of Channel shift strategy, ensure

On-going - Welfare Reform Team capturing data on

by the LA led pilot

“E services support is provided to assist customers in digital access. Support also provided as part of
§I o £ accessing and utilising digital services Universal Credit rollout.
e
Development of LA led pilot, and Extend scope of work to Private Rented Completed — Project financed by European Social
planning for LSSF Sector. Fund delivered, and referral routes developed to
support people migrating to Universal Credit.
Develop the partnership network that | Maximise the opportunity for people with Completed — Extensive partnership developed.
was established in the LA led pilot, limited skills to move into employment. This is being used to develop a proposal for
to include providers that can deliver European Structural Investment Funding
bespoke training to provide clients channelled through the Local Enterprise
~ with the skills needed for known Partnership to support the long term unemployed
~ e vacancies into work.
o Align work of Welfare reform team to | Provide locally based, joined up support to On going — Successful relationship formed, and the
'; that of the Job Clubs people who need help accessing work. Welfare Reform Teamare now developing a bid
5 with Aspire to continue and expand Job Club
- provision in the City.
(,') If bids to the European Social Fund | Ensure any additional resources are used Completed — See linked item at the top of this
- are successful, ensure the funding is | consistently, and in support of this strategy | section.
(% used to develop the work carried out




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 — Revised Action Plan

THEME | TASK TIMESCALE TARGET/OUTCOME RESP. DELIVERY
PARTNERS
1. Develop a Dashboard to help Aug 15 By monitoring different sets of data together | Revenues& Benefits | Jobcentre Plus,

5 = monitor the impact of Welfare with customer feedback , we can better Programme Housing, Advice

ST Reform and measure indicators of prioritise resources and target interventions | Manager Sector

o9 Financial Exclusion

(2} % 2. Building on the triage tool used by | On-going Continual improvement to triage process to | Welfare Reform Internal

- R X , :

O the Welfare Reform Team ensure effective support is delivered to Manager

people affected by welfare reforms
3. Monitor and evaluate On-going Ensure advice specification is being R&B Programme Advice Sector,
| £ commissioned advice contracts. delivered.Learn from trends in advice work | Manager County Council

E A Use data to inform priority work area for

TS 2016/17

= ) 4. Rents Team to trial Pay Plan for Oct 15 Establish whether Pay Plan is an effective Rents Manager Pay Plan

_ providing debt advice provider of debt advice for our customers
O 5. Use delivery of Universal Support | By Mar 15 Customers migrating to UC are able to R&B Programme UC Project Team
to build a model for personal manage the monthly payment without Manager
budgeting support, and consider getting into rent arrears.
options for delivery when Universal
Credit (UC) rollout increases.

= 6. Develop an integrated approach By Dec 15 To ensure all Council debts are considered | R&B Service N/A

21'_3 to recovery of different Council debts when making payment arrangements and to | Manager

o ensure customers are referred for debt

s advice and budgeting support where

n appropriate.

— Work towards providing a single view of

o customer debts.

a 7. Consider the Council’s strategic Review Agree approach R&B Programme Oxfordshire
approach to credit unions in light of completed by Manager Credit Union,
the recommendations in the Jun 15 Blackbird Leys
independent report Credit Union

TASK TIMESCALE TARGET/OUTCOME RESPONSIBLITY DELIVERY

PARTNERS




8. Support customers without bank By Oct 15 Reduce number of unbanked residents R&B Programme Head of Finance,
accounts to access basic banking Increase % of payments made in respect of | Manager Barclays
services Council services by DD and BACS transfer.
9. Establishment a citywide Financial | By Jul 15 Work with partners in the most effective way | R&B Programme Various
Inclusion(Fl) Partnership to ensure Financial Inclusion issues are Manager
effectively tackled.Agree citywide objectives
and measures for Fl
11. Investigate why sanctions in Dec15 Reduce the number of sanctions issued in R & B Programme JCP
Oxford are significantly above the Oxford. Manager
national average, and agree an
action plan to reduce them.
12.Developtraining package so By Jan 16 Customers correctly referred for internal or | R&B Programme NA
Lé—' - relevant staff can identify people at external support. Manager
O 9 ¢ | risk of financial exclusion, and deal Data gathered on extent of financial
CZJ 75} E with them in a consistent manner. exclusion
< |
13. Extend Direct Payments to all Plan in place Prepare tenants and the Council for Rents Manager Advice Sector
existing, and any new tenants. by May 15 introduction of UC, and identify tenants Local banks
o likely to be excluded from the direct Community
O payment element of UC. Identify support Housing
needs and refer appropriately.
£ 14. Deliver a program of energy Program to be | Residents are informed about energy saving | Head of Housing & Tenants
E education, with a focus on more agreed by and receive budgeting support where Property
= vulnerable residents, and making June 15 required including help to find the best
= use of tenant champions. energy tariffs.
T 15. All Council tenants to receive a June 15 to Buildings to be assessed for energy Head of Housing & Advice Sector
L home energy visit April 17 efficiency improvements and tenants to be Property
% offered advice on energy saving and
O referred for advice on debt and/or their
= energy bills.
TASK TIMESCALE TARGET/OUTCOME RESPONSIBLITY DELIVERY
PARTNERS
16. Sign up to The Rental Exchange | Oct 15 Council Tenants are able to establish a Rents Manager Experian,
following consultation with tenants. credit record on the basis of timely payment Tenancy
of their rent. Involvement




including cavity wall insulations,
external wall insulations and
program of loft insulation and boiler
replacement

EPC level C) and an average of 72 across
Council stock, improving energy efficiency
and reducing bills and/or under heating

17. Energy Strategy and Action Plan | July 15 Relevant actions to be incorporated in FIS Head of Planning & | Internal only
to be agreed at CEB, aligned with Action Plan when agreed. Enforcement
Members Briefing

S

E 18. Pilot use of conditionality in Sep 15 to Aug | Test whether this approach enables Home Revenues & Various to

© awarding top--up payments to Home | 16 Choice customers to live independently Benefits Programme | provide debt

2 Choice customers. without the need for further Council support. | Manager advice and

n Head of Housing & | employment

(_1) Property support

pd

(:f)) 19. Work with community groups to From Jul 15 to | Develop a robust data set of the energy Executive Director Low Carbon

O carry out building checks and other | Mar 16 efficiency of buildings across the city and for Community community

I support, on properties using the use this data to focus funding for Services groups
Oxford Fuel Poverty Indicator to improvements and financial support.

0 prioritise

20. Excess Cold enforcement to be From Jul 15 to | Improve energy efficiency of private rented | Head of Planning & | Private Rented
carried out against landlords of Mar 16 stock Enforcement landlords
properties with EPC ratings of F or G

£

At 21. Help people affected by the On-going to Reduce the number of people who have Landlord Services n/a

= Bedroom Tax in Council stock Jun 16 their Housing Support reduced by the Manager

5 downsize Bedroom Tax

I

Q TASK TIMESCALE TARGET/OUTCOME RESPONSIBLITY DELIVERY

pd

B PARTNERS

8 22. Carry out programme of Mar 16 for first | Achieve minimum SAP (Standard Head of Housing & n/a

I improvements to Council stock, phase Assessment Procedure) of 69 (equivalent of | Property




23. Explore a common approach
across agencies to identify priority
groups, underpinned by data sharing
& Develop the “Oxford offer”

Feb 15 to Mar
16

Ensure a more consistent approach is taken
in dealing with people affected by welfare
reform across different organisations.

Welfare Reform
Manager

Various

business as usual processes.

24. Support customers to access By Sep 15 Customers are supported to access online R&B Programme Library Services
digital services, particularly those services. Manager
migrating to Universal Credit
25. Explore the scope to work with June 14 to Ensure people affected by welfare reforms Welfare Reform City of Oxford
£ adult education providers City June 15 have the necessary skills to allow them to manager College, EMBS,
) College to provide short, focused find work locally WEA
; training as part of the offer to
9 residents
2 26. Work through communities and On-going Explore whether community champions and | Welfare Reform Communities&
ul) local services to engage those peer support can be used effectively to manager Neighbourhoods
— further from support support people affected by Welfare Reforms Team
< 27. Use the Delivery Partnership Jan 15 to Mar | Use the Delivery Partnership Agreementto | R&B Programme Various, including
Qg » Agreement to explore options for 16 test how different needs can be delivered by | Manager the Social
N supporting recipients of UC. working together with local providers Housing Sector
28. Build on ‘Benefits in Practice’ to | Jan 15to Jun | Improve access to the Welfare Reform team | Welfare Reform Health
reach those with health conditions 15 for harder to reach customers Manager Improvement
and disabled people Board
TASK TIMESCALE TARGET/OUTCOME RESPONSIBLITY DELIVERY
PARTNERS
£ 29. Ensure effective bids are made Sep 15 to Dec | Effective medium to long term programmes | R&B Programme Various including
2 for Labour Market funding which has | 15 are established to support those furthest Manager JCP, Thriving
> been devolved to the LEP. from the labour market into work, and to Families, Aspire
5 Consider opportunities for active support key groups into work (over 50’s,
I Council involvement in these bids. single parents, young people)
7))
j 30. Evaluate European Social Fund | Jul 15 to Sep Learning from the project and the Welfare Reform N/A
%f; project. 15 partnership legacy are incorporated into Manager




31. Support NEET prevention work
through the Business in the
Community programme

Sep 15 to Jul
16

Increase awareness of apprenticeships and
vocational career pathways in schools.
Coaching and mentoring to support pupils
as they transition through school.

Head of Community
Services, Youth
Ambition, Positive
Futures

Local Schools
BITC

32. Provide study space and access
to the internet in community owned
spaces.

Sep 15to Feb
16

Limit the impact of overcrowding and/or
digital exclusion on educational
achievement.

Housing Service
Development Officer

Various

€8




This page is intentionally left blank



G8

Risk description

Opp/ threat

Cause

Consequence

Date Raised

Owner

Gross

Strategy not carried The Finanical Inclusion No ownership of the Lack of impetus to 20/5/14 Paul Wilding 4 3
out Strategy is not Strategy as a whole encourage delivery of

implemeted due to lack startegy

of governance

arrangements.
Strategy undermined | The Financial Inclusion The budget of July 2015  |Financial exclusion 1717115 Paul Wilding 4 Kl
by further cuts to Action Plan's effect is introduced a range of increases instead of
welfare benefits reduced due to the measures which will reducing.

erosion of people's reduce the incomes of

incomes. people on benefits and in

low paid work.

Services not The Financial Inclusion Services not engaged in  |Services do not have the 17/7/15 Paul Wilding 413
committed to Action Plan is not fully the development of the resources to carry out
delivering actions delivered, due to lack of Strategy the actions they are

support from the services repsonsible for

responsible for each

action

Current

Residual

P

Comments

Control description

Due date

Controls

Status

Progress

Action Owner

Strategy to be overseen by
Customer First Program
Board

Ongoing

100

Paul Wilding

In the revised Action Plan
there are actions to ensure
those at greater risk of
Financial Exclusion are
targetted and supported as
a priority.

Ongoing

50

Paul Wilding

During the development of
the Strategy and revision of
the Action Plan, all relevant;
departments were involved
in determining the actions
to be carried out.

Ongoing

50

Paul Wilding




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 10

%3

AN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

www.oxford.gov.uk

To: City Executive Board

Date: 150ctober 2015

Report of: Planning and Regulatory Service Manager
Title of Report: Changes to charging for Planning and Listed

Building pre-applicationadvice

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report: To increase the level of fees for pre-application planning
advice, and to introduce charges for pre-application advice for listed buildings
and householder developments.

Corporate Priorities and Policy Framework:Delivery of Local Development
Framework (LDF), vibrant and sustainable communities, efficient and
effective council

Report Approved by: Councillor Alex Hollingsworth, Executive Board
Member for Planning, Transport and Regulatory Services

Finance:David Watt

Legal: Michael Morgan

Recommendation(s): That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Approve the proposed increase in the level of fees for pre-application
planning advice, and the proposed introduction of charges for pre-

application advice in respect of listed buildings and householder
developments, effective from 1 November 2015.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Current and proposed schedule of fees for planning pre-
application advice; size thresholds for fee categories; types of
pre-applications not currently subject to a fee (free advice)

Appendix 2 Risk register

87



Background

1.

The Council encourages pre-application discussions with prospective
developers, applicants and their agents before planning applications are
submitted in order to identify and, where possible, resolve any potential
issues, and improve the quality of the submitted applications.

Charging for pre-application planning advice helps to manage
development and drive forward the spatial and economic regeneration of
the city advancing the objectives of the Local Development Framework
consistently with the priority of delivering a vibrant and sustainable
community in a manner that accords with the priority of being an efficient
and effective council.

This accords with the National Planning Policy Framework which
emphasises that pre-application engagement by prospective applicants
offers significant potential to improve both the efficiency and effectiveness
of the planning application system and to improve the quality of planning
applications and their likelihood of success.

Since 5 May 2009 the Planning and Regulatory Service has charged for
this service on various types of development.

The general feedback from customers is that this service provides good
value for money; has helped to improve the quality of applications that
come into the Council; and increased the likelihood of successful
applications.

Flat rate fees are charged for each meeting with officers and for each
piece of written advice required, depending on the scale of the proposal.
Additional fees for specialist advice are charged on an hourly rate basis.

The initial level of fees for pre-application planning advice was set in May
2009. The hourly rate for specialists has remained unchanged at
£50/hour since it was introduced.The flat rate fees for the different
categories of development and service provided was last increased in
April 2011 to the level set out in the table of fees in Appendix 1.

In addition the Council, although it encourages and provides pre-
application advice, does not charge for providing such advice in relation
to certain types of development / works as also set out in Appendix 1.
These include works relating to listed buildings and also householder
developments, such as, extensions and alterations to houses.

Proposal

(i) To increase the level of fees for pre-application planning advice

88



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

It is considered timely to increase the level of planning pre-application
advice and specialist advice both flat rate fees and also hourly rates in
order that they better contribute towards the actual costs of the officer
time involved(Appendix 1).

Charging schedules vary considerably between local authorities, but the
proposed fees compare well to those charged by other (including
neighbouring) authorities and represent good value for money. For
example,

(1) for pre-application planning advice (written response) for small
scale residential development (ie.6 units), Oxford City Council currently
charges £144 (proposed increase to £180); South Oxfordshire £240;
Cambridge £240and Cherwell has a charge of £588 (but including a
site visit).

(2) for pre-application planning advice (written advice and meeting) for
large scale residential development (i.e. over 25 units), Oxford City
Council currently charges £864 (proposed increase to £1080);
Cherwell between £1170-£3000; South Oxfordshire subject to
negotiation but a minimum of £792; Cambridge £720.

Individual Planning Performance Agreements for large, complex
development proposals and planned timescales will remain on a
scheme by scheme basis with bespoke fees to reflect the nature of the
development proposal. These Planning Performance Agreements can
cover pre application advice, the planning application process and post
planning determination of reserved matters and discharge of
conditions.

Based on the pre-application workload for 2014-15 the increased fees
will raise a total planning pre-application income of £95,000 out of the
overall cost of the planning pre-application advice service of £245,000
— an increase of £15,000.

(ii) To introduce charges for pre-application advice for Listed
Buildings

Negotiations with property owners, developers and architects,
particularly in Oxford with its higher than national average numbers of
Grade | and II* buildings combined with intense levels of public
scrutiny, can often be time consuming and prolonged.Unlike planning
applications, there is no fee payable for making a Listed Building
Consent application. Currently, therefore, the Council is entirely
subsidising this service.

Many local authorities now offer a chargeable pre-application advice
service to anyone wanting help with listed building consent before the
submission of an application. Cambridge City Council, for example,
introduced such a charge in October 2014 and has not had adverse
reactions.

89



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

To bring this service in line with many other local authorities and to
reflect the costs incurred in providing pre-application listed building
advice it is proposed to introduce charges for pre-application advice
regarding Listed Buildings. The proposed level of fees for specialist
listed building advice will be at the same level as that for small scale
development and householders (as set out in Appendix 1) and will be
additional to that charged for any planning or other specialist advice.

By way of comparison, for listed building advice Oxford City Council is
proposing a charge of £540 for a meeting and written response for
non-householder and £135 for householders; High WWycombe charges
£273; Cambridge £243; South Oxfordshire £120; Cherwell £120

Based on the pre-application workload for 2014-15 the introduction of
charging for pre-application advice for listed buildings will provide a
new income stream of £10,000 - £20,000 per annum, (depending on
uptake and the level of service requested)within the overall pre-
application advice service, which costs £245,000.

(iii) to introduce charges for planning pre-application advicefor
householder development (extensions and alterations).

The Council has been encouraging householders to seek pre-
application advice before they submit their planning applications to
extend and/or alter their homes, in order to identify and resolve issues
early on in the process and avoid expensive abortive work. The
Council has been providing such advice to householders free of charge
to date.

Over recent years othercouncils, including neighbouring authorities,
have established charges for householders for pre-application advice,
with the aim to recover some of the costs of providing such a service.
The charges are modest relative to the cost of the works involved.

Comparing with other local authorities: Oxford City Council doesn’t
currently charge for householder pre-application advice, and is now
proposing a fee of £135 for a meeting and written response; High
Wycombe charges £480; Cherwell £120; Cambridge and South
Oxfordshire don’t currently charge.

It is proposed to introduce fees for planning advice to householders as
per the charges schedule in Appendix 1. This would recover a
proportion of the cost of providing that service.

Based on the pre-application workload for 2014-15 the introduction of
charging for pre-application advice for householder developments will
provide a new income stream of £5,000 - £10,000 per annum
(depending on take up)within the overall pre-application advice service,
which costs £245,000.

90



Benefits and risks

23.

24.

The proposals offer benefits for customers and the Council:

e The earlier the officer involvement in a proposal, the better the
investment of their time

o Greater certainty for applicants for timely provision of service,
enabling improved project management

¢ Reduced expense and delays for applicants
Increased acceptability of submitted schemes

¢ Ensures that development schemes aren’t jeopardised by a skills
shortage within the Council

e Pre-application discussions can play an important role in improving
the quality of proposals and the efficiency of the planning process,
helping the Service meet performance targets

¢ Recovering some of the costs of pre-application advice for works to
listed buildings would help to reduce the Council’s subsidy of a
specialist conservation service

¢ Brings the listed building service in line with pre-application advice
for planning proposals.

A Risk Register is included in Appendix 2. The risks are considered
manageable, and to be outweighed by the benefits the proposals offer.

Recommendation

25.

It is recommended that the proposed increases to existing fees and the
introduction of new charges are approved as set out above, all with
effect from 1November 2015.

Legal issues

26.

27.

28.

There is a general power to change for discretionary services under
section 93 of the Local Government Act 2003. The income
recoverable under these changes is not to exceed the costs of
provision of the discretionary service taking one financial year with
another. The Council must have regard to the guidance issued by the
Secretary of State. The guidance suggests that costs and income
should be assessed over no longer than a three year period to ensure
that no surplus is generated.

The Council owes a fiduciary duty to local taxpayers to ensure that its
resources are not expended improperly and to protect their interest in
the preservation of their funds.

All pre-application fees (planning and listed building) are set on the

basis that overall the pre-application fee income would not exceed the
overall pre-application service costs year on year.

91



29. Listed Building consent itself would remain a free application, as
instructed by Government.

Financial Issues

30. Administrative procedures are already in place to collect fees arising
from charging for pre-application planning advice.Conservation
Officers already provide pre-application advice for works to listed
buildings, free of charge. The proposals will assist with improved cost
recovery.

31.  Development Control has a gross budget cost of £1.56m annually, of
which £914,000 is budgeted income.

32. Planning pre-application work within this overall budget costs £245k at
an hourly rate of £60. Current pre-application fees (£80,000) recover
35% of the overall cost of the pre-app service.The proposed additional
planning (including householder) and listed building pre-application
fees will be c. £40,000 per annum and will recover 49% of the overall
cost of the pre-application service.

33.  There are no significant additional costs associated with either
increasing the level of fees for pre-application planning advice, or
introducing charges for pre-application advice for listed buildings.

34.  All charges related to planning and listed building pre-application
advice attract VAT at 20%.

Name and contact details of authors:

lan Marshall, Team Manager, Design, Heritage and Specialist Services
Team.

Email: imarshall@oxford.gov.uk

Tel: 01865522232

Niko Grigoropoulos, Development Performance Manager, Planning and
Regulatory Services

Email: ngrigoropoulos@oxford.gov.uk

Tel: 01865522232

Background papers:
None

92



Appendix 1

Current and proposed schedule of fees for planning pre-application advice.

Current Proposed
Size of Service Fee Fee incl. of Fee Fee incl. of
proposal VAT @ 20% VAT @ 20%
Large scale Meeting £480 £576 £600 £720
Written £240 £288 £300 £360
response
Meeting and £900 £1080
written
response
Medium scale | Meeting £360 £432 £450 £540
Written £180 £216 £225 £270
response
Meeting and £675 £810
written
response
Small scale Meeting £240 £288 £300 £360
Written £120 £144 £150 £180
response
Meeting and £450 £540
written
response
Householder Meeting N/A N/A £75 £90
developments
Written N/A N/A £37.50 £45.00
response
Meeting and N/A N/A £112.50 £135
written
response
Listed Meeting N/A N/A £300 £360
buildings —
non
householder
Written N/A N/A £150 £180
response
Meeting and N/A N/A £450 £540
written
response
Listed Meeting N/A N/A £75 £90
buildings -
householders
Written N/A N/A £37.5 £45
response
Meeting and N/A N/A £112.50 £135
written
response

Additional fees are charged where, along with planning pre-application advice,
advice is required from specialist officers (eg. heritage, design, policy, biodiversity,
trees, archaeology, land contamination, noise, sustainability, viability etc), as well as
where site meetings are required. These additional charges are currently charged at
the rate of £50/hour.
It is proposed that this is increased to an hourly rate of £62.50 plus VAT per hour,
i.e:-Specialist’s advice hourly rate £75 per hour inclusive of VAT.

93




Size thresholds for fee categories

For the purposes of calculating the appropriate fee, proposals fall into one of the
following three categories, which correspond to the following size thresholds:-

i) Large scale proposals:- over 25 residential units, or over 2000m2 of floorspace,
or over 1ha of site area, or over 50 student rooms.

i) Medium scale proposals: between 6 & 25 residential units, or 500m2 &
2000m2 of floorspace, or 0.2 & 1ha of site area, or 10 & 50 student rooms.

iii) Small scale proposals: less than 6 residential units, or less than 500m2 of
floorspace, or less than 0.2 ha of site area, or less than10 student rooms; also
proposals for operational works not creating new floorspace such as shopfronts,
general commercial advertising not relating to its premises (such as poster panels)
and telecommunications proposals that would require either a planning or a prior
approval application.

Mixed development proposals are treated according to their cumulative size.
Types of pre-application proposals not currently subject to a fee (free advice)

e householder extensions and alterations that need permission (either to
houses or individual flats), but this does not apply to flat conversions

e advertisements that are specific to the actual premises they are displayed on

e a single annual telecoms roll-out plan meeting with all operators together

e works that only require either listed building and/or conservation area consent
e pre-application discussions resulting directly from enforcement investigations

e public art

e proposals that are exempt from paying fees at application stage, eg.
Equalities Act related works

e third parties, at our discretion, depending on the amount of officer time
required

In addition we provide a successful drop-in ‘duty officer’ service free of charge.

94



G6

Appendix 2. Risk Register

Risk description

Opp! threat

Consequence

Date Raised

Comments

Control description

Due date

Controls

Status

Progress %

Action Owner

Pre-app charges for Introduction of fees Drop off in numbers of |Introduction of pre-app Risk of corresponding 11/08/15 lan Marshall N/A [N/A Level of charges has Monitor level of enquiries to lan Marshall
listed buildings listed building pre-app |charges for listed buildings  [increase in inadequate been set at a reasonable [detect any drop-off. Consider

lenquiries submissions and more level so as not to any amendment to level of

refusals. discourage discussions  [fees.

Pre-app charges for Introduction of fees Developers, property Introduction of pre-app Properties placed at risk, 11/08/15 lan Marshall N/A [N/A Risk is considered low as |Monitor number of incidents lan Marshall
listed buildings lowners may be more charges for listed buildings  [and officer time and this would be unlawful of unlawful works, and

likely to just go ahead financial resources tied up and liable to prosecution. |consider impact of fee

and do work without dealing with enforcement introduction

getting consent. cases
Pre-app charges for Introduction of fees Inability of the Council to|Introduction of pre-app Increased customer 11/08/15 lan Marshall, Niko N/A  [N/A Applicants need to feel All pre-app enquiries to be lan Marshall, Mehdi
listed buildings meet performance charges for listed buildings  [dissatisfaction and Grigoropoulos that they are getting value |recorded in Uniform, tracked, Rezaie, Edward Oteng

standards and customer [and householders numbers of complaints. for money and that the and officer performance

and Service not fit for purpose. advice is delivered in a monitored. Consider

provide a high quality timely and efficient ladequate level of resource

service manner. available
Planning applications Increase of fees. Introduction of new Reduction in numbers of|Increase in planning pre-app [Risk of corresponding 13/08/15 Niko Grigoropoulos N/A [N/A Level of charges remains [Monitor level of enquiries,

pre-app fees fpr householder
applications

requests for planning
pre-app advice

fees and introduction of new
pre-app fees for
householders

increase in invalid,
inadequate and
unacceptable
submissions. More
refusals and appeals

at a reasonable level so
as not to discourage pre-
app discussions

and numbers of refusals and
appeals. Continue applying
validation lists

Mehdi Rezaie, Edward
Oteng




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

www.oxford.gov.uk

To: City Executive Board
Date: 15 October 2015
Report of: Stephen Clarke, Head of Housing and Property

Title of Report: Arrangements to facilitate the fitting of solar panels

on council-owned housing stock

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report: To outline proposals to facilitate the fitting of solar panels

on

Council-owned housing stock in such a way that reduces the demands on

the HRA capital programme

Key decision Yes

Executive lead member: Councillor Mike Rowley, Housing

Policy Framework: Sustainability Strategy, Low Carbon Oxford, Housing
Asset Management Strategy

Recommendation(s): That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1.

2.

3.

Grantproject approval to fit solar panels on Council-owned housing stock
in the manner described in this report;

Delegate authority to the Chief Executive,in conjunction with the Head of
Finance, to enter into an Agreement to Lease with the Low Carbon Hub
IPS(on the basis that this would permit leases to the roof space of
individual Council properties to be drawn up and executed if required) plus
any ancillary agreement required; and to submit an appropriate VEAT
notice to the EU; and

Agree that on the basis of the matters set out in this report, the proposed
arrangement with the Low Carbon Hub IPS represents best value to the
Council.

Appendices to report:
Appendix 1 Risk Register

97

%

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL



Background

1.

This report proposes that the Council enters into arrangements to install
photo voltaic solar panels on the roofs of council homes to produce
electricity for the following reasons:-

e The technology is now proven with highly predictable costs and
benefits

e Concerns about current and future costs of utilities and the impact
on household budgets particularly those on low or fixed incomes

e The opportunity to increase the proportion of renewable energy
produced in the city and the consequent reduction in the carbon
footprint

e The timing in the reductionto the feed in tariff announced by the
Government is such that some of a programme launched now would
provide some benefit from current higher rates

The benefits can be summarised as:

o Free electricity to the affected tenants during daylight hours
estimated to reduce typical household electricity bills by around £150
pa.

e A reduction in carbon dioxide emissions of 1200tCO; p.a. based on
1000roofs, being included in the scheme, contributing to the
Council’s target of reducing city-wide emissions by 40% by 2020 and
more than doubling the Council’s emissions reductions on its own
estate in a given year.

Tenants were consulted as part of the Housing Revenue Account
Business plan, budgeting and rent setting and the Housing Asset
Management Strategy. Included in this consultation was a proposal to
invest in the energy efficiency of the housing stock. Thermal comfort,
energy efficiency and fuel poverty have been identified as key concerns
of tenants in the STAR surveys and other engagement activities. Itis
estimated that 20% of Oxford City Council housing tenants are in fuel
poverty at the time of writing.

As a result of a number of proposed legislative changes therewill be
more constraints on investment programmes within our HRA business
plan going forward and officers have been seeking alternative means of
funding such programmes. In this case an option has been identified that
is based on leasing free of charge roof space to Oxford-based social
enterprise the Low Carbon Hub (the Hub). The Hub would raise the
capital to install solar panels through a community share offer backed up
as required by ethically sourced debt finance. By financing the
installations in this way, the £56m programme currently included in the
HRA capital programme would no longer be required, enabling those

98



funds to be directed to other areas of investment where there are no
alternative sources of funding.

How the community-benefit model works

5.

In general terms the benefit derived from the power generated is
distributed backto tenants in the form of free electricity and to investors
in the Hub share offer to cover cost of the capital works. Any further
surplus is thenused tofund further investment in the community through
other energy related projects delivered by the Hub.

The high level process for delivery would be:

e The Council and the Hub would identify a pipeline of potential homes
suitable for installation.

e The Hub would raise share capital to cover the capital costs.

e A project liaison officer, funded by the programme, would work with
the Council and the Hub to identify those properties where the
scheme could go ahead and support the effective running of the
works programme.

e The Council would lease at zero cost the roof of the property to the
Hub.

e The Hub would install and commission the panels.

e The tenant would receive advice and support as to how to maximise
the benefit form the panels and other related energy advice.

o The tenant would receive free of charge electricity produced from the
panels.

e The investors would receive a return based on the Hub share offer
prospectus, funded by surplus energy sold to the grid by the Hub
and feed in tariff payments to the Hub.

¢ The balance of cash would be retained by the Hub to re-invest in
energy related projects in the city.

Value for money

7.

Although not a procurement the Council does need to satisfy itself that
such an arrangement does provide best value and provides good value
for money. Below are set out reasons why the Council could consider
that the LCH provides a best value solution.

The Hub meets the criteria that the Council has previously adopted in a
policy which steers the selection of partners for energy related projects
in favour of:

¢ Not for profit social enterprises

e Local organisations likely to provide jobs and contribute to the local
economy

¢ Organisations who reinvest surpluses back into local communities

99



10.

11.

The Hub has a current proven track record in both raising capital through
community share offers and the installation of renewable energy
projects.

There are existing partnership and contractual relationships between the
Council and the Hub

e Low Carbon Oxford

e Loan facility to Hub to provide working capital for other renewable
energy schemes

e The Hub is a partner in the Intelligent Energy Europe programme
locally called OxFutures which has a current programme to deliver
£18m of renewable energy projects

e Re-investment in the communities of Oxford from previous schemes
valued at in excess of £500k

e The Council has a nominated officer as an Non- Executive Director
on its boards

e The Hub has a scheme that is ready to launch

There is a high degree of trust and confidence between the Council and
the hub that has built up through these arrangements as well as an
understanding of their financial models and business plans.

Legal arrangements

12.

It is proposed that this arrangement would be structured through the
Council entering into a composite Agreement for Lease with the Low
Carbon HubIPS (“LCH”), under which the Council would grant rights to
the LCH to fit solar panels to the roofs of those Council properties which
meet the relevant technical and practical requirements. The LCH would
then be solely responsible for the installation process and all costs
involved and would be entitled to receive any income derived from
generation of additional electricity. As such, this arrangement with the
LCH would constitute a land deal, and would not be subject to the
European procurement regime. The Council would, however, be under
a legal duty to ensure that this arrangement represents best value, and it
must bear this in mind when deciding whether to enter into the proposed
arrangements with the LCH. To ensure public transparency, the Council
would wish to advertise this proposed arrangement by way of a VEAT
notice in accordance with the European procurement regulation.

Right To Buy

13. A tenant may purchase a property with solar panels installed under Right

To Buy. The Hub has taken legal advice on this issue as the risk
essentially sits with them. They believe that by initially gaining the
tenant’s consent to install the solar panels under these arrangements,
the rights and obligations between the Hub and the Council would in
effect continue between the Hub and the new owner after the right to buy

100



has been exercised. The agreement with the Hub will need to ensure
that the risk arising from a tenant/owner seeking to challenge that view
rests with the Hub.

National policy framework

14.

15.

16.

17.

The Department for Energy and Climate Chance published a
consultation on the future of the Feed In Tariff (FIT) incentives on 27
August 2015. The precise impacts of this complex consultation is yet to
be determined but it recommends steep reductions in all FITs and for
domestic, a reduction from c. £0.12 to £0.0163 per unit electricity
exported to the grid. It is proposed that is this is effective from January
2016.

If this goes ahead, it is not expected that any commercial rent-a-roof
models for delivery will be viable anymore. Examples from the past show
that these schemes offered a poor return to landlords even when the FIT
was high (£0.44 per unit). It is possible, but not confirmed, that
community energy groups could still be offered better FIT rates. In that
case community-benefit models for delivery of schemes such as the one
proposed may be the only viable route.

Recent Government budget announcements will place significant
constraints on Local Authorities investment programmes going forward.

These policy changes, and any future changes, may impact on the
viability of the programme for either the Low Carbon Hub or the Council.
It is proposed that the installation programme would be rolled out in
phases with agreement between both parties to proceed in each case.
By proceeding in this way we can maximise the benefits realised while
retaining flexibility to respond to changing circumstances.

Delivery risks

18.

19.

It is proposed that the terms and conditions of the Agreement to Lease
will set out the requirements on the Hub to mitigate delivery risks to the
Council.

Financial failure of the Low Carbon Hub:The installation programme
would be rolled out in phases. In each phase the Hub will secure capital
to pay the installation contractor in advance. This mitigates the risk of
financial failure of the Low Carbon Hub during the installation period as
the contractor will still be required to complete that phase of installation.
Once operational there could still be a risk of default in the event of
financial failure of the Hub. The Council and the Hub will

agree appropriate measures to safeguard the installations, panels, and
the associated FIT income, with the preferred option being to transfer the
lease, panels, income and operational obligations to an organisation with
similar objectives to the Hub.

101



20.

21.

22.

23.

Tenant liaison: excellent communications and engagement of tenants is
required in order to, e.g.: secure tenant consent to installations (paving
the way for a smooth installation process); set clear expectations for the
suitability of any given property and the process to establish that; and to
ensure that tenants know how to make the most of their system and how
to seek support in the case of any issues. It is proposed that the Hub
fund a tenant liaison officer who would be seconded to the Council to
work closely with Housing and Property officers and tenants.

Electrical standards of the installation: It is proposed that the Hub will
be responsible for the checks needed for the installation of the solar
panels and liable for their installation meeting the standards that the
Council must meet in its properties. The Hub’s installers will not carry out
checks beyond the scope of the solar panel installation, but will be
required to escalate any issues they observe when visiting the property.

Dependencies on Council housing portfolio management: as the
Council runs an on-going programme of maintenance on its properties it
is essential that processes are in place to manage any dependencies
with the Hub installations. It is proposed that properties are selected in
the following way for each phase of delivery:

¢ aninitial desktop assessment to select properties based on
orientation, roof pitch and size

e a process to cross check with the Council regarding roof
replacement, presence of asbestos etc

e gaining consent of the tenant
e a sign-off process with the Council for properties in that phase

The design of an agreed, detailed process flow would be a requirement
of the Agreement to Lease.

Financial Issues

24.

The scheme has been designed to be funded from external resources
and associated financial risks managed by the Hub. Officer resources
will be required to ensure close liaison with the Hub however, these are
already accounted forin the planning of the capital programme. The
route of external funding proposed relieves a £5m pressure on the
planned HRA capital programme.

Environmental Impact

25.

Based on a programme of 1000 rooftop installations the following
environmental benefits are expected:
o 3MW of capacity installed leading to 1200tCO, avoided every year

o an income stream for Low Carbon Hub that will be reinvested in
local projects that further reduce environmental impact. Previous
examples include: £245,610 of investment to build 152kw of solar

102



pv on city schools; Hub staff support for city community groups to
develop their own energy projects; contributions of time and
materials on the Warming Barton external wall insulation project
and the establishment of Good Food Oxford

Eqﬁalities impact

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

The policy offers an opportunity to as many social housing tenants as
reasonably practicable to reduce their household electricity costs. The
council must consider the potential for differential impacts on the six
primary equality strands: race, disability, age, gender, religion or belief,
sexual orientation.

Selection of properties (and hence tenants) for the programme will be on
the basis of the technical suitability of the property for the installation.
For example: orientation, roof structure and slope and state of electrical
systems. This selection is dependent on the tenants and therefore not
biased to any groups with protected characteristics.

There will be a further ‘consent’ process in which tenants in eligible
properties are engaged to gain their consent to the scheme. The Low
Carbon Hub has a strong track record of working with communities to
engage residents and secure sign-up to previous programmes such as
the Warming Barton project. As the Hub will require access to the
properties to complete the installation they will be required to meet the
council’s standards for safeguarding and managing the requirements of
tenants. The tenant liaison officer would be the lead in working with the
Council on this programme.

Monitoring will be provided through analysis of the potential pipeline of
projects, the reasons any properties fall out of the pipeline and those that
are completed along with equalities data captured as part of the tenant
liaison process.

Given the considerations above the impact is positive as the initiative will
provide opportunities for groups with protected characteristics who would
not otherwise benefit.

Name and contact details of author:-

NameMairi Brookes

Job titleOxFutures Programme Manager

Service Area / DepartmentEnvironmental Sustainability
Tel:01865 252212e-mail: mbrookes@oxford.gov.uk

103




This page is intentionally left blank



GOT

Risk description

Opp/ threat

Cause

Consequence

Date Raised

Owner

Current

p

Residual

p

Comments

Control description

Due date

Controls

Status

Progress %

Action Owner

Right to Buy
properties

The lease with the Hub is
with the Council but if a
property is sold the Hub
will need to transfer the
lease to the new owner

Threat

Right To Buy legisation
allows tenants to buy their
property in some
circumstances. If the lease
isn't transferred the solar
panels will need to be
removed.

The income from the

panels would end if they
were removed impacting
the viability of the project

8/9/15

Low Carbon Hub

The risk lies with Low
Carbon Hub as they
provide the finance for
the installation and
repay their shareholders
from the income from
the solar panel feed in
tariffs

The Low Carbon Hub have
taken legal advice and will
seek tenant consent to
transfer a lease in the case
of Right To Buy when
signing up tenants to the
scheme.

TBC

Low Carbon Hub

National policy on
solar panel incentives

National policy framwork
for solar panel incentives
may change

Threat

The income from future
panels may be less than
currently available

Financial model for solar
panel installations may
no longer be viable

8/9/15

Low Carbon Hub

The delivery model is in
phases with a sign off
on each phase. If the
model is no longer
viable, the deilvery
programme would halt.
Systems that have
already been installed
will secure their income
and are not affected by
future policy changes

Phased delivery
programme design by Low
Carbon Hub. Delivery of
programme is expedieted
in order to realise the
maximum benefits
possible.

Low Carbon Hub

National policy
framework for LA
owned social housing
changes

The Council may be
required to sell high
value properties in the
future

Threat

These properties would
not be available to the
scheme and any solar

panels installed may need
to be removed

Leases on properties
with solar panels that are
subsequently sold may
not be transferred unless
the sale is captured by
Right To Buy above.

8/9/15

Stephen Clarke

The Council will have a
role in the selection of
properties and can
remove any that are
deemed to be likely to
fall within this category.
As it is impossible to
second guess future
policy some of this risk
must be accepted to
ensure benefits to
tenants are captured
now.

Council to assess high risk
properties with a view to
removing thtem from the
potential pipeline list.

TBC

Stephen Clarke

Financial failure of the
Low Carbon Hub

Financial failure of the
Low Carbon Hub

Threat

The Hub would no longer
exist and the i i

The Hub would need to
i its

programme would be
interupted

regarding existing leases

8/9/15

Low Carbon Hub

The installation
programme would be
rolled out in phases. In
each phase the Hub will
secure capital to pay the
installation contractor in
advance.

The Council and the Hub
will agree appropriate
measures to safeguard the
completed installations,
panels, and the associated
FIT income, with the
preferred option being to
transfer the lease, panels,
income and operational
obligations to an
organisation with similar
objectives to the Hub.

Low Carbon Hub

Tenant liaison

Managing
communications with
tentants in order to
maximise benefits and
mitigate risks

Opportunity

Tenants need to be
involved in the delivery
process as consent and
on site access will be
required. Tenants may
need new knowledge to
maximise their savings.

More installations take
place and tenants
maximise savings on
their electricity bill.

8/9/15

Stephen Clarke

1 1
2 3
2 2
4 2
3 2

] 1
1 3
1 2
3 2
1 1

It is proposed that the Hub

fund a tenant liaison officer
who would be seconded to
the council to work closely

with Housing and Property

officers and tenants.

TBC

Low Carbon Hub




90T

Electrical standards of | Electrical standards of Threat The installation of the The installation must 8/9/15 Stephen Clarke 1 1 It is proposed that the Hub TBC Low Carbon Hub
the installation the installation must be panels requires a meet the standards will be responsible for the
meet Council needs connection with the required or there may be checks needed for the
electrical system of the a cost to the Council installation of the solar
property panels and liable for their
installation meeting the
standards that the Council
must meet in its properties.
The Hub’s installers will not
carry out checks beyond
the scope of the solar
panel installation, but will
be required to escalate any!
issues they observe when
visiting the property
Dependencies on Dependencies on Threat Staff time needed to liaise |cost associated with staff 8/9/15 Stephen Clarke 1 2 The design of an agreed, TBC Low Carbon Hub
Council housing Council housing portfolio with the Hub programme. [time detailed process flow
portfolio management management including a sign-off for
each phase would be a
requirement of the
Agreement to Lease.
Delivering Delivering environmental Opportunity The Hub would raise the [Reduced demand on the 8/9/15 Stephen Clarke 3 3 Seek approval of CEB and ASAP Stephen Clarke
environmental benefits| benefits in a financially capital to install solar HRA Capital programme negotiate the requireed
in a financially constrained context panels through a terms and conditions for an
constrained context community share offer Agreement to Lease with
backed up as required by Low Carbon Hub
ethically sourced debt
finance




Agenda Item 12

E
=
S
B
(=]
g

To: City Executive Board

Date: 150ctober 2015

Report of: Executive Director, Regeneration and Housing

Title of Report: Additional Licensing Scheme for HMOs

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report: The report provides the results from the consultation
carried out for the HMO Licensing Scheme and seeks approval from members
to designate the whole of the City as subject to additional licensing under
section 56(1) (a) of the Housing Act 2004 in relation to the size and type of
HMO specified in the recommendations of this report for 5 years commencing
the 25 January 2016.

Key decision: Yes

Executive lead member:Clir Ed Turner, Finance, Asset Management and
Public Health

Policy Framework: Meeting Housing Needs and An Effective and Efficient
Council

Recommendation(s): That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Note the report of the Consultation of Licensing of Houses in Multiple
Occupation 2015 and its findings attached at Appendix 1.

2. Agree that having considered the report of the consultation, which
shows that a significant proportion of HMOs in the City are being
managed ineffectively, an additional licensing scheme is required for a
further 5 years.

3. Agree to designate the whole of the City as subject to additional
licensing under section 56(1)(a) of the Housing Act 2004 for all three
storey Houses in Multiple Occupation that contain three or four
occupiers and all two storey Houses in Multiple Occupation that contain
five or more occupiers with the designation coming into force on 25
January 2016 for a period of 5 years.

4. Agree to designate the whole of the City as subject to additional
licensing under section 56(1)(a) of the Housing Act 2004 in relation to

107

%

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL



all two storey or single storey Houses in Multiple Occupation that
contain three or four occupiers and all self-contained flats that are
Houses in Multiple Occupation, irrespective of the number of storeys,
but, so far as concerns section 257, Houses in Multiple Occupation,
limit the designation to those that are mainly or wholly tenanted,
Including those with resident landlords. This second designation will
come into force on the 31 January 2017 and will last for 4 years.

5. RecommendCouncil to resolve to adopt the proposed fees and charges
structure attached at Appendix 2.

6. Recommend Council to resolve to adopt the eligibility criteria for the
new scheme as attached at Appendix 3.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Report on the Consultation of the Houses in Multiple

Occupation Licensing Scheme 2015

Appendix 2 Proposed Fees and Charges post 31 January 2016
Appendix 3 Eligibility criteria for proposed scheme

Appendix 4 Risk register

Appendix 5 Equalities Impact Assessment

Background

1.

In June 2015 the findings of the review of Licensing of Houses in
Multiple Occupation was reported to the City Executive Board.

The City Executive Boardconfirmed that the review showed that a
significant proportion of HMOS in the Council's area are being
managed ineffectively and instructed officersto proceed with a statutory
10 week consultation preparatory to renewing the licensing scheme in
its entirety for a further 5 years from the 25 January 2016.

The City Executive Board also requested that officersprovide a further
report setting out the results of the statutory consultation and proposals
for the licensing scheme.

On 12 June the Council commenced the statutory consultation for a
period of 10 weeks concluding on the 24 August 2015.

The Consultation of Additional Licensing of Houses in Multiple
Occupation 2015, is summarised in this report and set out in full at
Appendix 1.

Legal Issues

6.

In order for the Council to ‘renew’ the scheme it must proceed through
the statutory process as laid out in Section 56 and 57 and the guidance
issued under the Housing Act 2004: Licensing of Houses in Multiple
Occupation and Selective Licensing of Other Residential
Accommodation (England) General Approval 2010.

108




10.

11.

Section 56 of the Act places requirements upon the Local Housing
Authority when considering a designation for additional licensing of
HMQOs, in that the Council must:

e Consider that a significant proportion of the HMOs of that
description in the area are being managed sufficiently ineffectively
as to give rise, or likely to give rise, to one or more particular
problems either for those occupying the HMOs or for members of
the public;and

e Take reasonable steps to consult with persons who are likely to be
affected and consider any representations made in accordance with
the consultation and not withdrawn; and

¢ Have regard to any information regarding the extent to which any
codes of practice approved under section 233 have been complied
with by persons managing HMOs in the area (these codes relate to
University managed accommodation).

Section 57 provides further considerations for the Local Authority in
that they should ensure that:

e Exercising the designation is consistent with the authority’s overall
housing strategy; and

e Seek to adopt a coordinated approach in connection with dealing
with homelessness, empty properties and anti-social behaviour
affecting the private rented sector as regards combining licensing
with other action taken by them or others; and

e Consider whether there are any other courses of action available to
them (of whatever nature) that might provide an effective method of
dealing with the problem or problems in question; and

e That making the designation will significantly assist them to deal
with the problem or problems (whether or not they take any other
course of action as well).

The DCLG General Approval provides the condition that any
consultation period for the proposed designation should not be less
than 10 weeks.

In February 2010 the DCLG produced general guidance around the
approval steps for additional and selective licensing designations in
England.

This document provides examples of properties being managed
“sufficiently ineffectively” including:

e Those whose external condition and curtilage (including yards and
gardens) adversely impact upon the general character and amenity
of the area in which they are located;

e Those whose internal condition, such as poor amenities,
overcrowding etc. adversely impact upon the health, safety and
welfare of the occupiers and the landlords of these properties are
failing to take appropriate steps to address the issues;

109



12.

13.

14.

e Those where there is a significant and persistent problem of anti-
social behaviour affecting other residents and/or the local
community and the landlords of the HMOs are not taking
reasonable and lawful steps to eliminate or reduce the problems;
and

¢ Those where the lack of management or poor management skills or
practices are otherwise adversely impacting upon the welfare,
health and safety of residents and/or impacting upon the wider
community.

The Additional Licensing scheme in the City was introduced in two
phases with each phase lasting for a period of 5 years. This creates a
situation where Phase 1and Phase 2 will expire on different dates
(Phase 1 on the 24 January 2016 and Phase 2 on the 31 January
2017).

Under section 60(2) of the Act the time must be no later than five years
after the date on which the designation comes into force.

The proposal is that the new designation would commence on the 25
January 2016 for a period of 5 years and include a provision for Phase
2 of the original scheme to commence on the 1 February 2017 with an
expiry date of the 25 January 2021. This would align the two phases of
the scheme and reduce the financial burden associated with having to
revoke Phase 2 of the scheme and re-designate it following expiry in
2017.

Consultation of the HMO licensing scheme in Oxford 2015

Key Findings from the consultation

15.

16.

17.

The Council adopted a range of techniques for this consultation
including questionnaires, focus groups, roadshows, tenants and
resident group meetings and stakeholder meetings.

In total the Council received 209 questionnaires, 97 online and 112
completed face to face during the roadshows. A summary of the key
findings from the two approaches are set out below.

The results from the online questionnaires were as follows:

. 30% of the respondentswerehome owners living in Oxford, 28%
landlords or owners of HMOs, 13% letting or managing agents,
9% tenants who were living, or had lived in a HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford, 6% tenants living in a non HMO, 5% students
and people living outside of Oxford, and 3% other.

° 49% lived in the OX4 area, 20% in OX3, 13% outside of the
City, 12% in OX2 and 6% in OX1

o The biggest concerns raised by people living in HMOs were the
difficulties in getting repairs done, lack of contact with the

110



18.

Landlord/Agent, problems associated with certificates, and
deposit issues

36% of all residents reported serious concerns with poorly
managed refuse/untidy overflowing bins, and HMO property
conditions; 49% raised serious concerns about external property
conditions

51% responded to the issue of overgrown gardens indicating it
was a problem in the area where they live

53% of respondents either strongly agreed or agreed that there
are poorly managed HMO's in the area of Oxford where they
live

39% of respondents felt that living conditions in HMOs have
improved and 40% either strongly agreed or agreed that the
licensing scheme has improved HMOs

48% of respondents strongly agreed and 16% agreed that the
licensing scheme should be ‘renewed’ for a further 5 years. 17%
strongly disagreed and 12% disagreed

The top four reasons for disagreeing with the renewal of the
scheme were, the Council should increase the punishment for
rogue landlords, fees for a licence should be reduced for
compliant landlords, the process should be simplified, and
licences should be issued for longer periods of validity

The results from the face to face questionnaires completed during the
roadshows were as follows:

48% of respondents were home owners living in Oxford, 15%
tenants in a rented property that is not an HMO, 9% landlords
and home ownesr, 9% tenants living in an HMO, 7% living
outside Oxford, 5% living with parents in Oxford, 4% a landlord,
2% students and 1% a letting or managing agent

46% of respondents were from the OX4 area, 29% OX3, 12%
outside the City, 10% in OX2 and 4% in OX1

The biggest concerns raised by people living in HMOs were fear
of reporting repairs for being evicted (13%), deposit issues
(15%), lack of contact with landlord/agent (15%), and difficulties
getting repairs done (19%)

The top four problems with HMOs in an area where respondents
lived were overgrown gardens (25%) poorly managed refuse
(23%), poor property conditions (21%), and poor external
appearance of HMOs (20%)

31% of respondents either strongly agreed or agreed that there
were poorly managed HMOs in the area where they live

70% of people provided a neutral response to the question of
whether the licence scheme has improved HMOs in their area

111



19.

20.

whilst 24% strongly agreed or agreed and 7% strongly
disagreed or disagreed

. 46% strongly agreed and 26% agreed with the proposal to
‘renew’ the Scheme in its entirety for a further 5 years. 11%
provided a neutral response and 17% either strongly disagreed
or disagreed

o The top four reasons for disagreeing with the renewal of the
scheme were the Council should increase the punishment for
rogue landlords (33%), fees for a licence should be reduced for
complaint landlords (27%), the process should be simplified,
longer licences should be issued, and HMOs are now being
better managed all scoring 13%

The focus groups included landlords, agents, students and residents of
Oxford. The common theme resulting from these groups is that there is
a need to refine the scheme to reward compliant landlords and
increase costs for rogue landlords. Fees and charges to reflect this
should be considered and longer licences offered to compliant
landlords.

National organisations including the National Landlords Association,
Residential Landlords Association and the Citizens Advice Bureau
submitted responses to the consultation together with community
groups such as Oxford Community Forum and Wolvercote
Neighbourhood Forum. All of the responses received have been
considered as part of the development of the consultation report and
are included as appendices to that document.

Financial Issues

21.

22.

23.

When setting the fees and charges structure for the licensing scheme
the Council has to take account of the staff costs, training,
administration and publicity and that it is not allowed to use licensing
fees to raise revenue for other projects or areas of work. The
expenditure and income sheet is provided at Appendix 2.

The original financial structure of the Scheme was designed to be ‘cost
neutral’ to cover the costs mentioned above and to ensure thatno
General Fund Revenuewas required to support the delivery of the
Scheme.

The proposed fees and charges structure set out in Appendix 2is ‘cost
neutral’ whilst addressing the majority of the issues and concerns
raised during the consultation. It will have to be ratified by full Council
prior to the introduction of the new scheme.There is likely to be a deficit
in the first year and will therefore require the HMO reserve to be used
to allow for the 5 year income and expenditure pattern to be
achieved.The fees and charges structure will also be reviewed on an
annual basis and if there is a need to increase them to cover any

112



24.

25.

26.

27.

potential shortfall then this will be recommended and reported through
the budget setting process.

The Council has responded to some of the key issues raised in the
consultation and structured the scheme in such a way that benefits
those landlords and agents that are compliant and provides incentives
to improve compliance. This is reflected in the fees and charges
structure and the eligibility for licences.

The eligibility criteria and options for licencesare shown in Appendix
3.The main change is the proposed introduction of a 5 year licence for
landlords who are registered under the Council’s accreditation scheme.

Accreditation will be given to those landlords and agents who are
experienced, knowledgeable in their profession and are committed to
following the good practice principles set out in the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Private Rented Sector Code of Practice,
which was endorsed by the Minister of State for Housing and Planning
in July 2015 and is attached as an Appendix to the Report of
Consultation of the HMO licensing scheme.

Any differentiation applied to landlords and agents based on the
Eligibility Criteria, including the length of licence for which they may be
considered, is justified in furtherance of the overriding public interest of
improving the standard of HMOs and their management.

Conclusion

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

It is clear from the findings of the review that there have been some
positive successes with the introduction and delivery of the HMO
licensing scheme. Standards and management of HMOs have
improved since the scheme was introduced; however there is still more
that needs to be done to maintain these standards and build upon the
successes of the Scheme.

Perceptions of the scheme are generally positive and residents and
tenants, in particular can see clear improvements, 39% of respondents
were of the opinion that living conditions in HMOs have improved and
40% either strongly agreed or agreed that the licensing scheme has
improved HMOs.

It is however clear from the evidence issues that the scheme has still
not fully addressed the issues relating to poor management and the
condition of HMOs.

In addition, the evolving and buoyant housingmarket within Oxford has
resulted in the number of HMOs increasing year on year. This
underlines the need to maintain acontinued pressure to ensure that
standards do not decline and to provide better accommodation in this
sector.

Therefore additional licensing remains anappropriate solution for the
City. This approach is consistent with the priorities set within the
Council’'s Corporate Plan and Housing Strategy.

113



33. Asindicated above, it is planned that the licensing scheme should be
entirely self-financing so that all of the costs associated with operating
the scheme are covered by the fee structure. This will ensures that
there is no additional financial burden placed on the Council’s budget.

Level of risk - a risk register is attached as Appendix 4.
Environmental Impact

The option of ‘do nothing’ is likely to result in significant environmental
impacts, particularly when the Council will otherwise have a very limited ability
to maintain and improve HMO conditions, for example: energy efficiency and
thermal performance,waste management and household waste recycling.

Equality Impact Assessment— An EIA has been completed and attached as
an Appendix 5.

Name and contact details of author:-

Name: Adrian Chowns

Job title: HMO Enforcement Team Manager

Service Area / Department: Environmental Health, Planning and Regulatory
Services

Tel: 01865 252010 e-mail:achowns@oxford.gov.uk

114




=

=- v

=

&

g PR

S| OXFORD

é CITY
COUNCIL

Consultation of Additional Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation
2015

115



§_’
'-g A
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Contents
(00T | (=] o) 3PP 2
[ o) B = (U TSP 3
T o A -] o (=T 4
TaYd foTo [V o1 1 o] o [T 5
2ol ¢={ fo U1 Vo [PPSR 5
Y o F- L A 3 T 1YL TR 6
Key Findings from the ConSUIatioN .........coiiiiiiii i s s e e s 7
SUPPOIEING INFOMMATION L.eviiiiiiiiee e e e s e e st e e e e s ssbae e e e ssaeeeesnasraeeeanns 13
Consultation on LicenSiNg Of HIMOS .....ccoiuuiiiiiiiiie et sstrte et e st e e s ssaae e e e s aaae e e sssraeeennns 13
CONSUITAION RESUIES oeoieiiiee ittt e e ettt e e e st e e e e s s abteeeessnaaeeeessaeeeeennsraeeeanns 16
ONIINE QUESTIONNAIIES . .eviieeiiiieee ettt et ee e e e e e s et e e e s assasaeeessaaeeessssteeeessssaeeeessseeeeensreneeans 16
ROQA SHOW RESUILS ...ttt s ee e e st e e e et et e e s eata e e e e sasbeeaeesnsaaeesesraeeeennnaeeens 57
o Tol U € {o 10 ] o L U T TP 66
=Y aTe | o]0 KT 0T A== | £ PR 66
] 0T LT 0 USSR 69
(CT=T o 1T =1 I 0o T3/ 4 =T o} PSS 72
(@70 o Yol [ 1] o 13 PSS 74
oY 0T LY =To I 4 U o AU SR 77
YT T o I 8 =T =SSR 77
VT =q1 o111 YA O =1 - TSR 81
LM ATIONS e e 84
=1 0 o o1 =T 0 o 1=1 o 1 SR 84
DAY 01T 0T Lol =T3S SURRS 85
2

116



§_’
'-'é AN
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
List of Figures
= U Rl oo 1S (oo Lo [T [T SRR 16
Figure 2 — Awareness of licenSiNg SChEME ......ooiiiiiii e e 17
Figure 3 — Comparison of Knowledge of Scheme by Postcode .........cccoevuiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiee e, 18
FIBUIE 4 — STatUS ..o s e e e s e s e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e nenns 19
Figure 5 — Relationship between Status and POStCOAE ........ccuiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecce e 20
Figure 6 — Comparison between numbers of HMOs owned by Landlords by Postcode.................... 21
Figure 7 — Comparison of responses to number of HMOs owned by Status ........cccccceevvviieeeinnnenn. 22
Figure 8 — Number of HMOs managed by @geNnts........cccuiiiiiiieiiiiiiiee e cseee e e 22
Figure 9 — Comparison of numbers of HMOs managed by Postcode.........ccccocvuveiiviiiieiiiiiieeeceienn, 23
Figure 10 — Comparison of responses to numbers of HMOs managed by Status..........ccccceeeenneen.. 24
Figure 11 — Personal Experience of Living in @ HMO .......ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiee s 25
Figure 12 — Responses to problems experienced living in a HMO by status.......c.cccccceeeiviiieeecnnnnnn. 26
Figure 13 — Experience of problems living in @ HMO by Status.........cccoeviviieeviiien e, 27
Figure 14 — Poorly managed refuse in HIMOS .....ccciuei ittt ee e e aaeee s 29
Figure 15 — RESPONSES DY StAtUS.....uuiiiiiiiiii e e s st e e e e e e e st e e e e e e e e e nnnraeaeeeeeas 30
Figure 16 — Breakdown of scores from 110 10......cceeiiiieiiiiiiiieiee et e e e e ee e 30
Figure 17 —Empty unattended HMOS ...cooo oottt e e et e e e e e e ennraeeeae e 31
Figure 18 — RESPONSES DY SLATUS .....uviiiiieiie ittt e e s et e e e e e e e s e r e e e e e e s e e ennnntaeneeeeens 32
Figure 19 — Breakdown of scores from 110 10.....ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiee e e e e e eee e 33
Figure 20 — Poor property CONAItIONS ...ueiiiiie ettt e e e e e ee e e e e e e s e e ennraeaeeeeeas 34
Figure 21 — RESPONSES DY STATUS....uuuviiiieiiii it e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e s e s nnnraeneeeeeas 35
Figure 22 — Breakdown of scores from 110 10.....ccouiiiriiiiiiiiieei e e e e e nareeeee e 36
Figure 23 — Poor external appearance of HMOS......c.ooo et 37
Figure 24 — ReSPONSES DY SEALUS ....cuuiiiiiiiiee e et e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e ennntaeaeeeeens 38
Figure 25 — Breakdown of scores from 110 10.......ccciiiiiiiiiiiiieiee e e e e 39
Figure 26 — OVEIrgroWN BarUENS. .. ..uuuuiieeeeeeeeciciieeeeeieeeeecinttereeeeeeeesaansrraeeeeesesesassseseeeesssesaasssssneeeees 40
Figure 27 — Responses by status — OVErgrown ardens ........cceeeeeeeecceiiieeeeeeeeeecciieeee e e e e e e scnreeeeee e 41
Figure 28 — Breakdown of scores from 1 t0 10......cceeiiiieiiiiiiiieiee e e e e ee e 41
FIBUIE 29 — INUISANCE .. ciiiiiiiee e e eeeeeie e e e e e e et ettt ee e e e e e e e et e ta i aaeeeeeeeeaesaaa e eeeeeeeaessanansseeeeeseenssnnnnsaneeennnes 42
Figure 30 — ResSponses DY Status = NUISANCE .....uuvieeieeieiieiiiieeeee e e eecccirree e e e e e e eerbrereeeeeeeeesanrrereeeeens 43
Figure 31 — Breakdown of scores from 110 10.....cceiiiiiieiiiiiiieeeiee et eeeerrrreee e e e e e e earreeeeee e 43
Figure 32 — Anti-SOCial DENAVIOUT .....uvveeiiiiiieee e e e e e et reae e 44
Figure 33 — ReSPONSES DY SEAtUS — ASB ......ccoiiiiiiieiee ettt e eeeerrree e e e e e e eeatraeeeeeeeeeeenanrrereaeeens 45
Figure 34 — Breakdown of scores from 110 10 — ASB........uuveeiiiiiiiiiiiiireeeee e eertrreee e e e eeecinrreeeeee s 45
Figure 35 — Poorly managed HMOS iN @I a .......uueeeeeeeeeiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeiecinrreeeeeeeesesnrneeeeeeeeeesssnnrseneseeens 47
Figure 36 — Poorly Managed HMOS DY StatUS ........eeciiiieiiiiieeiiieee et e e e e enrreeeee e 48
Figure 37 — HMOs maintained to good standard in @rea .......ccccccoeeeervrveeieeeeeieriireeeee e 49
Figure 38 — Responses to HMOs maintained to good standard by status .........ccccceeeeeeeeeiccinvreeennnnn. 50
Figure 39 — Living conditions have iMProVEd ...........ccoiiiieeiei ettt e e eearreeeee e 51
Figure 40 — NO ProbIEMS iN Gr8a......uuveeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e et ee e e e e eereearreeeeeeeesesssbsaeeeeeeseessssssrrereaeeens 52
Figure 41 — Licensing scheme has improved HMOS iN @rea .........cooveuvrveeieeeeeieiiiiineeeeeeeeeeeeennnreeeneeens 53
Figure 42 — Licensing has Made N0 diffEreNCe.. ...t e 54
3

117



§_’
'-g AN
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 43 —Renew the licensing scheme for a further 5 years .......cccccovvieeiiniiiii e, 55
Figure 44 — Applicable Cat@BOIIES ...uuuiiiiei i e e e e e e s e s rreeeaeeeas 56
Figure 45 — ReSpoNSses DY POSTCOAE ... ..ouiiiiieee e e e e e 57
Figure 46 — KNoWIedge Of SCNEME.........uiii it s e e e aaae s 58
(U A - 1 (U T TP 59
Figure 48 — Problems experienced by occupiers of HMOS............cccoieieiiiiee e 60
Figure 49 — Problems with HMOS iN @r@a ......c..uuiiiiieei it e e e e nnaneeeae e 61
Figure 50 — Problems with Poorly Managed HMOS.............uoeeeiieiieicciiieeeee e ne e 62
Figure 51 — HMO maintained to @ g0od standard ..........cccuvviieiiii e 62
Figure 52 — Living Conditions in HMOs have improved .........cccccceieieiiiieeeee e eercerveeeee e 63
Figure 53 — NO problems WIith HIMOS..........oo ittt e e e e e e s e snnareeeee e 63
Figure 54 —The licensing scheme has improved HMOS .........ccooeiieiiciiiieiee e 64
Figure 55 — Licensing scheme has made no difference at all ........cccccuvrrmrieeiiiiciii e, 64
Figure 56 — Renew the Scheme for a fUrther 5 Years ........cccccuieeicciiee e 65
FiBUIE 57 — StatemMENES oo 66
Figure 58 — NLA report on CoSst Of lICEBNSING .....uviiiiiieeiiiieceeee et e e e e ee e 78
List of Tables
Table 1 — Key results from Landlords SWOT @nalysis .........eeeeeiiiieiiiiiiiieiee et secevree e e e e e 9
Table 2 —R0Ad SHOW [0CATIONS. ......iiiiiiiiie ittt e e st e e et e e e s sareeeas 14
1T o] L Y AV @ 1 Y o = Y L3 U 67
Table 4 — Results of StUdENt FOCUS GrOUP ......uuiiiiiiieeiieicciitieee e et e e e e e crrer e e e e s e e e s nnaaeeeeeeees 70
Table 5 — Proposed FEE SLIUCLUIE .....uiiiiee ittt e e e e e e s e r e e e e e e s e s nnraaeeeeeeens 80
Table 6 — Eligibility Criteria for Proposed SChemME..........eeuviiiiieiie e 81
4

118



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Introduction

This report provides the findings of the consultation carried out as part of the proposal to renew
the HMO Licensing Scheme in operation in Oxford post January 2016. It sets out the responses and
key findings of the 10 week statutory consultation which started on the 12" June 2015 and
concluded on the 24™ August 2015.

In order to understand the complete picture relating to the licensing of HMOs in Oxford it should
be read in conjunction with the report on the review of HMO licensing produced by the Council in
June 2015.

Background

Additional Licensing in Oxford provides a mechanism to secure the improvement of all of the HMO
stock in the City and is a significant undertaking by the Council. When it was first introduced the
overall purpose of the licensing scheme was to: ‘alleviate the housing situation by setting and
maintaining minimum standards across the city in the most vulnerable sector of Oxfords private
rental market’.

This is also a major contributing factor to the Councils Corporate priority of ‘Meeting Housing
Need’ by the number of HMO Licence inspections carried out and by improving conditions in the
Private Rented Sector.

The Additional Licensing scheme, introduced in the City in 2011 and 2012, runs for a period of 5
years. This creates a situation where Phase 1 and Phase 2 will expire on different dates (Phase 1 on
the 24™ January 2016 and Phase 2 on the 31% January 2017).

Under section 60 of the Act, the Local Authority must “from time to time” review the operation of
the designation and if it is appropriate to do so then they may revoke the designation.

In 2014/15 the Council undertook a review of the HMO Licensing scheme which recommended
that, post 2016 the Scheme be renewed in its entirety to cover the whole of the City. The two
phases of the scheme will be aligned and therefore the expiry date of the proposed new scheme
will be the 25 January 2021. This will simplify the system for the Council and customers and
reduce the financial burden associated with having to revoke Phase 2 of the scheme and re-
advertise the new designation for the whole scheme.

In June 2015 the City Executive Board approved these recommendations and approved the
commencement of the 10 week statutory consultation, which is now complete.

119



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

What is a HMO?

An HMO (House in Multiple Occupation) is defined in Sections 254 and 257 of the Housing Act
2004. An HMO can be a building or part of a building if it is:

e Occupied by persons who form more than one household, and where those persons share
(or lack) one or more basic amenities, such as a WC, personal washing and cooking
facilities.

e A converted building containing one or more units of accommodation that do not consist
entirely of self-contained flats. (There is no requirement that the occupiers share facilities)

e A converted building consisting entirely of self-contained flats, where the building work
undertaken in connection with the conversion did not comply with the 1991 Building
Regulations and more than one third of the flats are occupied under short tenancies.

The HMO must be occupied by more than one household:

e As their only or main residence
e As arefuge by persons escaping domestic violence
e During term time by students

In all cases:

e Occupation of the living accommodation must be the only use of that accommodation
e Rents are payable or other considerations are provided

Under the Housing Act 2004, a household comprises:

e Asingle person
e Co-habiting couples (whether or not of the opposite sex)

e Afamily (including foster children and children being cared for) and current domestic
employees.

Certain types of buildings will not be HMOs for the purpose of the Housing Act. They are:

e Buildings, or parts of buildings, occupied by no more than two households, each of which
comprise a single person only (for example, two person house or flat shares)

e Buildings occupied by a resident landlord with up to two tenants

e Buildings managed or owned by a public sector body, such as the police, local authority,
registered social landlords, fire and rescue authority and the NHS

e Buildings occupied by religious communities

120



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e Student halls of residence where the education establishment has signed up to an
Approved Code of Practice
e Buildings occupied entirely by freeholders or long leaseholder.

Key Findings from the Consultation

Online questionnaires

e Of the 97 people that completed the online questionnaire, 29 (30%) were Home Owners,
27 (28%) were Landlords or owners of HMOs, 13% were Letting or Managing Agents and
9% were tenants who were living, or had lived in a HMO in the past 5 years in Oxford.

o 49% lived in OX4 area, 20% in OX3, 13% Outside of the City, 12% in OX2 and 6% in OX1.

e 98% of respondents were aware of the Scheme.

e 70% of the responses made regarding problems experienced living in HMOs were from
Tenants and Students.

e The biggest concerns raised by people living in HMOs were difficulties getting repairs done,
lack of contact with the Landlord/Agent, problems associated with certificates, and deposit
issues.

e 36% of residents reported serious concerns with poorly managed refuse/untidy
overflowing bins in HMOs

e 31% of residents raised less concern about empty unattended HMOs

e 36% of respondents raised concerns about HMO property conditions

e 49% raised serious concerns about external property conditions

e 51% responded to the issue of overgrown gardens indicating it was a problem in the area
where they live

e 36% and 39% of residents did not have any major concerns about nuisance and ASB
respectively from HMOs

e 53% of respondents either strongly agreed or agreed that there are poorly managed
HMO's in the area of Oxford where they live

e There was a slight difference of opinion between landlords and home owners regarding
whether HMOs are maintained to a good standard. 35% either strongly agreed or agreed
that HMO's are maintained to a good standard whereas 31% felt that this was not the case
and either strongly disagreed or disagreed.

e 39% of respondents felt that living conditions in HMOs have improved and 40% either
strongly agreed or agreed that the licensing scheme has improved HMOs.

e 36% either strongly disagreed or disagreed that there were no problems with HMOs.

121



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

e 48% of respondents strongly agreed that the licensing scheme should be renewed for a
further 5 years. 17% strongly disagreed, 16% agreed and 12% disagreed.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e The top four reasons for disagreeing with the renewal of the scheme were the Council
should punish rogue landlords more, fees for a licence should be reduced and the process
simplified and longer licences are needed.

Road shows

e 112 people completed a questionnaire during the City wide road shows with 48%
indicating they were Home Owners, 15% a Tenant in a rented property that is not a HMO,
9% Home Owner and Landlord, 9% Tenant living in a HMO, 7% Living outside Oxford, 5%
Living with parents in Oxford, 4% a Landlord, 2% Students and 1% a Letting or Managing
Agent.

e 46% of respondents were from the OX4 area, 29% OX3, 12% outside the City, 10% in OX2
and 4% in OX1.

e Overall 50% of people who completed a questionnaire were aware that the Scheme
existed in Oxford.

e The biggest concerns raised by people living in HMOs were fear of reporting repairs for
being evicted (13%), deposit issues (15%), lack of contact with landlord/agent (15%), and
difficulties getting repairs done (19%).

e The top four problems with HMOs in an area where respondents lived were overgrown
gardens (25%) poorly managed refuse (23%), poor property conditions (21%), and poor
external appearance of HMOs (20%).

e 31% of respondents either strongly agreed or agreed that there were poorly managed
HMOs in the area where they live

e 27% agreed or strongly agreed that HMOs are maintained to a good standard, with 47%
providing a neutral response and 26% strongly disagreeing or disagreeing.

e 20% of respondents either strongly agreed or agreed that living conditions in HMOs have
improved. 69% were neutral and 12% strongly disagreed or disagreed.

e 46% agreed or strongly agreed that there were not any problems with HMOs in the area
where they live and 28% strongly disagreed or disagreed. 26% were neutral.

e 70% of people provided a neutral response to the question of whether the licence scheme
has improved HMOs in their area whilst 24% strongly agreed or agreed and 7% strongly
disagreed or disagreed.

e Similar high levels of neutral responses (62%) were received to the question of whether the
licensing scheme has made no difference at all with 13% either strongly agreeing/agreeing.
26% felt that they strongly disagreed or disagreed with this statement.

122



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e 46% strongly agreed and 26% agreed with the proposal to renew the Scheme in its entirety
for a further 5 years. 11% provided a neutral response and 17% either strongly disagreed

or disagreed.

e The top four reasons for disagreeing with the renewal of the scheme were the Council
should punish rogue landlords more (33%), fees for a licence should be reduced for
complaint landlords (27%) and the process simplified, longer licences and HMOs are

managed better all scoring 13%.

Focus Groups

Landlords

A summary of the key responses provided by Landlords is found below in Table 1. The full SWOT

analysis can be found at Appendix 1.

Table 1 - Key results from Landlords SWOT analysis

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES

Reputation of Scheme — something to be proud
of and raises standards and improves safety.
Communication — has improved over time and
information provided has improved.

Two way communication

Help to tackle rogue landlords

More information on location and status of
HMOs

Morning clinic for advice and information

Expensive for good landlords
Licence period too short

Too much paperwork

Lack of consistency

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS

Lack of housing

Over regulation
Bureaucracy

‘Rogues’ ignoring scheme

Agents

A focus group was held with agents and below is a summary of the key comments and views from
the group. The full set of responses can be found at Appendix 2.

e ‘“raising standards is what we all want”

e Support for raising the bar for 5 year licences

123




3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e “Make it easier for us”

e Introduce “service standards”

e “evolve the processes and procedures used in HMO to cater for the needs and preference
of its customers”

e The Council should charge for accreditation training

e All good landlords have been paying since the beginning of the Scheme

e Link 5 year licences to ‘gold’ standard OCLAS accreditation

e Introduce ‘audit’ checks for 5 year licence holders

e Provide ‘account managers’ as direct point of contact for agents/large portfolio landlords

Students

A focus group was held with students from Oxford University and below is a summary of their
responses. The full set of responses can be found at Appendix 3.

Mixed experience of living in HMOs — some reported good where “landlord has British Gas
cover...” and others that “agents is very responsive but the landlord is not so good” to, “difficult to
get repairs done” and “sometimes challenging”.

Management issues identified included good practice with one case where “cleaner comes in
every week and written into tenancy agreement that a management inspection is completed
every 6 months” to “inspection every few months but we have to clean communal areas” to “no
management inspections....when report issues agent doesn’t care... communication is not good”.

Most students had low expectations and had “heard a lot of horror stories from friends”. Clear
discriminatory approach by agents who have a “just students” mentality and have different offices
for students and working professionals. Scaremongering and made to feel under pressure in taking
on a property were common themes.

One student reported a change due to the introduction of the licensing scheme because their
landlord had asked them to test fire alarms regularly.

More work could be done with students to improve understanding and the requirements of HMO
licensing.

General Comments

In addition to the questionnaire and focus group results a number of individuals and organisations
submitted comments via email and in writing. A summary of these is provided below.

124 10



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

National Landlords Association (NLA) — The NLA submitted a document with 14 points in response
to the proposal for additional licensing, which can be found at Appendix 4.

The Residential Landlords Association (RLA) — The RLA submitted a consultation response raising 6
general concerns and 6 specific concerns with regard to the following:

e Government review of HMO Licensing
¢ Independent verification of data

e Room sizes

e Standards

e (Costs

e Accreditation

The full response submitted by the RLA is provided at Appendix 5.

The Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) - The CAB submitted additional information regarding issues they
have come across as part of their caseload when dealing with private rented sector tenants in
HMOs, which is attached at Appendix 6.

Some of the key concerns raised included:

e Poorly managed properties where health risks caused by disrepair are not addressed
e Retaliatory evictions as a result of complaints
e Failure to protect and return deposits

e Frauds and scams around availability of private rented accommodation

Members from Oxford Community Forum (OCF) submitted a written response to the consultation
highlighting the following:

e Accreditation should be made easy and criteria should be certified

e Lack of awareness among landlords re: HMO licensing and accreditation
e Accreditation licence period of 3 to 5 years for accredited landlords

e HMO applications need to be simplified

e More flexibility required when applying standards

e Better cohesion between officers

e Provide guidelines for landlords

e General attitude of staff needs to be improved

125 H



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e Rogue landlords should be pursued and targeted
e Tenants should be held accountable and responsible
e Subletting is a problem and not always the landlords fault

The full response from OCF can be found at Appendix 7.

A tenant from a licensed HMO in Magdalen Road submitted a written response which has been
summarised below.

e There have been a few inspections by the Council over the last few years

e One recommendation was that there should be new kitchen facilities

e The new facilities are much better than, previously, so | am satisfied with that aspect
e New central heating also fitted

e Previous heating was adequate and now | have to pay higher heating costs

e Recommend that in future tenants are consulted on living conditions and proposed works
explained

A letter was also received from Wolvercote Neighbourhood Forum which raised a number of
problems they had experienced in the Wolvercote ward, in particular:

e Over development of HMOs resulting in run down appearance due to poor state of
presentation and repair of some HMOs

e Insufficient space and facilities for tenants of HMOs

e Community integration issues

e Additional vehicles

e Multiple wheelie bins

e Increased risk of fire and other hazards

The full response from WNF can be found at Appendix 13.

126 12



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Supporting Information

Consultation on Licensing of HMOs

Additional Licensing of HMOs has been in operation in Oxford since 2011 and the Council has
recently conducted a review of the Scheme and produced a report that was submitted to the City
Executive in June 2015 with recommendations to consult on the renewal of the scheme in its
entirety from the 12 June to the 24™ August 2015.

The Council has completed the consultation in line with the statutory requirements laid down by
Government and the full sets of results are provided in this report.

Purpose

The Council conducted the consultation in accordance with the requirements laid down by
Government and the Housing Act 2004 so that ‘all persons likely to be affected by the proposals’
could make their views known to the Council before it submits a report to the City Executive Board
setting out proposals for the structure of the new designation in October 2015.

Methodology

To offer as many people the opportunity to put forward their views about the impact of the
current scheme and proposals for the new designation the Council used as range of consultation
techniques.

A questionnaire was developed to determine the status of the person responding and included a
series of statements and questions focusing on three key areas:

e Conditions of HMOs
e Management of HMOs
e Impact of HMOs

Respondents were asked to indicate on a range of levels and scores about these areas.
The questionnaire was made available on Oxford City Council's website and on websites in the
neighbouring authorities.

In addition to the online questionnaire a series of ‘road shows’ were carried out by officers
throughout the City. Details are provided in Table 2 below.

127 13



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Table 2 — Road show locations

LOCATION DATE

Clarendon Centre and Jericho area — Walton 23" June 2015
Street
Rose Hill — Courtland Road and Templars Square 24" June 2015
Barton — Underhill Circus (nr. Neighbourhood 25" June 2015
Centre) and Headington — London Road
Woodfarm — Atkyns Road and Blackbird Leys — | 29" June 2015
Blackbird Leys Road
Summertown — Banbury Road/Oakthorpe and 30" June 2015
Marston — Old Marston Road

East Oxford — Cowley Road nr. Manzil Way 1% July 2015
Botley — La Marsh Road 2" July 2015
Cowley Library 27" July 2015
Oxford Central Library 27" July 2015
Headington Library 28" July 2015
Blackbird Leys Library 29" July 2015

In total the Council received 209 completed questionnaires. 97 through the online option and 112
from the City wide road shows. This is an excellent response for this type of approach and exceeds
the numbers by four times for the levels the Council received when consulting on its budget in
2014. This clearly shows that HMOs are a major concern for tenants and residents of Oxford and
those living outside the City.

Targeted consultation of stakeholder groups was also carried out to capture the views of specific
interest groups, namely landlords, agents and students.

A Landlord Information Exchange (LIE) was held on the 21 July 2015 at the Kassam Stadium and
around 80 landlords and agents attended out of the 150 that had originally registered for this
event. A series of presentations were given and attendees were split into four groups to conduct a
Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) analysis facilitated by members of the
HMO Enforcement and Licensing Teams. The full set of slides and results from the SWOT analysis
are provided at Appendix 8.

A further landlord information exchange was held at the Town Hall in Oxford on the morning of
the 5% August 2015 and 15 landlords and agents attended out of the 25 that had registered. A
summary of the presentations used at the previous event was provided to attendees and a similar

128 1



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

SWOT analysis was conducted. The results of this analysis were incorporated into the full set,
which has been provided at Appendix 1.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

A focus group was organised in partnership with local agents at the Council's offices in Oxford on
the 19™ August 2015 and 15 people attended from various agents around the City. The meeting
was an open debate around a number of defined issues and the results of this have been provided
further in this report.

The University of Oxford also arranged for the HMO Enforcement Team Manager to conduct a
focus group session with 10 students who had experience of living in HMOs in Oxford over the
past five years. The students group was used to gauge their experience of living in HMOs and to
see if there had been any impact on this through the introduction of the licensing scheme.

The Council was committed to ensuring that the consultation was targeted to a wider audience as
possible and used a variety of methods to promote the project and encourage responses. Poster
and flyers were distributed to all agents across the City during June and July and these were also
made available in the University schools, student welfare and union offices. Posters were also
distributed to other key external agencies such as Shelter, Crisis, Police and Oxfordshire County
Council. All emails sent out by the Environmental Health teams had signature banners promoting
the consultation and the landlord’s event at the Kassam Stadium. A full set of these have been
provided at Appendix 9.

A series of adverts were also placed in the local press detailing the date and location of the road
shows mentioned earlier. The LIE meeting was also advertised in the local press. Regular updates
about these events and general releases promoting the consultation were also put on the main
social media sites. Details of these have been provided at Appendix 10.

The Leader of the Council carried out a radio interview with BBC Radio Oxford to respond to issues
raised by the National Landlords Association and took the opportunity to encourage people to be
involved in the consultation.

Officers also attended the Town Parish Council Meeting to present some of the key findings of the
review report and to invite members to encourage their constituents to be involved in the
consultation. A series of meetings were also held with ward members and with resident and
tenants associations across the City.

129 =



Consultation Results

Online Questionnaires

Figure 1 — Postcode areas

Outside
these
Oxford City
Council
postcode
areas: 12
(13%)

b

oxmis| <
{20%)

)@—

- 0X2: 11
(129)

® Outside these Oxford City Council postcode areas @ OX1 @ OX2 © 0X3 @ 0X4

130

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The following provides the results from all of the approaches discussed above. The first set of
results, provided directly below, relate to those received from the questionnaires completed

The first question in the online questionnaire asked ‘Which postcode area of Oxford City Council
do you live in?’

As can be seen from Figure 1 below the majority of respondents (49%) were from the OX4 area of
Oxford. This is not surprising given that there is a large concentration of HMOs in this area. The
overall results are encouraging given that the approach of questionnaires can sometimes be
problematic in obtaining responses.

16



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Question 2 asked people if, before taking part in this consultation, were they aware that the
Council had introduced a licensing scheme for all HMOs in 2011.

Figure 2 provides the responses and as can be seen the overall majority of people (98%) were

aware of the existence of the scheme before taking part in the consultation. This should provide
the Council with some reassurance that the responses provided reflect the situation in the area,
particularly for those questions that relate to issues about the impact and future of the scheme.

Figure 2 — Awareness of licensing scheme

L NO: 2 (2%)

vEs: 85| L
(98%)

MO @ YES

A comparison was carried out to show the relationship between postcode areas and awareness of
the scheme to identify if the Council needs to raise awareness in certain areas of the City.

131 1



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Figure 3 below provides the results and shows that in all postcode areas there is a clear awareness

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

of the scheme including 13% from outside of the City. This is not surprising given that the Scheme
has been in operation since 2011 and the Council has made strenuous efforts to ensure there is an
awareness and understanding of its effect.

Figure 3 — Comparison of Knowledge of Scheme by Postcode

48%
50.00% -
45.00% -
40.00% -
35.00% -
30.00% -
25.00% - 20%
20.00% - 13% mYES
15.00% - 11% B NO
10.00% + 6% No answer
5.00% - 1% %
0.00% T T T T T
0X1 OX2 0X3 OX4 Outside
these
Oxford City
Council
postcode
areas

The next question required people to indicate which category best described them. This was used
to determine the status of people responding and to lead them to certain questions which were
more relevant for them to respond too depending on their response. For example where people
indicated they were a landlord or letting agent then they were directed to a specific question for
this group to also indicate how many HMOs they owned or managed.

Figure 4 below provides the results. The majority of responses were from residents/home owners
in Oxford (30%). The next highest response group was landlords/owners of HMOs at 28% then
Letting agents at 13%, closely followed by tenants of HMOs at 9%. Students and those living
outside the City made up around 5% respectively.

132 18



wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Clearly the categories tenants of HMOs (9%) and students (5%) could be considered the same as
they will both live in HMOs and if these response rates were incorporated then they would
constitute 14% of the total responses received.

Figure 4 — Status

30
28
26
24
22
20
18
16
14
12
10

[— T L R - - T -]

28
27
13
2]
&
5 5
3
3 [ [ (] ; %)
& o a & T o & 4
o & o & & N $° v‘?’p
& o & 4 @ " o @
& ¥ o F F & &° F
o K3 K. o o ~ & &
gg & & o \?.5-» & q’gt-
o [+] *\g {\g -.!_ S
& & o & & tod R
(3 & & o pe o
& & W& o® el .
& K & i &
o = - G &
b o\? o\? mi_
v\ﬂf“ & & & .&.@b
¥ & t-& o N
& & ¥ La
- & \a o
L \? L

User's response: Selected Option Label

A comparison of the relationship between status and postcode was also carried out to determine
the spread of responses in more detail. Figure 5 below shows the results and as can be seen the

spread reflects the numbers of responses received from the different target groups in each of the
postcode areas and is proportionate to the overall responses shown in Figures 1 and 4.

133

19



Figure 5 — Relationship between Status and Postcode

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

16.00%

14.00%

12.00%

10.00%

8.00%

6.00%

4.00%

2.00%

0.00%

0X1

0X2

0X3 OX4 Outside
these
Oxford
City
Council
postcode
areas

B Home owner living in Oxford

B Living with parents/ family in
Oxford

W Living outside Oxford

H A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford

M A tenant who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

m A student who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

" A tenant in a rented property that
is nota HMO

M A Letting or Managing Agent
responsible for properties in
Oxford

Other (please state below)

The following question, Question 4 was one of those that was targeted at a particular group of

people, in this case landlords. This question asked landlords or owners of HMOs to indicate how

many HMOs they owned in the City. The purpose of this, and question 5 shown below, was to try

and establish if there was any connection between the issue of management and the number of

HMOs owned/ managed by Landlords and Agents. All landlords who responded owned between 1

to 10 HMOs.

134

20



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

In order to determine the validity of the status of those who responded further analysis of the

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

responses to this question was carried out as shown in Figure 6 and 7 below. This confirms that
90% of the responses received were from landlords and that the majority live in the OX4 (15%)
and OX3 (6%) postcode areas. 5% of landlords also live outside of the Oxford City postcodes. It is
however worth noting, in all cases there was a clear reluctance on the part of landlords to provide
details of the number of HMOs they own with 68% returning a response of no answer.

Figure 6 — Comparison between numbers of HMOs owned by Landlords by Postcode

35%
35.00% -
30.00% -
25.00% -
20.00% - 14% 15%
15.00% 79% 79 m1to10
10.00% - 5% 4% 6% 5% m11to 20
5.00% 7 1% l_. l; 21t0 50
0.00% : : . : .
OX1 0OX2 0X3 OX4 Outside W50+
these ® No answer
Oxford
City
Council
postcode
areas

135 ot



Figure 7 — Comparison of responses to number of HMOs owned by Status

90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

90%

B Home owner living in
Oxford

® A landlord or owner of
HMOs in Oxford

Other (please state
below)

7%
3%

0.00%

1to 10 2t020 21to50 50+

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Similarly to question 4, agents were asked, in Question 5, to indicate how many HMOs they
managed. Figure 8 below provides the results. There is a clear difference between the numbers of
HMOs managed by agents with 44% reporting they managed between 1 to 10 HMOs and 39% in

excess of 50+ HMOs.

Figure 8 — Number of HMOs managed by agents

1.5

7.0

6.5

6.0

5.5

5.0

4.5

4.0

3.5

3.0

2.5

2.0

1.5

1.0

0.5

» a & By
N R o

User's response: Selected Option Label

136

22



wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Again further analysis of the responses to this question was carried out to determine the spread
across postcode areas and the results can be seen in Figures 9 and 10 below.

Figure 9 — Comparison of numbers of HMOs managed by Postcode

11%

=]
[\
I TR NN T T T S O T |

OX1 OoX2 OX3

ox4

Qutside
these
Oxford
City
Council
postcode
areas

m1to10
m11to 20

21to 50
B 50+

B No answer

Figure 9 above shows that there is a much larger number of HMOs managed by agents across the
City. It should also be noted that as with question 4, put to landlords, there is a clear reluctance on
the part of some agents to provide actual figures with 81% overall preferring not to answer.

137

23



wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 10 — Comparison of responses to numbers of HMOs managed by Status

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

39%

0.4 -

035 4

28%

0.3 A

0.25 -~

0.2 A
17%

0.15 A
11%

6%

0.05 -+ ‘
0 P m— D —_—_—

1to 10 11to 20 21-50 50+

B Home owner living in Oxford

W Living with parents/ family in
Oxford

M Living outside Oxford

m A landlord or owner of HMQs in
Oxford

B A tenant who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford
A student who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford
Atenantin a rented property that
is nota HMO

A Letting or Managing Agent
responsible for propertiesin
Oxford

Other (please state below)

Figure 10 above provides a comparison of responses to the numbers of HMOs managed by status
as a cross check. Not surprisingly this clearly shows that the majority of respondents were from
managing agents (73%) with a lower number (28%) of landlords responding as a managing agent.
If we include the response from landlords that also consider they are a managing agent then this
indicates that around 45% of ‘agents’ manage between 1 to 10 HMOs in Oxford and 39% manage
in excess of 50 HMOs each. This would suggest that there are potentially a large number of

landlords in Oxford that have small portfolios including less than 10 properties.

Question 6 was aimed at people who lived or have lived in a HMO in Oxford in the past five years.

Those who fell into this category were asked to indicate if they had personal experience of any of

the following:

e Fear of reporting repairs for being evicted
e Notice to quit for no apparent reason

e Unreasonable rent increase

e Deposit issues

e Lack of contact with landlord/agent

e Difficulties in getting repairs done

138

24



4

=

5

E A

% | OXFORD

E CITY
COUNCIL

e Intimidation

e Harassment

e Problems associated with certificates

e No HMO licence

e Uncertainty about who to report repairs

e Uncertainty about who to contact in an emergency
e No Problems

Figure 11 below provides the responses made to this question. The majority of respondents felt
that out of all the problems they encountered, difficulties in getting repairs done, was the worst. A
similar number indicated that there were no problems with HMOs for occupants, however
concerns were also raised about the lack of contact with the landlord/agent, deposit issues and
problems associated with certificates i.e. gas safety, fire and electrical. There were also problems
associated with no HMO licence and uncertainty about who to contact in an emergency.

Figure 11 - Personal Experience of Living in a HMO

9.0
8.5
8.0
7.5
T.0
6.5
6.0
5.5
5.0
4.5
4.0
3.5
3.0
2.5
2.0
1.5
1.0
0.5
0.0

User's response: Selected Option Label

139 %



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

This question was aimed at people who were likely to have experienced these problems when

living in a HMO in Oxford so it is important to note the breakdown of responses by status to this
question (Figure 12).

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

As can be seen below the majority of responses (70%) were from tenants and students that were
living or had lived in a HMO in the past five years in Oxford. A further 23% of responses were from
people living outside of Oxford, which could mean that they had previous experience of living in a
HMO and had subsequently moved out of the area. Further analysis was therefore carried out to
identify problems experienced by tenants, students and respondents living outside of Oxford,
which equates to 93% of the total number of respondents to this question. Figure 13 below
provides the findings from this further analysis.

Figure 12 — Responses to problems experienced living in a HMO by status

m Living outside Oxford

4% M A landlord or owner of
HMOs in Oxford

® Tenant in a HMO
4%

M Studentin a HMO

= A Letting or Managing
Agent responsible for
properties in Oxford

140 2



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 13 — Experience of problems living in a HMO by Status

¢ ) AR L. .
&S NG & (\gf‘ X M Living outside Oxford
2 )
&
« ‘?',\Qd M Tenant in a HMO
) .
\50"’  Studentin a HMO

This further analysis supports the overall findings that the biggest problems experienced living in a
HMO in Oxford is in getting repairs done. It also, however, suggests that there are problems
associated with certificates, lack of contact with landlord/agent and deposit issues. With the
exception of those that now live outside of the City around 6% also reported that there were no
problems experienced.

Question 7 asked all people to indicate on a scale of 0 to 10 (with 10 being the most severe) which

of the following problems they have experienced with HMOs in the area of Oxford where they live
or have lived.

e Poorly managed refuse/ untidy or overflowing bins/ excessive black sacks
e Empty unattended HMOs during term time/ height of summer

e Poor property conditions

e Poor external appearance of properties

e Overgrown gardens

e Nuisance

e Anti-social behavior

141 27



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

This question was open to all respondents irrespective of their status and they were asked to
provide a score for each of the problems that were applicable. Varying numbers of respondents
provided an answer to the different categories and in some cases not all respondents provided a
score. Where no answer was provided a zero was given based on the assumption that they did not
have any experience of these problems.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Further interrogation of the responses provided to this question was therefore carried out to

determine the percentage of people that scored 1 to 10, suggesting they had answered and had
some concerns about the category.

The status of the respondents was also determined because clearly each category provided will
affect different people in different ways which in turn is likely to influence the final ‘score’.

Figures 14 to 34 show the results in relation to each category, who responded and what score was
calculated.

The first category related to poorly managed refuse at HMOs and as can be seen from Figure 14
there were 78 (80%) people that responded to this question providing varying scores. 36%

provided a zero score suggesting that they did not have concerns with this category or that they
did not wish to answer the question.

142 2



=
3
g %
>
k-]
5 m-.
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 14 — Poorly managed refuse in HMOs
28
28
26
24
22
20
18
16
14
" 12
10 g
8
6
[
4 4
4 3 3 3 3 3
2
0
) [N 1 s L] % ® A % o 2

User's response: Score/Rating

The breakdown of respondents in Figure 15 below shows that the majority were from home
owners living in Oxford (30%) followed by letting or managing agents (9%) and landlords (8%).
Tenants who are currently living or have lived in a HMO in the past five years in Oxford made up
the next highest response.

143 2



Figure 15 — Responses by Status

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Poorly managed refuse/ untidy
or overflowing bins/ excessive
black sacks

0%

10% 20% 30%

40%

W A Letting or Managing Agent
responsible for properties in
Oxford

B A tenant in a rented property that
is nota HMO

B A student who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

m A tenant who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

® A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford

M Living outside Oxford

® Living with parents/ family in
Oxford

Home owner living in Oxford

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The analysis of scores from 1 to 10 is shown below in Figure 16. This ignores any zero scores so is

based on the proportion of responses where respondents indicated that there were concerns.

Using the findings from Figure 14 this is therefore based on a response rate of 65%.

Figure 16 — Breakdown of scores from 1 to 10

16%

14%

12%

N
A

o\

N\
wld IS N

2%

0% T T T T T T

—#— Poorly managed
refuse/ untidy or
overflowing bins/
excessive black sacks

30



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Figure 16 above suggests that out of those that responded around 36% have serious concerns
about poorly managed refuse at HMOs by providing a score of 6 or above for this category. The
remaining 29% provided a score of 5 or below indicating there was less concern.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

The next category people were asked to consider as part of this question related to the issue of
empty unattended HMOs and 72 (74%) participants responded. 51% provided a zero score
suggesting that they did not have concerns with this category or that they did not wish to answer
the question. Figure 17 below.

Figure 17 — Empty unattended HMOs

38 37
36

34
32
30
28
26
24
22
20
18
16
14
12
10

8
6
4 3 3 3
2
0

User's response: Score/Rating

The breakdown of respondents in Figure 18 below shows that the majority (24%) were from home
owners living in Oxford followed by letting or managing agents (9%), tenants who are currently
living or have lived in a HMO in the past five years in Oxford (6%) then landlords and tenants of
non HMOs.

145 3



Figure 18 — Responses by status

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

A Letting or Managing Agent
responsible for properties in
Oxford

A tenant in a rented property that
isnota HMO

M A student who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past5
years in Oxford

® A tenant who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

B A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford

M Living outside Oxford

| Living with parents/ family in
Oxford

B Home owner living in Oxford

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The analysis of scores from 1 to 10 is shown below in Figure 19 and as previously mentioned is
based on the proportion of responses where respondents indicated that there were concerns i.e.

provided a score of 1 to 10.

In this instance 49% of respondents scored between 1 and 10 for this category, the lowest out of
them all, with around 31% of those scoring 5 or less indicating that this is not a major concern for
them. The remaining 18% provided a score of 6 or more suggesting they have concerns about this

issue.

146

32



=£
3
E| oM
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 19 — Breakdown of scores from 1 to 10
12%
10%
8%
=4 Empty unattended
6% HMOs during term
time/ height of
4% W ’ summer
" ¥
0% I T T 1
7 8 9 10

This clearly suggests that generally there is not a problem with empty HMOs but there are
potentially some isolated cases where this happens and causes concern.

The next category to be considered related to poor conditions in HMOs and as can be seen from

Figure 20 below 76 (78%) people responded to this question. 21% provided a zero score
suggesting that they did not have concerns with this category or that they did not wish to answer

the question.

147

33



Figure 20 — Poor property conditions

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

16

16 -

15 -

14

13 -

12 -

11 -

10 -

-] L 1 ] L] b ] a A

© User's response: Scoref/Rating

To

The breakdown of respondents shown in Figure 21 below indicates that the majority (29%) were
from home owners living in Oxford followed by letting or managing agents (12%), tenants who are
currently living or have lived in a HMO in the past five years in Oxford (10%), landlords (8%) and

finally tenants of non HMOs and students (6% respectively).

148

34



(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 21 — Responses by Status

M A Letting or Managing Agent
responsible for properties in
Oxford

A tenant in a rented property that
is nota HMO

M A student who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past5
years in Oxford

m A tenant who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

B A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford

M Living outside Oxford

W Living with parents/ family in
Oxford

B Home owner living in Oxfard

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30%

The analysis of scores from 1 to 10 is shown below in Figure 22 and takes account of the

proportion of responses where respondents indicated that there were concerns, which in this case
was 78%.

There are clearly a number of concerns about this category but the majority of respondents (44%)
provided a score of 5 or less indicating that they are not a major concern for them. The remaining

36% provided a score of 6 or more suggesting they have serious concerns about property
conditions.

149 3



E
E| oM
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 22 — Breakdown of scores from 1 to 10
14%
- A A r
= \ |
o Y A
\ / \ / \ / =&=—Poor property
6% V conditions
\ / \¥/
0% T T | | | | | | 1
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Integral to the previous category the next area of concern was to do with the poor external

appearance of HMOs. This, together with the category about poorly managed refuse, resulted in
the highest proportion of responses at 80% (78 respondents). Figure 23 below provides the

breakdown. In this category 19% provided a zero score suggesting that they did not have concerns

with this category or that they did not wish to answer the question.

150

36



2

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

www.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 23 — Poor external appearance of HMOs

15

15 -

14

13 -

12 -

11 -

10

10 -

L

-] L 1 ] L] ] L] A k] -]

0 User's response: Score/Rating

The breakdown of respondents in Figure 24 below shows that the majority (35%) were from home
owners living in Oxford followed by letting or managing agents (11%), tenants who are currently
living or have lived in a HMO in the past five years in Oxford (9%), landlords (9%) and finally
tenants of non HMOs (5%) and students (4%).

151 37



E
E| oM
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 24 — Responses by status
m A Letting or Managing Agent
. responsible for properties in
Oxford
= A tenant in a rented property that
is nota HMO

B A student who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

B A tenant wha is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

M A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford

M Living outside Oxford

H Living with parents/ family in
Oxford

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

The analysis of scores from 1 to 10 is shown below in Figure 25 using the same approach as
previously mentioned. As can be seen there are a number of serious concerns with the vast
majority of respondents (49%) providing a score of 6 or higher.

The remaining 31% provided a score of 5 or less suggesting they have less serious concerns about

external appearance of HMOs. It is worth noting however, that 12% of those with less concerns
scored this category as a 5.

152 38



Figure 25 — Breakdown of scores from 1 to 10

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

14%

12%

10%

8%

6%

4%

2%

0%

A

/\ |

[

\ /

=—4—Poor external
appearance of

properties

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The next category related to the issue of overgrown gardens and 74 (76%) participants responded
to this issue (Figure 26 below). 19% provided a zero score suggesting that they did not have
concerns with this category or that they did not wish to answer the question.

153

39



14

13

12

11 -

10 -

=£
3
E A
& | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 26 — Overgrown gardens
14
10
9 9
2]
5] 5]
2
® " n o ® A % )

0 User's response: Score/Rating

The breakdown of respondents in Figure 27 below shows that the majority (30%) were from home
owners living in Oxford followed by landlords (12%), letting or managing agents (11%), tenants
who are currently living or have lived in a HMO in the past five years in Oxford (9%), and students

(6%).

154

40



Figure 27 — Responses by status — Overgrown gardens

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

0% 10% 20% 30% 40%

= A Letting or Managing Agent
responsible for propertiesin

Oxford
I A tenant in a rented property that

is nota HMO

m A student who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past 5

years in Oxford
B A tenant who is currently living or

has lived in a HMO in the past 5

years in Oxford
B A landlord or owner of HMOs in

Oxford
® Living outside Oxford

M Living with parents/ family in
Oxford

B Home owner living in Oxford

The analysis of scores from 1 to 10, shown below in Figure 28 indicates that there are a number of

serious concerns with the majority of respondents (51%) providing a score of 6 or more. The

remaining 31% provided a score of 5 or less suggesting they have less serious concerns about

overgrown gardens in HMOs.

Figure 28 — Breakdown of scores from 1 to 10

16%

14%

12%

10%

8%

—4—Overgrown gardens

6%

4%

2%

0% T T T T T T T T

41



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The penultimate category asked to considered as part of this question related to the issue of
nuisance and 76 (78%) participants responded to this issue (Figure 29 below). 37% provided a zero

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

score suggesting that they did not have concerns with this category or that they did not wish to
answer the question.

Figure 29 — Nuisance

29
28
21
26
25
24
23
22
21
20
19
18
17
16
15
14
13
12
1

28

-
=

[ T LTI PR S L - s -
i
i
Y

@ L 1 " -] % L] A B ]

User's response: Score/Rating

The breakdown of respondents in Figure 30 below shows that the majority (31%) were from home
owners living in Oxford followed by letting or managing agents (8%), tenants who are currently
living or have lived in a HMO in the past five years in Oxford (7%), landlords (5%) and finally
tenants of non HMOs (4%) and students (3%).

156 4



Figure 30 — Responses by status - Nuisance

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

1 A Letting or Managing Agent
responsible for propertiesin
Oxford

A tenant in a rented property that
is nota HMO

m A student who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

B A tenant who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past5
years in Oxford

B A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford

M Living outside Oxford

W Living with parents/ family in

0% 10% 20%

30%

40%

Oxford

The analysis of scores from 1 to 10 is shown below in Figure 31 indicates that the highest

proportion scored 5 with the overall majority of respondents (36%) providing a score of 5 or less.

The remaining 28% provided a score of 6 or more suggesting they have some serious concerns

regarding nuisance from HMOs.

Figure 31 — Breakdown of scores from 1 to 10

10%

9%

A

\
AN /N \

\ /

6%
NV

>
NV

== Nuisance

4%
3%

2%

1%

0% . |

43



wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The final category in this question related to the issue of anti-social behaviour (ASB) and 77 (79%)
participants responded to this issue (Figure 32 below). 42% provided a zero score suggesting that
they did not have concerns with this category or that they did not wish to answer the question.

Figure 32 — Anti-social behaviour

32

30

28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

32

User's response: Score/Rating

The breakdown of respondents in Figure 33 below shows that the majority were from home
owners living in Oxford (30%) followed by letting or managing agents (8%), tenants who are
currently living or have lived in a HMO in the past five years in Oxford (5%), landlords (5%) and

finally tenants of non HMOs (4%).

158

44



Figure 33 — Responses by status — ASB

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

0% 10% 20%

30%

W A Letting or Managing Agent
responsible for properties in
Oxford

M A tenant in a rented property that
is nota HMO

A student who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

B A tenant who is currently living or
has lived in a HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford

B A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford

W Living outside Oxford
M Living with parents/ family in
Oxford

B Home owner living in Oxford

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The analysis of scores from 1 to 10 is shown below in Figure 34 taking account of the proportion of
responses where respondents indicated that there were concerns, which in this case was 58%. As
can be seen the highest proportion scored 1 with the overall majority of respondents (39%)
providing a score of 5 or less. The remaining 19% provided a score of 6 or more suggesting they

have some serious concerns about ASB in relation to HMOs.

Figure 34 — Breakdown of scores from 1 to 10 — ASB

12%

8%

6%

!

4%

2%

0% T T T T

\ / \ / == Anti social behaviour

45



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The next question, question 8, asked people to what extent do you agree or disagree with the
following statements:

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e There are poorly managed HMOs in the area of Oxford where I live

e HMOs are maintained to a good standard in the area of Oxford where | live

e Living conditions in HMOs have improved

e We don't experience any problems with HMOs in the area of Oxford where | live
e The licensing scheme has improved HMOs in the area of Oxford where I live

e The licensing has made no difference at all

Again this question was open to all stakeholders and the results provided below in Figures 35 to 42
shows the responses received to these statements on a scale from strongly agree to strongly
disagree. Where possible, cross tabulation has also been carried out to show the status of
respondents to take account of different views from the range of target groups.

The first category in this question asked people to indicate how strongly they agreed or disagreed
with the statement that there are poorly managed in the area where they live. 87 (89%) of
participants responded to this question and as can be seen from Figure 35 below 46 (53%) of
respondents either strongly agreed or agreed with this statement. 23% of respondents provided a
neutral response and 24% either disagreed or strongly disagreed.

160 8



Figure 35 — Poorly managed HMOs in area

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

25
21
20
11
10
@-’z’ &e- @'\ &e- ﬂe-'z'
¥ && o5 2

User's response: Rating Label

The majority of responses to this statement were made by Home owners living in Oxford (32%).
Landlords also made a significant proportion of respondents (24%) followed by Letting/Managing
Agents (14%) and to a lesser extent Tenants living in HMOs (9%) and finally students (6%). Figure

36 below.

Not surprisingly there is a difference of opinion about this statement with around 10% of landlords
strongly disagreeing to almost 15% of home owners strongly agreeing. Letting agents and tenants
also agree with this statement (7% and 4% respectively). Around 3% of landlords also agree that
there are poorly managed HMO in Oxford.

161 4



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 36 — Poorly Managed HMOs by Status

35% -
B Home owner living in Oxford
30%
H A landlord or owner of HMOs in
25% - Oxford
20% - B A tenant who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford
15% - -
H A student who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
10% - years in Oxford
M A tenant in a rented property that
5% - B is nota HMO
0% - v A Letting or Managing Agent
Strongly Agree  Neutral Disagree Strongly responsible for properties in Oxford
Agree Disagree

The next statement sought views from people on how strongly they agreed or disagreed that
HMOs are maintained to a good standard in the area where they live.

86% of participants responded to this with 35% indicating that they either strongly agreed or
agreed with this statement. A large proportion of respondents (33%) responded with a neutral
answer whilst 31% indicated that they either strongly disagreed or disagreed that HMOs are
maintained to a good standard in their area. The full set of results can be seen in Figure 37 below.

162 8



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 37 - HMOs maintained to good standard in area

28
28

26
24
22 51
20
18
18

16
14

12

10 g

User's response: Rating Label

Figure 38 below provides the breakdown of responses to this statement by status. As can be seen
there is a similar difference of opinion to that encountered with the previous statement, in that
home owners strongly disagree or disagree with this statement whereas landlords either strongly
agree or agree. In this instance, agents also agree with this statement, however there are also a
large proportion of landlords and home owners who responded with neither agree or disagree.

163 9



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 38 — Responses to HMOs maintained to good standard by status

35.00% - o
B Home owner living in Oxford
30.00%
W Living outside Oxford
25.00% -
H A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford
20.00% <
M A tenant who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
15.00% - years in Oxford
m A student who is currently living or
10.00% -+ has Ilv_ed ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford
" A tenant in a rented property that
500% - is nota HMO
M A Letting or Managing Agent
0.00% - responsible for propertiesin
Strongly Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly Oxford
Agree Disagree

The next statement to be considered was that of whether there was agreement or disagreement
that living conditions in HMOs had improved. The results in Figure 39 below show that 90% of
participants responded to this question and 39% either strongly agreed or agreed. The majority of
respondents (48%) provided a neutral response to this question and 14% either strongly disagreed
or disagreed that living conditions had improved.

164 >0



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 39 - Living conditions have improved
Y]
42
40
38
36
34
32
30
28
26
24
22
20
18
16
14
12
10

42

24

10

= M &

b
d L € ® »

User's response; Rating Label

Participants were asked to indicate if they agreed or disagreed that there were no problems in
their area with HMOs. Figure 40 suggests that out of the 86 (89%) of respondents 36% either
strongly disagreed or disagreed with this statement. A further 35% returned a neutral answer with
29% agreeing or strongly agreeing that there were no problems with HMOs in their area.

165 >t



2

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

www.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 40 — No problems in area

28 -

26 -

24 -

22 -

20 -

18 -

16 -

14 -

12 -

10 -

,f 3 ¢°I° fi @'ﬁ;‘ eﬂf
e"ﬁ dﬁ

© User's response; Rating Label

Figure 41 below provides the numbers of responses made on the next statement. As can be seen
86 (89%) of people responded to this statement. 40% agreed or strongly agreed that the scheme
has improved HMOs in their area. Conversely 26% either disagreed or strongly disagreed with 35%
returning a neutral answer.

166 >



Figure 41 - Licensing scheme has improved HMOs in area

30 -
28
26 -
24 -
22 -
20 -
18 -
16 -
14 -
12 -

10 -

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

20

© User's response; Rating Label

The final statement participants were asked to indicate if they agreed or disagreed with was has

licensing made no difference at all.

Figure 42 below provides the findings and shows that out of the 87 (90%) of respondents 52%
either strongly disagreed or disagreed with this statement. A further 22% returned a neutral
answer with 26% agreeing or strongly agreeing that licensing had made no difference at all.

167

53



28

26

24

22

20

18

16

14

12

10

=
3
E| oM
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 42 - Licensing has made no difference
27
19
18
15
8
- & 5‘}& (& &
Lo o o . o
&523 & &
J &
5 &

User's response: Rating Label

The last two questions, questions 9 and 10 were linked to each other. Question 9 asked people to
indicate how strongly they agreed or disagreed with the proposal to renew the licensing scheme
for a further 5 years. 97 (100%) of participants responded to this question and the results are
shown below in Figure 43.

49% of respondents strongly agreed and 17% strongly disagreed with this proposal. Out of the
other two possible ratings 16% agreed and 12% disagreed with the proposal. 7% neither agreed
nor disagreed. Overall this would suggest that there is overwhelming support to renew the
scheme for a further 5 years with 65% either strongly agreeing or agreeing compared to 29%
strongly disagreeing or disagreeing.

168

54



RESEELES S

30
28
26
24
22
20
18
16
14
12
10

= ko o

=
3
E| oM
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 43 — Renew the licensing scheme for a further 5 years
47
15 16
12
7
W lﬁa" 'gmt' 'gt-cl it
-] EP ? E'-'m
& & 3 S
4 o )
o o o
L N &
{dg "—7\"
&
o

User's response: Selected Option Label

The final question was a follow on one for respondents to consider if they had either strongly

disagreed or disagreed with the proposal to renew the licensing scheme for a further 5 years in

question 9.

It asked people to indicate which of the following applies.

The scheme is no longer needed

169

HMOs in Oxford are managed better now than 5 years ago

55



e Longer licences are needed

e The fee for a licence should be reduced for compliant landlords
e The process is too bureaucratic and should be simplified

e The Council should punish ‘rogue’ landlords more

The results are shown in Figure 44 below.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The responses clearly indicate that the three key areas are that the Council should punish rogue
landlords more, reduced licence fees for compliant landlords and simplify the system. They
represent a larger proportion of responses than those who strongly disagreed or disagreed but

provide a clear steer for areas of concern.

Figure 44 — Applicable categories

38 37
36
34
32
30
28
26
24
22
20
18 17
16
14
12
10

32 3z

22

= M o & 88

User's response: Selected Option Label

170

56



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Road show Results

In addition to the online questionnaire a series of road sows were held where members of the
public were asked to answer the same questions. The responses provided below are based on 112

paper questionnaires that were completed on a face to face basis in the different parts of the City
indicated in Table 2.

Figure 45 below provides the results of responses by postcode and shows that a large proportion
came from the OX4 and OX3 areas.

Figure 45 — Responses by Postcode

mOX1

B OX2

mOX3

mOX4

m Qutside these Oxford City
Council postocde areas

In terms of knowledge of the scheme it appears that less people were aware of the existence of

the scheme than those who completed the online questionnaire with a 50% split being reported in
Figure 46 below.

171 >



=
3
E| AR
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 46 — Knowledge of Scheme
HYes
H No

Analysis of the response received regarding status of the people responding is provided in Figure
47 below which shows that 48% were homeowners living in Oxford, 15% tenants living in non
HMOs, 9% tenants living in HMOs and other, 7% living outside the City, 5% living with parents in
Oxford, 4% landlords, 2% students and 1% letting/managing agents.

These results are not surprising given that most of the road shows were held in public places
where there is likely to be a higher proportion of residents. The vast majority of people who

indicated they fell within the status of other were found to be landlords who also owned/managed
HMOs in Oxford.

172 >8



Figure 47 — Status

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

COUNC

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY

IL

50%

45%

40%

35%

30%

25%

20%

15%

10%

5%

0%

48%

[BEY
U
S

9%
7%

%

z %

9%

® Home owner living in Oxford

M Living with parents/family in Oxford

M Living outside Oxford

H A landlord or owner of HMOs in
Oxford

A tenant who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford.

m A student who is currently living or
has lived ina HMO in the past 5
years in Oxford.

= A tenant in a rented property that
is nota HMO

M A Letting or Managing Ageny
responsible for properties in
Oxford.

Other (please state below)

The next set of questions related to people providing personal experience of a number of

problems associated with HMOs.

Figure 48 provides the responses from those people who have lived or currently live in HMOs in
Oxford. The result show that the biggest problems were those relating to difficulties getting

repairs done, lack of contact with the landlord/agent, deposit issues and fear of reporting repairs

for being evicted.

173

59



Figure 48 — Problems experienced by occupiers of HMOs

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

20%

18%

16%

14%

12%

10%

8%

6%

A%

2%

0%

If you have indicated that you live or have lived
ina HMO in Oxford in the past 5 years then
please indicate whethe ryou have had peresonal

experience of any of the following?

M Fear of reporting repairs for
being evicted

M Notice to Quit for no apparent

reason

M Unreasonable rent increase

M Deposit issues

B |ack of contact with
landlord/agent

m Difficulties in getting repairs
done

M Intimidation
M Harrassment
 Problems associated with

certificates

B No HMO licence

M Uncertainty about who to report

repairs

M Uncertainty about who to
contact in an emergency

No problems

Figure 49 provides the overall responses given for the various statements regarding problems with

HMOs in the area where people live. As can be seen the biggest areas for concern were those

relating to overgrown gardens, poorly managed refuse, and poor internal and external property

conditions.

174

60



Figure 49 — Problems with HMOs in area

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Problems with HMOs in area
2594
25% 1 23%
21% 209%
20% 1 17%
15% - 13%
9%
10% -
5% -
0% : :
- = ) o ) 2 S
& & & & & &
&° ~¢é>¢o 0&& o & & &
5 ) € ¢ & N
S & A & S e
N & 2 & oy
S & X < 0 ()"0
) & & N
& &L ] R
& O >
) O X
e & o
(@% 6\2\ tej-
(o’b va 00
c}\\\ {&(‘ i
Q° &°
&
&

As previously mentioned in the analysis of the results from the online questionnaires a series of
statements were put to people to indicate if they strongly agreed or disagreed. These were
considered by people responding to the questions as part of the road shows and the results are

shown in the following figures.

Figure 50 below suggests that there are problems with poorly managed HMOs in Oxford with 41%
of people either strongly agreeing or agreeing with this statement compared to 26% strongly

disagreeing or disagreeing.

175

61



wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 50 — Problems with Poorly Managed HMOs
There are poorly managed HMOs in
the area of Oxford where | live
33.0%

35.0% 1 27:0%

30.0% -

%3'30?2 i 5 16.0%

15.0% - 10.0%

10.0% - M There are poorly managed
5.02/6 B HMOs in the area of
0.0% ! ! N ! ! ! Oxford where | live

ng,?/ &Q‘Qc S\‘;b ‘\Q’Q, %\Q‘%
% s %Q; .\c,;b .\;;b
DY Q Q
& q}\\
oS &
5\5

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Figure 51 below provides the results to the statement of whether HMOs are maintained to a good
standard in the area of Oxford where someone responding lives and clearly shows there are mixed
opinions with 27% strongly agreeing and agreeing and 26% strongly disagreeing and disagreeing.

47% of people also provided a neither agree or disagree response.

Figure 51 - HMO maintained to a good standard

HMO are maintained to a good
standard in the area of Oxford where
| live.

47 0%

M HMO are maintained to a
good standard in the area
of Oxford where | live.

176

62



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

The next statement put to people was whether or not living conditions in HMOs had improved.
The results are shown in Figure 52 below and indicate that 20% of people thought they had and
12% did not. A large proportion (69%) neither agreed nor disagreed with this statement.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 52 - Living Conditions in HMOs have improved

Living conditions in HMOs have
improved
69.0%
70.0% -
60.0% -
50.0% -
40.0% -
0, - 0,
10'0% 4 1.0% M Living conditions in HMOs
0.0% : . . - have improved
N
q,‘g?'a Qée?’ & & %ez’
%\\v LA &P Q_j\;;a
o A
‘3‘50 ,\0"\\%
CD'\.

The statement 2 we don’t experience any problems with HMOs in the area where | live was next
to be considered and again the results were varied. 46% of respondents thought that were no
problems with HMOs and 28% thought there were by wither strongly disagreeing or disagreeing to
this statement. 26% of respondents neither agreed or disagreed. Figure 53 below provides.

Figure 53 — No problems with HMOs

We don't experience any problems
with HMOs in the area where | live

35.0%
30.0%
25.0%
20.0%
15.0%
10.0%

5.0%

0.0%

B We don't experience any
problems with HMOs in
the area where | live

177 03



wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Continuing with the series of statements the net put to respondents was the licensing scheme has
improved HMOs in the area of Oxford where | live. Figure 54 clearly shows that large proportion of
people (70%) neither agreed or disagreed with this statement. The majority outside of the neutral

response agreed that the shemes had improved HMOs (24%) whislt 7% thought that it hadn't.

Figure 54 — The licensing scheme has improved HMOs

The licensing scheme has improved
HMGOs in the area of Oxford where |
live

80.0% 70:0%
60.0%
40.0% o
20.0% 5.0% 2.0% m The licensing scheme has
0.0% - i i i - _J improved HMOs in the
2 2 > e o grea of Oxford where |
‘\vg\‘?' vg}‘?‘ Y\"/&S 0.\:.;0%6 \c;b%@ live
& N\
© %
c;- ‘0{\
cj‘\.

The final statement for people to consider, shown in Figure 55, was the licensing scheme has
made no difference at all. 26% of people did not agree whilst 13% did. There was however, as with
the previous statement, a large proportion (62%) of people who neither agreed or disagreed.

Figure 55 - Licensing scheme has made no difference at all

The licensing scheme has made no
difference at all
70.0% - 02.0%
60.0% -
50.0% A
0, -
gggoﬁ | 22.0%
i Q
iggﬂ;‘g | G M The licensing scheme has
0.0% . . . . . made no difference atall
e [ 2 [ e
¢ & <& & &
\‘\??é A ‘\z‘\’ ) \@Q" ) \‘;a%
& Q Q
o S
& N
) ©
CD‘\.

178

64



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

The next question asked people how strongly they agreed or disagreed with the proposal to renew

the scheme for the next 5 years. Figure 56 clearly shows that the majority (46%) strongly agreed

with this proposal. Furthermore 26% also agreed supporting this approach outright. Only 17% of
respondents to this proposal indicated that they either strongly disagreed or disagreed.

Figure 56 — Renew the Scheme for a further 5 years

50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%

5%

0%

/ 46%
s

26%

11%

8% 2/

Strongly Agree
Agree

Neutral Disagree Strongly
Disagree

People who had indicated that they strongly disagreed or disagreed with the proposal to renew

the scheme for a further 5 years were asked to indicate which statement would apply. The

responses provided are set out in Figure 57 below. The top two biggest concerns were that people
thought the Council should punish rogue landlords more and the fee for the licence should be
reduced for compliant landlords

179 0



=£
3
g %
i
E| oM
% | OXFORD
E CITY
COUNCIL
Figure 57 — Statements
035 - 33%
_/ M The Scheme is no longer
03 27% needed
B HMOs in Oxford are managed
0.25 - better now than 5 years ago
m Longer license are needed
0.2 -
B The fee for a licence should be
0.15 - 13% 13% 13% reduced for compliant landlords
B The process is too bureaucratic
and should be simplified
0.1 -
m The Council should punish
'rogue’ landlords more
0.05 -
0

Focus Groups

As part of the targeted consultation a series of focus groups were held with stakeholders across
the City to capture the views of these specific groups who are likely to be operating under the
requirements of the scheme. These included 2 events with landlords and agents, a meeting with
students and a separate meeting with agents who predominantly manage HMOs in the City.

Landlords and Agents

The main thrust of the events held with Landlords and Agents was to conduct a SWOT analysis to
capture theirs on the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats in relation to HMOs and
the Licensing Scheme.

Table 3 below provides the common theme in each of the four parts of the SWOT analysis and the
full set of comments are provided as Appendix 1.

180 e



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Table 3 - SWOT Analysis

STRENGTHS WEAKNESSES

Reputation of Scheme — something to proud of | Expensive for ‘good’ landlords

Raises standards and improves safety — fire Licence period too short
Communication improved over time Lack of consistency

Flexibility — advice and practical tips and not Limited rewards for ‘good’ landlords
just regulation Council not coping with numbers
Information provided has improved Too much paperwork — form filling
Landlord events — spreads knowledge Financial burden on tenants
Improves tenants confidence Lack of communication

Creates awareness Lack of clarity

Partnership working — online form Deters investment

Massively better joint working — common goal Affordability affected

Additional income to fund scheme No one on the end of the phone
Self-funding — no cost to tax payer Process drives PRS to ‘rogue’ landlords
Benefit to Oxford as a growth City C3 to C4 impact restricts ability to let

Planning/ housing legislation — action taken on
one but not the other

OPPORTUNITIES THREATS

More two way communication Lack of housing

More information on location and status of Families being forced out

HMOs Inadequate resources

Easier way to identify and report ‘bad’ landlords | New legislation

Morning clinic for advice and information Fear of renting — restricting choice
Clearer breakdown of what is legislation, Oxford | Poor IT

requirements and guidance OCC become overloaded

Take a wider area based approach to increase Over regulation

consistency Agent — not checking requirements
Make renewal and information clearer for non- | Threatening letters — changing mind
computer literate people Bureaucracy

Offer ‘no claims’ discount for good landlords Lack of confidence

More information for tenants within properties | Management of works

Help to tackle ‘rogue’ landlords High rents

Homelessness increase

‘Rogues’ ignoring scheme
Communication breakdown
Losing goodwill of ‘good’ landlords
Identifying unlicensed HMOs

181 o7



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

A bespoke meeting was also held with members of the Oxford Community Forum to discuss how
they are best placed to provide a response to the consultation. A written submission was received
from the OCF and is attached at Appendix 7. The main points raised were:

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e Accreditation should be easy, criteria should be certified
e Lack of awareness among landlords

e Too much bureaucracy system needs to be simplified

e More flexibility with standards

e Rogue landlords should be pursued and targeted

e C(larification on guidelines, law and best practice

In addition to the meeting with OCF a similar session was also held with agents from around the
City including:

e College and County

e North Oxford Property Services
e Finders Keepers

e Lucy's

e Breckon and Breckon

e Premier Lettings

e Scott Fraser

The general consensus from attendees was that “raising standards s what we all want” and the
scheme should continue but attempt to provide agents with more leverage when requiring
landlords to improve their properties.

This clearly suggests that this group clearly understand what the Council is trying to achieve and

are on side with it. It was also apparent that to do this the structure of the scheme needed to be
different.

The following provides the main comments and suggestions for improvement.

e Raising the bar

e New software will help

e Sending photos as evidence of compliance with conditions

e System of moderation — 1 weeks’ notice would be required prior to visit

e Agent is the representative, they have a duty of care, they are educating clients and can
‘strike off’ the landlord if they are not cooperating

e Agents to do DBS checks on proposed Licence Holders (if agent not to be the LH)

182 08



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e Agents to be DBS checked and 50% of their staff trained

e A document can be drafted to explain the responsibilities of each party

e Licence up to 5 years on a pro rata basis

e Good properties — no conditions —roll into 5 year licence

e Costs, if 46% of the stock remain unlicensed can there be a sliding scale of initial licensing
fee being higher to claw back evaded fees from the start of the scheme

e All good landlords have been paying since the beginning of the scheme

e OCLAS — agents must be NFPP accredited and 50% of staff trained

e Gold, silver, bronze scale for OCLAS

e Proposal of 1 year and 5 year licences and accredited. Licence up to 5 years with caveat for
scheme continuing

e Audit checks —unannounced, to view property files

e Points of contact on both sides i.e.: account managers for letting agents to have as a point
of contact in the Council and account managers for the Council to have as a point of
contact in the letting agency

e A more robust OCLAS — consensus on paying for training

Students

A similar session was held with students to seek their views on the issues relating to HMO and
licensing this type of accommodation in the City.

This focus group was a relatively smaller group comprising of 7 students who had lived in a HMO in
Oxford in the past five years.

The group were provided with an overview of what constitutes an HMO and how the licensing
scheme came into effect and views were then sought on the range of outcomes in the
guestionnaire. The final area discussed was that of the future of licensing and if the Scheme was
renewed ‘what could be done to improve their experience of living in an HMO?”

The results of this focus group are provided in Table 4 below.

183 o9



Table 4 — Results of Student Focus Group

3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Areas of Interest Responses

Understanding of what constitutes a HMQO?

Sharing, separate groups, individuals coming
together to share bills etc.. living together as a
family would

Have you lived in an HMO in Oxford in the past
five years?

Yes (7)

Was it licensed?

Yes (5) Not sure (2)

Did you know about the licensing scheme?

Not sure (7) Assumed that certain standards
would have to be met.

Didn"t check when looking for a property.

Learnt from fellow students about which
properties and agents to avoid.

Found out from people moving out.

What was your experience of living in an HMO
in Oxford?

Good —the landlord has British Gas cover so any
problems are sorted quickly. The previous HMO
took a long time to get anything fixed.

Friends have had problems, agent is very
responsive but the landlord is not so good.

Not always clear about size of rooms and can
mislead to get property let.

What the relationship with landlords like?

Difficult to get repairs done, blame students for
damage.

Sometimes challenging

Good landlord

Landlord is ‘ok’

(2) Landlords do not give notice before turning

up and store stuff in shed and difficult to get
repairs done

184 70




3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

(2) Didn’t know who their landlord was

How well is the property managed?

Cleaner comes in every week and written into
tenancy agreement that a management
inspection is completed every 6 months

Inspection every few months with 1 week
notice but we have to clean communal areas

ourselves

No management inspections. When report
issues agent doesn’t care

Contract late — had to sit in office to get one
Change of occupants — not notified by agent or
landlord and someone just turned up and

started eating food out of fridge

Communication not good

Were your expectations met?

Had low expectations to begin with — lot of
horror stories from friends

Dealt with differently to working professionals —
‘just students’ mentality

Felt pressured into taking properties on —
bidding war created by agent

Scaremongering and then change goal posts
through gazumping

Agents have different standard of offices for
different clients

‘Brick walled’ by some agents who ‘don’t take
students’

Have you noticed any impact as a result of the

Licensing Scheme?

Can't get something better as a student —
noticed much more difference now I'm working
professional

Found out for self and noticed slight change in
that we were asked by landlord to test fire
alarm and record

Have standards improved?

Didn’t know what was required

185

71




3

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Accept standards because lower rent = lower
standards

Took on properties in better condition following
advice

Reputable agent now deals with expectations
University provides list of reputable agents

What could be changed / introduced to improve
your experience?

Need to know if it is an HMO
Checklist of requirements

List of Council approved agents

Fact sheets on minimum standards
Feed into university ‘living out guide’
Attend fresher’s fare

30 second video signposting

Notification of licence requirements to
occupiers

General Comments

As part of the consultation we also received a number of general comments made via email or

directly to officers of the Council.

These are provided below.

“The Council should think about a zero tolerance approach and prosecute everyone found

operating an unlicensed HMO” — Local solicitors

72

186




3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

National Landlords Association (NLA) — The NLA submitted a document with 14 points in response
to the proposal for additional licensing, which included a number of statements and comments.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

The main issues raised by the NLA were as follows:

1) A statement about the Council not reviewing the Article 4 direction in relation to shared
housing at the same time as the licensing scheme — “shows a failure in joined up policy”.

2) A question asking “why does the Council not pause the consultation until after the
Government's consultation on HMOs, before undertaking such a costly exercise?

3) Statement about costs associated with Additional Licensing scheme being passed to
tenants, thus increasing cost further for those who rent in an area, along with the cost of
the Council. Thus increasing costs to Oxford residents. This has already been seen with the

Council trying to house people on Birmingham, The current policies will make matters
worse.

4) Concerns about the reasons behind keeping the scheme if it has been a success and if it
hasn't then why undertake a scheme that has failed.

5) A statement about how regulation in the PRS should be balanced and reduce any
additional cost to landlords and tenants.

The Residential Landlords Association (RLA) — The RLA submitted a consultation response raising 6
general concerns and 6 specific concerns with regard to the following:

e Government review of HMO Licensing
e Independent verification of data

e Room sizes

e Standards

e C(Costs

e Accreditation

The full response submitted by the RLA is provided at Appendix 5.
The Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB) - The CAB submitted additional information regarding issues they
have come across as part of their caseload when dealing with private rented sector tenants in

HMOs, which is attached at Appendix 6. Some of the key concerns raised included:

187 3



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

e Poorly managed properties where health risks caused by disrepair are not addressed
e Retaliatory evictions as a result of complaints

e Failure to protect and return deposits

e Frauds and scams around availability of private rented accommodation

Conclusions

In order for the Council to ‘renew’ the scheme it must proceed through the statutory process as
laid out in Section 56 and 57 and the guidance issued under the Housing Act 2004: Licensing of
Houses in Multiple Occupation and Selective Licensing of Other Residential Accommodation
(England) General Approval 2010.

Section 56 of the Act places requirements upon the Local Housing Authority when considering a
designation for additional licensing of HMOs, in that the Council must:

Consider that a significant proportion of the HMOs of that description in the area are
being managed sufficiently ineffectively as to give rise, or likely to give rise, to one or

more particular problems either for those occupying the HMOs or for members of the
public; and

Take reasonable steps to consult with persons who are likely to be affected and
consider any representations made in accordance with the consultation and not
withdrawn; and

Have regard to any information regarding the extent to which any codes of practice
approved under section 233 have been complied with by persons managing HMOs in
the area (these codes relate to University managed accommodation).

Section 57 provides further considerations for the Local Authority in that they should ensure that:

Exercising the designation is consistent with the authority’s overall housing strategy;
and

Seek to adopt a coordinated approach in connection with dealing with homelessness,
empty properties and anti-social behavior affecting the private rented sector as regards
combining licensing with other action taken by them or others; and

Consider whether there are any other courses of action available to them (of whatever
nature) that might provide an effective method of dealing with the problem or
problems in question; and

188 A



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

e That making the designation will significantly assist them to deal with the problem or
problems (whether or not they take any other course of action as well).

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

The DCLG General Approval provides the condition that any consultation period for the proposed
designation should not be less than 10 weeks.

In February 2010 the DCLG produced general guidance around the approval steps for additional
and selective licensing designations in England.

This document provides examples of properties being managed “sufficiently ineffectively”
including:

e Those whose external condition and curtilage (including yards and gardens) adversely
impact upon the general character and amenity of the area in which they are located;

e Those whose internal condition, such as poor amenities, overcrowding etc. adversely
impact upon the health, safety and welfare of the occupiers and the landlords of these
properties are failing to take appropriate steps to address the issues;

e Those where there is a significant and persistent problem of anti-social behavior
affecting other residents and/or the local community and the landlords of the HMOs
are not taking reasonable and lawful steps to eliminate or reduce the problems; and

e Those where the lack of management or poor management skills or practices are
otherwise adversely impacting upon the welfare, health and safety of residents and/or
impacting upon the wider community.

From the recent review of the HMO Licensing Scheme and consultation we have found that there
have been successes:

e |[ssued licenses for 3,440 HMOs.

e 56% of fully completed applications were submitted without the Council having to remind
applicants to provide additional information.

e £3.2 million has been invested into improving HMOs during the life of the Scheme.

e Accredited 94 Landlords and Agents through the Councils Landlord Accreditation Scheme.

e 34% of works to comply with licence conditions had been completed at the time of a re-
inspection

189 E



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Perceptions of the scheme are also generally positive and residents and tenants, in particular can
see clear improvements, 39% of respondents felt that living conditions in HMOs have improved
and 40% either strongly agreed or agreed that the licensing scheme has improved HMOs.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

There are however issues that the scheme has still not fully addressed:

e 36% of all residents reported serious concerns with poorly managed refuse/untidy
overflowing bins and HMO property conditions; 49% raised serious concerns about
external property conditions

e 51% responded to the issue of overgrown gardens indicating it was a problem in the area
where they live

e 53% of respondents either strongly agreed or agreed that there are poorly managed
HMO's in the area of Oxford where they live

There will be a minority of landlords who will never see the overall value of a scheme and so they
will never support renewal. Their interest is more focussed on financial terms than benefits to the
wider community of the City. It is encouraging however that a number of letting/managing agents
can see the benefit of the scheme and support the overall principles of regulation but would like
to see improvements made to benefit the compliant landlords more and tighten down on
punishing non-compliant landlords.

Additional licensing remains a viable solution for the City. The market in Oxford is evolving and
buoyant with the number of HMOs increasing year on year. This approach is also consistent with
the priorities set within the Council’s Corporate Plan and Housing Strategy.

The link to accreditation forms a key part of the development of the scheme and the proposed
introduction of 5 year licences. Accreditation will be given to those landlords and agents who are
experienced, knowledgeable in their profession and who meet the criteria set down by the Council
and adhere to the good practice principles set out in the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) Private Rented Sector Code of Practice, which was endorsed by Brandon Lewis, Minister of
State for Housing and Planning in July 2015. The RICS Private Rented Sector Code of Practice and
the Council’s criteria for accreditation are provided at Appendix 11 and 12.

190 70



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Proposed Structure

Fees and Charges

The power to charge a licence fee is governed by the Housing Act 2004.

Under Section 63 the authority may take into account all costs incurred by the authority in
carrying out their functions under this part and all costs incurred by them in carrying out their
functions under Chapter 1 of Part 4 in relation to HMOs. This covers costs associated with the
making of Interim and Final Management Orders.

When processing licence applications the authority may, in particular, require the application to
be accompanied by a fee fixed by the authority.

No further regulations exist for the determination of licence fees and so it is for the authority to
decide what the cost of licensing will be and to set the fee structure for the scheme accordingly.

Oxford City Council is committed to ensuring that the licensing scheme is self-financing so that all
of the costs associated with operating the scheme are borne from the fee structure. This ensures
that there is no financial burden placed on the tax payers of Oxford.

The National Landlords Association released an interim report in February 2015 (Landlord
Licensing — An overview of the incidence and cost of HMO & Discretionary Licensing schemes in
England) which, amongst other things, provided a comparison on the levels of licensing fees
charged by Local Authorities, across England, that have introduced Additional Licensing schemes.
Figure 58 below provides their findings.

The (NLA) estimates there are around 1.5 million private landlords in the UK and although it works
with around 51,000 landlords only 24,800 are paying members, which equates to 1.7% of all the
private landlords in the UK.

191 "



2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Figure 58 — NLA report on cost of licensing

Additional Licensing Fee

Southwark Borough Council [N
Slough Borough Councl [N
Scarborcugh Borough Council [[NNEGEGgGGEEEE
Peterborough City Council |G
Oxford City Council [N
Morth Somerset Council |GG
Newham Borough Council [|NENENEGNGEGEGEGEE
Kingston upon Thames Borowgh Council [
Hounsiow Borough Council |
Hillingdon Borough Council [ NNENGNGNGEGEGE
Hastings Borough Counci |
Enfizld BEorough Council [N
Ealing Borough Council IR
Croydon Borowgh Council |G
Bristol City Council (I
BErighton and Howve City Council |GG
Brent Borough Councl [[NNENE
Breckland District Council |G
Bedford Borough Council [N
Bath and Morth East Somersat Council [N
Barking and Cagenham Borowgh Council |GG
Aylesbury Vale District Council |[NNENENG I

] 200 400 600 800 1000 1200
Cost of Licensing (£)

It is clear from this comparison that Oxford City Council is operating the licensing of HMOs in its
District at a similar or lower cost than 16 out of the 22 (73%) of licensing authorities considered.
Only 6 (27%) operate schemes at a lower cost than that of Oxford.

It is also worth noting that the scheme is Oxford is somewhat different to the majority of other
schemes for two reasons. Firstly, when the scheme was introduced the Council wanted to ensure
that it was robust and delivered against the aims and objectives of the scheme and the corporate
objective of ‘Meeting Housing Need’. To achieve this Council insisted that it would be an annual
licence rather than the ‘normal’ approach of issuing a five years licence. During the early years of
the scheme this enabled the Council to gather a wealth of baseline evidence on the condition of
HMOs in the City and ensured that the licence was more than ‘just a piece of paper’.

Secondly the Scheme in the City is only one of 5 schemes where the designation relates to all areas
of the District. The others being Newport City Council, Wrexham Borough Council (both of which
of Welsh authorities and were not included in the NLA research), London Borough of Newham and
Breckland (Norfolk) District Council.

192 8



3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

The cost associated with these schemes is very similar with Breckland operating at a slightly lower
cost than that of Oxford and LB Newham and given the former approach adopted by the Council in
administering licences it is clear that the fees set are extremely competitive with those of other
Local Authorities.

The fee structure can only cover costs associated with the Scheme. This will include consideration
of staff costs, training, inspection and administration and publicity and investigatory work involved
in identifying unlicensed HMOs.

Currently the Council’s fee and charges structure is tailored to reflect that more time is spent
dealing with ‘bad’ landlords than it is with compliant landlords. This will remain the focus of the
proposed new fee structure.

The Council will regularly review the fees and charges structure and set its fees to match expected
outputs for the following financial year.

The designation of a new scheme has required the Council to undertake a full assessment of the
fees and charges structure for this proposed future designation. Table 5 provides the outline of
these fees and charges. It is important to note that the Council has set the fees based on the costs
associated with delivering the Scheme in its entirety and not necessarily to reflect the actual cost
associated with each category of licence. This is to reflect that the Council acknowledges that
there should be less financial burdens placed on good landlords and those who comply compared
to those who flout their responsibilities and do not take the requirement of complying with the
law seriously enough.

193 r



Table 5 — Proposed Fee structure

3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Category Fee Type Comments

A £ 999 Initial Application Increased to reflect increased
for a 1 year licence | costsincurred dealing with non-
where the owner compliant landlords and HMOs in
has been found to poor condition and the time
be operating an involved securing a valid
unlicensed HMO for | application
more than 12
weeks.

B £ 400 Initial Application Reduced to reflect reduction in
for a 1 year licence | costs dealing with compliant
where the owner landlords.
comes forward to
licence voluntarily
and is able to
demonstrate that
the property was
acquired and
operating as an
HMO within the
previous 12 weeks

C f 357 Basic Annual Where a re-inspection is required
Renewal to reflect because of lack of confidence in
need to re inspect management
due to poor
management
practices and non-
compliance

D £ 210 Basic Renewal for a | Renewal of an annual licence to a
2 year licence 2 year licence where

landlord/agent meets criteria (no
inspection required)

E - New £ 300 5 year or end of 5 year licence where landlord/
scheme licence agent meets criteria

F — New* £300 Fire Risk Inspection and Provision of a Fire
Assessment Report | Risk Assessment Report
(requirement for a
2 and 5 year
licence).

194

80




3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

G — New* £150 per visit Advisory Visit Inspection to advise on
requirements before property is
licensed. Similar to Planning pre-
app advice.

*QOptional

Eligibility Criteria

The key changes include the introduction of a 5 year licence for OCLAS Accredited Landlords and
Agents. There will no longer be a requirement for 2 year licence holders to be accredited and the
Council will be developing the training programme linked to accreditation to provide 2 year licence
holders with the opportunity to become accredited and secure a 5 year licence. The Council will,
however, no longer accept NLA accreditation as an alternative to OCLAS and as such all landlords
that wish to take advantage of a 5 year licence will have to be accredited by the Council. This is
likely to affect a very small minority of landlords in Oxford, for those reasons mentioned earlier. In
any event there will be no fee to join OCLAS thereby providing landlords with the opportunity to
make a cost saving whilst still having the opportunity to secure a 5 year licence.

The Council recognises that the Scheme has evolved since its inception and has developed a
structure that reflects the findings of the review and addresses the concerns and issues raised as
part of the consultation.

The approach the Council intends to adopt with the determination of new licence will be one
where it considers whether the licence holder and manager are eligible for one of the three types
of licence shown.

The criteria set out in Table 6 reflect the requirements the Council considers are appropriate for
ensuring that HMOs are managed and maintained effectively throughout the City as part of the
Licensing Scheme. These factors are based on the experience of the Council over the past five
years and suggestions made by participants of the consultation.

Table 6 — Eligibility Criteria for Proposed Scheme

Factor 1 year 2 year 5 year
If one criteria Must meet all Must meet all criteria to obtain 5
applies then will get | criteria to obtain 2 year licence

195 o




3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

1 year licence

year licence

Experience Entry level for new The agent must have | OCLAS Accredited Landlord
landlord - no full management
previous history to control to be the Sign up to Private Rented Sector
allow judgement on | licence holder Code of Practice July 2015 and
management adhere to good practice
practice. Where the landlord
wishes to be the Arrangements in place for regular
Poor management — | licence holder and maintenance / repairs i.e. British Gas
see below has an agent, the Homecare or similar
agent must have full
management control | Cleaning contracts
to take advantage of
the two year licence | Cyclical maintenance programme i.e.
similar to requirements of decent
Good management — | homes standard
see below
50% of employees on have approved
Introduce pathway gualifications — part of ‘dip’ check
to accreditation —
attend one day Evidence of CPD for employees - Part
training of ‘dip’ check
Membership of other professional
association — RICS, ARLA
Application Application history is | Good application No reminders needed - Agent or
history poor — application, history Landlord takes full responsibility for

fee, documents not
submitted on time.

1 or more reminder
needed after initial
reminded to renew

Referral to
enforcement to
obtain certificates

All documents
submitted on time
No subsequent
reminders needed
after initial reminder

Clean ‘Bill of Health’
from other internal
and external depts....

ensuring certs are uploaded/
provided on an annual basis i.e. gas.
Part of ‘dip’ check

Provide copy of management
arrangement and terms of business

Provide DBS check if landlord to be
licence holder and agent only
management responsibility

196

82




3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

Referral to
enforcement to
chase application

planning, Building
Control, Police,
HMRC, Immigration
(BA)

Certificates
required
during licence

Certificates not
submitted on time

Referral to
enforcement to
obtain certificates

Certificates
submitted as per
licence conditions

Agreed audit approach

As above in application re:
submitting certs without reminders
and sign to accept that ‘dip’ check
can be carried out on cases without

notice.

Licence Conditions not Conditions No additional conditions / no need
conditions completed on time completed on revisit | to revisit.

(either at revisit but

before new licence No properties with EPC F or below

or conditions carried

over)

Fire Safety No fire safety

conditions on licence | conditions

Amenity conditions No amenity

on licence conditions

(bathroom or

kitchen works)

Serious health and No additional

safety / disrepair conditions minor

conditions e.g. trip / | issues e.g.

fall hazards; heating | decorations, damp

requirements; due to tenant

windows need lifestyle may be

replacing accepted if being

addressed

Repeated requests

to extend time to

complete work
Service 3 or more justified 1 or 2 justified No justifiable service requests
requests service requests service request
Inspections Missed No missed Carry out themselves every 6 months

appointments or

appointments

and at beginning and end of tenancy.

197

83




3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

over 10 mins late

Difficult to arrange
inspections — keep
changing date / time

Access prevented to
some rooms — need

Where running late,
Council is informed

No difficulty
arranging

appointments

All rooms available

Council required to inspect through
audit process

‘Dip’ check to look at Fire Log book

to go back to inspect
Fire Risk No Yes Yes
Assessment
completed
Benefits to Yearly inspections Reduced fee Reduced fee
landlords from Council to
ensure property is Reduced inspection Reduced inspection regime
maintained regime
(increased inspection Audit / spot check scheme to check
fee) Pathway to compliance — reduced workload
accreditation and
potential to access 5 | Self-regulation monitored by LA
year licence
Limitations

The Scheme operates within the limitations set within the Housing Act 2004 and the requirements
placed on the Council as a Local Authority.

The Council has attempted to be fair and consistent with the charges set for the Scheme and the
manner in which it is structured and will review this from time to time to ensure that it is

operating in accordance with the legal and administrative requirements. This may result in
revisions to the fees, which in previous occasions has benefited the compliant and cooperative
landlords and agents. Every attempt will be made to limit the financial burden on the compliant
sector and punish the non-compliant. This is a key finding from the consultation.

Enforcement

The Council has always taken a proactive approach to carrying out the enforcement of legislation
relating to HMOs. This has resulted in it taking more prosecutions than most other authorities

198

84




3

(o e o)

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

across the country, only the larger metropolitan and London Borough authorities have taken
more.

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

The Council will continue to investigate situations where there are clear breaches of the legislation
and will undertake enforcement action in accordance with its enforcement policy and the
requirements set out in the various legislative frameworks.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - SWOT Results from Landlord/ Agent events
Appendix 2 — Summary notes from Agent Focus Group
Appendix 3 — Student Focus Group notes

Appendix 4 — National Landlords Association response
Appendix 5 — Residential Landlords Association response
Appendix 6 — Citizens Advice Bureau response

Appendix 7 — Oxford Community Forum response
Appendix 8 — Presentations from Landlord/ Agent events
Appendix 9 — Consultation posters and flyers

Appendix 10 — Social media material

Appendix 11 — RICS Private Rented Sector Code of Practice

Appendix 12 — OCLAS accreditation criteria

199 8



Appendix 13 — Wolvercote Neighbourhood Forum response

200

wwwi.oxford.gov.uk

2

(e )

OXFORD
CITY

COUNCIL

86



Appendix 2 — Proposed Fees and Charges post 31 January 2016

Category Fee Type Comments
A £ 999 Initial Application | Increased to
fora 1 year reflect increased
licence where the | costs incurred
owner has been dealing with non-
found to be compliant
operating an landlords and
unlicensed HMO | HMOs in poor
for more than 12 | condition and the
weeks. time involved
securing a valid
application
B £ 400 Initial Application | Reduced to reflect
fora 1 year reduction in costs
licence where the | dealing with
owner comes compliant
forward to licence | landlords.
voluntarily and is
able to
demonstrate that
the property was
acquired and
operating as an
HMO within the
previous 12
weeks
C £ 357 Basic Annual Where a re-
Renewal to reflect | inspection is
need to re inspect | required because
due to poor of lack of
management confidence in
practices and management
non-compliance
D £ 210 Basic Renewal for | Renewal of an
a 2 year licence annual licence to
a 2 year licence
where
landlord/agent
meets criteria (no
inspection
required)
E - New £ 300 5 year or end of 5 year licence
scheme licence where landlord/
agent meets
criteria
F — New* £300 Fire Risk Inspection and

201




Assessment

Provision of a Fire

Report Risk Assessment
(requirement for a | Report

2 and 5 year

licence).

G — New* £150 per visit Advisory Visit Inspection to
advise on
requirements
before property is
licensed. Similar
to Planning pre-
app advice.

*Optional

202




€0¢

Appendix 3 — Eligibility Criteria for 1, 2, &5 year licences

Factor 1 year 2 year 5 year
If one criteria applies then will Must meet all criteria to Must meet all criteria to
get 1 year licence obtain 2 year licence obtain 5 year licence
Experience e Entry level for new landlord e The agent must have e OCLAS Accredited

- no previous history to
allow judgement on
management practice.

e Poor management — see
below

full management control
to be the licence holder

o Where the landlord
wishes to be the licence
holder and has an
agent, the agent must
have full management
control to take
advantage of the two
year licence

e Good management —
see below

¢ Introduce pathway to
accreditation — attend
one day training

Landlord or Agent

e Sign up and adhere
tothe Private Rented
Sector Code of Practice

e Arrangements in place
for regular maintenance
/ repairs i.e British Gas
Homecare or similar

e Cleaning contracts

e Cyclical maintenance
programme i.esimilar to
requirements of decent
homes standard

e 50% of agents
employees have
approved qualifications

e Evidence of CPD for
employees

e Membership of other
professional association
- RICS, ARLA

Application history

e Application history is poor —

application, fee, documents

e Good application history
e All documents

¢ No reminders needed-
Agent or Landlord takes




¥0c

not submitted on time.

1 or more reminder needed
after initial reminded to
renew

Referral to enforcement to
obtain certificates

Referral to enforcement to
chase application

submitted on time

No subsequent
reminders needed after
initial reminder

Clean ‘Bill of Health’
from other internal and
external depts...
planning, Building
Control, Police, HMRC,
Immigration (BA)

full responsibility for
ensuring certs are
uploaded/ provided on
an annual basis i.e gas.
Part of ‘dip’ check
Provide copy of
management
arrangement and terms
of business

Provide DBS check if
landlord to be licence
holder and agent only
management
responsibility

Certificates required during
licence

Certificates not submitted
on time

Referral to enforcement to
obtain certificates

Certificates submitted
as per licence
conditions

Agreed audit approach
As above in application
re: submitting certs
without reminders and
sign to accept that ‘dip’
check can be carried
out on cases without
notice.

Licence conditions

Conditions not completed
on time (either at revisit but
before new licence or
conditions carried over)

Conditions completed
on revisit

No additional conditions
/ no need to revisit.

No properties with EPC
F or below

Fire Safety conditions on
licence

No fire safety conditions

Amenity conditions on
licence (bathroom or
kitchen works)

No amenity conditions




G0¢

Serious health and safety /
disrepair conditions e.g. trip
/ fall hazards; heating
requirements; windows
need replacing

No additional conditions
minor issues e.g.
decorations, damp due
to tenant lifestyle may
be accepted if being
addressed

Repeated requests to
extend time to complete
work

Service requests

3 or more justified service
requests

1 or 2 justified service
request

No justifiable service
requests

Inspections

Missed appointments or
over 10 mins late

Difficult to arrange
inspections — keep
changing date / time
Access prevented to some
rooms — need to go back

No missed
appointments

Where running late,
Council is informed
No difficulty arranging
appointments

All rooms available to
inspect

Carry out themselves
every 6 months and at
beginning and end of
tenancy.

Council required to
inspect through audit
process

‘Dip’ check to look at
Fire Log book

Fire Risk Assessment
completed

No

Yes

Yes

Benefits to landlords

Yearly inspections from
Council to ensure property
is maintained (increased
inspection fee)

Reduced fee
Reduced inspection
regime

Reduced fee
Reduced inspection
regime

Audit / spot check
scheme to check
compliance — reduced
workload

Self regulation
monitored by OCC




90¢

5 year audit scheme

¢ One audit every 6 months

¢ Audit will include office based analysis of records held on system to check if all certificates etc. are up to date and uploaded.

¢ Audit will also include an unannounceduvisit to offices of agents where Officer will request to see records for selection of
properties (10%).

o Where appropriate Officer may also ask for notice to be given to inspect a sample of properties the next day (agents need to
give 24 hrs notice)

¢ On inspection if no issues are found or if issues found and action is already being taken to deal with them then audit will be
signed off as complied.

¢ Where non-conformities are found then assessment will be carried out to determine appropriate course of action including a
range of informal and formal approaches.



L0¢C

Risk description

Opp/ threat

Cause

Consequence

Date Raised

Owner

Gross

Current

Residual

P

Comments

Control description

Due date

Controls

Status

Progress %

Action Owner

Legal challenge A legal challenge to the Opp and Statutory requirements not October 2015 Adrian Chowns The statutory Ensure that statutory Now lan Wright/ Adrian
proposals is put forward Threat met. Insufficient resources designation is required |requirements for proving Chowns
as a judicial review provided to fulfill in order to meet the the case for licensing of
requirements. Insufficient requirements of the HMOs is robust and are
evidence base. Lack of Housing Act 2004. Any |met.
wider consultation challenge must be
made within the
statutory timeframes
Recommendations not| The recommendations of Threat Insufficient support from Phase 1 of the Scheme October 2015 Adrian Chowns The regulation of the Review and implement October 2015 lan Wright/ Adrian
approved the report are not members to proceed with |will expire and Phase 2 HMO sector will fall appropriate consultation Chowns

approved

statutory consultation

will remain regulated.

back to the basic
(limited) statutory
controls which is likely to
result in a decline of
conditions and
standards in the sector

project and ensure
requirements of legislation
fulfilled.




This page is intentionally left blank



60¢

£ oxromD
é CITY
COUNCIL
Form to be used for the Full Equalities Impact Assessment
Service Area: Section: Date of Initial | Key Person responsible for | Date assessment commenced:
assessment: | assessment: 07/09/2015

Environmental Environmental | 31/08/2015 Adrian Chowns

Development Health

Name of Policy to be assessed: CEB Report: Results of Consultation of HMO Licensing

Race Disability Age

1. In what area are there concerns

that the policy could have a Gender Religion or Belief Sexual Orientation

differential impact

Other strategic/ equalities Safeguarding/ Welfare of Mental Wellbeing/ Marriage & Civil Partnership

considerations Children and vulnerable Community Resilience

adults

HR&F3028 Version: v1.0 Dated: 08/08/14

Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 1 of 5




0T¢

2. Background:

Give the background information to the
policy and the perceived problems with
the policy which are the reason for the
Impact Assessment.

A statutory consultation project of 10 weeks is now complete and the new scheme (if approved) will
be required to be designated and advertised for a minimum 12 weeks. The delivery of this is
governed by extremely tight timescales and Phase 1 of the Scheme is due to expire in January
2016. Failure to make a new designation could result in certain parts of the sector being regulated
and other parts not regulated. This may also put all occupiers of these type of HMOs at risk.

3. Methodology and Sources of Data:

The methods used to collect data and
what sources of data

An assessment on the proportion of landlords from BME groups has indicated that 25% are of Asian
origin. This group make up 10% of the population of Oxford as a whole.This remains the case
following the completion of the consultation.

The profile of the PRS in Oxford has changed considerably since the introduction of the Scheme.
Oxford is now the least affordable City to live in and has the highest proportion of young people.
High house prices create a situation where they are unlikely to be able to access home ownership
consequently the PRS is the most viable option and sharing reduces the cost of accommodation
further.

4. Consultation

This section should outline all the

consultation that has taken place on the

EIA. It should include the following.

. Why you carried out the
consultation.

. Details about how you went

about it.

. A summary of the replies you
received from people you
consulted.

. An assessment of your proposed

policy (or policy options) in the

If the recommendations of the CEB report are supported then officers will proceed with the 12 week
statutory designation and public notices will be released in accordance with the legislation.

HR&F3028 Version: v1.0 Dated: 08/08/14

Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 2 of 6




1T¢

light of the responses you
received.

. A statement of what you plan to
do next

5. Assessment of Impact:

Provide details of the assessment of the
policy on the six primary equality
strands. There may have been other
groups or individuals that you
considered. Please also consider
whether the policy, strategy or spending
decisions could have an impact on
safeguarding and / or the welfare of
children and vulnerable adults

The project is based on the need to fulfil the requirements of national legislation. A key consideration
is to ensure that the statutory designation is made and advertised for 12 weeks..

Data gathered will assist in informing the impact on target groups such as landlords from BME
groups, tenants, students and migrants. The levels of impact vary across each group with 25% of
BME landlords operating HMOs, young people likely to access this type of accommodation, the
increase in families living in HMOs and vulnerable groups being the key considerations.

In regulating HMOs, owners and agents who are regulated against may feel that they have been
adversely impacted upon. However there are no other ways in which the service could be provided
that would achieve these aims without adverse impact. Ultimately, when working within the
legislative framework, people have a right to legal redress should they feel that a decision was
unfairly/unlawfully taken; this can be via an appeal process or the Council’'s Complaints system.

6. Consideration of Measures:

This section should explain in detail all
the consideration of alternative
approaches/mitigation of adverse
impact of the policy

The key groups that are likely to affected by these proposals have been identified and a consultation
project developed to address the implications of the scheme. The proposed approach to consultation
has been set out by the recent PIB report and approved. The report setting out recommendations
will be considered by CEB and if approved the consultation will be conducted in accordance with the
project plan approved.

HR&F3028 Version: v1.0 Dated: 08/08/14

Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 3 of 5




6a. Monitoring Arrangements:

Outline systems which will be put in The fee and charges structure associated with licensing of HMOs has been reviewed following the
place to monitor for adverse impact in consultation and developed taking account of the impact this has on landlords generally.

the future and this should include all
relevant timetables. In addition it could | When enforcement activity is carried out each case is reviewed to ensure that the Council is being
include a summary and assessment of | fair, consistent and proportionate in its approach. This review ensures that the impact of particular
your monitoring, making clear whether | groups is monitored. Feedback is also obtained from relevant groups.

you found any evidence of
discrimination.

7. 12. Date reported and signed off
by City Executive Board:

A4

Additional licensing remains a viable option for the City and is the best course of action for dealing
8. Conclusions: with the problems associated with HMOs in Oxford.

What are your conclusions drawn from
the results in terms of the policy impact

11. Date copy sent
to Equalities

9. Are there implications 10. Date the Service - .

for the Service Plans? YES Plans will be updated 2015/2016 °”'F?T in HR &
Facilities

.13. Date reported to 12. The date the

. . 14. Date reported to City .
Scrutiny and Executive Executive Board: report on EqlA will

Board: be published

HR&F3028 Version: v1.0 Dated: 08/08/14 Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 4 of 5




O 4

Signed (completing officer) Signed (Lead Officer)

Please list the team members and service areas that were involved in this process:

Organisational Development & Learning Advisor/ Equalities

HR&F3028 Version: v1.0 Dated: 08/08/14 Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 5 of 5



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 — STRENGTHS, WEAKNESSES, OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS
21 July 2015
Main themes were:

Standards

Reputation of scheme — to be proud of

High standards

Raises standards overall

Improved safety - fire in particular
Neighbourhoods/neighbours confident with licensed HMOs
General standards for tenants

Tenants safety

Bringing stock up to standard

Consistent — expectation

Communication

New on-line form (will be better)

Flexibility — inspector giving practical advice

Mark Williams practical and helpful

LIE events — sharing information and opportunity for landlords and agents to network
Newsletters are useful

Aids better relations with community/neighbours

Building communications — restructure joining planning and licensing services
together

Improving communication

Education

LIE events — communication with action regarding changes

Spreads knowledge

Gives tenants confidence

Educating tenants

OCLAS

Landlords better educated — creates awareness, have to be more informed

Working together

(Being able to) pilot the new on-line form

Some leverage for letting agents (Council requiring works to be carried out)
2 year licence

Dawn and the team (no prompting from me!)

Things have got massively better

Working together — local authority and customers

Financial/local economy

Additional income — Council, Contractors & local businesses
Job security — Council, Contractors & local businesses
Better value for tenants and subsequently landlords

Self funding

Benefit to Oxford — for people moving here

215



Economy/contractors/SMES, electricians, gas etc

Adds value to property, more attractive/marketable

Minimum guidance — Amenities & Facilities guide (this was listed as a strength)?!
Can’t remember what was said around this.

05 August 2015

Providing advice to new landlords

Raises quality of accommodation

Weeds out rogue landlords

Gives confidence to tenants

Gives confidence to landlords they are compliant
Owner occupiers know there is a structure to regulate and someone to help
HMOs provide affordable accommodation
Enables control of numbers of people in houses
Ensures properties are maintained and safe
Competive advantage to better landlords
Engagement with landlords has improved

Weaknesses
21 July 2015

-Expensive for good landlords

-Licence period too short

-Lack of consistency in what is being required

-‘Good’ landlords are still being threatened with enforcement
-Slow response times for landlord queries

-Limited rewards for good landlords

-Back dated late notices

-Council not coping with numbers of applications

-Too much paperwork and form filling repetition

-Financial burden on tenants and landlords

-The council is late to issue things yet landlords are expected to meet the councils
deadlines

-1 year licences are too much hassle

-The waiting times for licences are too long

-Lack of communication between HMQO’s and planning
-Landlords are not always clear of what is required of them
-Lack of flexibility in the HMO licence

-Contradictions in what is required in AST’s and in HMO licences
-Planning application process is too long winded

-Lack of consistency in what we ask for and what other local authorities ask for
-The process makes people homeless

-No one on the end of the phone!

-Lack of up to date information on the website

216



-Lack of information and advice distributed

Commonly raised

05 August 2015

More expensive for landlords — higher rents / pass cost on to tenants

Drive PRS to rogue landlords

Unforeseen consequences

Time consuming and repetitive applications

Deter good landlords from investing

C3 to C4 impact restricts ability to let and drives up costs

Planning / housing legislation are different so action taken on one but not other
Affordability

Opportunities

21 July

More two-way communication — especially with renewals and certificates wanted —
let the LLs know when certificates are due — it would be good if the new computer
system could send out automatic reminders

Offer discounts/financial or other incentives each year for good performance

Manage by exception — innocent until proven guilty, leave the compliant majority to
get on with it and focus all our resources on the ‘bad guys’

More information on location and status of HMOs and easier ways to identify and
report bad HMOs — e.g. create an interactive map with all HMOs and their status
marked on it (Bath and NES have this) which can be used by neighbours and
perspective tenants to search and identify both good and problematic HMOs

A walk-in clinic, operating e.g. each Wednesday morning at SAC where LLs can
come in and ask questions/get help with applications, licensing and managing
issues.

Star ratings for houses — like food businesses, which show who the best and worst
houses are, and put into a searchable database for tenants to provide a positive
marketing opportunity

Clearer breakdown of what is legislation, Oxford standards and guidance

Greater consistency of advice and inspections/decisions

Recognise the diversity of HMO tenure — not all tenant types/properties and
management styles/arrangements/business models are the same — obviously

217



maintain consistent safety standards, but appreciate the differences and treat
accordingly

Take a wider area-based approach, to increase consistency of HMO enforcement
and standards across Oxfordshire — engage with neighbouring LAs/ district
authorities

Greater differentiation between good and bad, using length of licence

Continue naming and shaming bad landlords, but also focus on publicising good
landlords — tell and sell the success story of X000 better safer HMOs — how Oxford’s
HMOs are amongst the safest in the country, focus on positive marketing

Discounts for accredited/NLA members (and make accreditation recognise RLA
members as well as NLA) — make these schemes offer more, give CPD for attending
LIE events etc as well as the annual training

Better lead times on fees so LLs can better balance their books and anticipate what
the fees are going to be and have the necessary funds in place

Traffic light scoring after inspections to help prioritise works

Feedback notes to attendees after training events (e.g. today — the findings from this
discussion)

Incentivise landlords to improve and to encourage the PRS to up its game — use
longer licences and lower fees — longer licences allows us to give better service,
reduce inspections etc, which in turn reduces costs and increases overall revenue

Rating scheme (like EPC ratings) for properties assessing a range of criteria which is
consistent across the sector — however avoid adding additional bureaucracy and
inspections, as the licence should achieve this on its own

Reduce time spent by LLs searching the internet for information and doing renewals,
streamline, make renewals and information clearer for non-computer-literate people

Stagger licence renewals/inspections/fee payments across the year

Offer ‘no claims discounts’ for good LLs who do not have any SRs/issues etc to
encourage and reward compliance and good management

Spot checks over the licence, risk rate to focus on places of concern, perhaps bi-
annual checks?

Promote the licence to LLs as a passport to getting better agents and better tenants,
and to tenants as a passport to better, safer houses

More information for tenants within properties with contact details of who to report to,

what to report, and when etc — e.g. 1%' LL > Council/Jackie etc, perhaps checklists
for expectations

218



More engagement with tenants and students e.g. with unis of behavioural
expectations of tenants

Help tackling rogue tenants — LLs would really appreciate the Council’s support with
dealing with difficult and rogue tenants — this is an opportunity for the Council to give
something back to LLs. Greater onus on tenants to comply with regulations, more
engagement with tenants, more info and training for tenants

Easy ways to give feedback via the website etc

Make it easier for houses to change ownership/change agents

More staff to help you cope with workload

Longer licences

Faster turn-around of licences, more consistency — make a service-level-agreement
of what LLs can expect from the Council in these (and other) respects

Have a positive marketing campaign to promote the good LLs to students, tenants
and residents which will in turn help improve values of compliant, licensed properties
Provide more opportunities for sharing best practice between LLs

Fewer inspections

More resources for tenancy relations

Better signposting for planning and building control

05 August

Improve processes / be less bureaucratic
Longer licences

Self regulation / control

Online application — uploading of documents / automatic reminders when gas etc
due or renewals due

Greater consistency in conditions / inspections / requirements
Make money to fund licensing services

Get other HMOs licensed

Rewards or incentives for landlords

Streamline contact

219



Cross boundary accreditation

EPCs - new requirement, work with centrica to get funding for energy efficiency
works

THREATS

21 July

KEY THEMES:
Lack of housing -Majority of HMOs available to student market- What about
professionals? Forcing families out.
Inadequate resources limit ability to administer scheme
New legislation — Legionella. EPC requirements, section 21 notices
Fear of renting- Restricting choice
‘The Unknown’- Restricts long term planning ie for investment
Poor IT infrastructure
Working with a failing system
Mistakes- getting it right first time to avoid generation of more work.
Majority of HMOs available to student market- What about professionals?
Forcing families out of rental market.
Need to be evidence based
OCC becoming overloaded- Inadequate resources limit ability to administer scheme
Oxford CC- Over regulation
Yearly licencing
Consistency issues
Overstretching resources
Staffing levels and retaining staff
Double standards eg exemption of Housing Association properties
Agent- Not checking licence conditions
Erratic
‘The Unknown’- Restricts long term planning ie for investment
Threatening letters- changing mind
Bureaucracy- more hotel than home

Other general comments

Poor IT

People not buying into the scheme

New legislation — Legionella. EPC requirements, section 21 notices
Lack of confidence in authority

Staffing levels

Losing credibility

Back dating of licences

Management of works

Too complicated- People opt out and don’t subscribe to the schemes
Working with a failing system- better not to bother

Inadequate resources

220



Lack of housing

Purchasing property- issue with whether or not you will get a licence
Inadequate resources

High rents

Additional costs

Fear of renting- Restricting choice

Homelessness issue

Proportionality

Mistakes- getting it right first time to avoid generation of more work.

More HMOs than staff

Rogue LL ignoring the scheme

IT

Poor communications

OCC- Own staff no consultants

Losing goodwill of good landlords eg due to poor communication
Not working in partnership to improve management

Higher penalties for rogue landlords

Process is too involved- Introduction of self-certification scheme
Tenancy issues

People not licencing

Inefficiency

Lowering to 3 people

Landlords won'’t let as an HMO

Reducing housing

Evidence based

Undermining scheme

Focus on unlicensed

Prioritisation

Identification of unlicensed

05 August 2015

Longer licences could lead to drop in standards — landlords are used to getting
regular inspections so don’t bother to do their own checks

Expensive lawsuits or tribunals if get things wrong e.g. minimum room sizes —
national guidance is more generous than oxford could lead to lawsuit for lost rent

Property prices go up

Pressure on accommodation

Capacity of team to deal with volume of licences

Loose reputation

Lack of knowledge of rogue landlords or agents from other LA moving to Oxford

OCC unable to attract or retain good staff

221



Licensing extended to all houses
More judicial reviews of scheme
Becomes over — regulated

Standards keep going up and becomes burden on landlords — loose support of
willing landlords

Demanding inspection regimes

Inconsistency

APPENDIX 2 — Agents Focus Group
Some Notes Following Our Meeting.

Thank you all for making it on Wednesday........ | know it was at short notice, but
they had fixed the dates of the consultation period, and I think it was worthwhile
having our input.

| have prepared some very brief notes of the main points...... could you confirm that
they are accurate and that | have not left anything out? Please feel free to add bits
or change as you see fit!

1. The agents represented agreed that the aim of the Additional Licensing
Scheme, to improve the quality of the stock in the PRS were shared by us and
our clients. None-the-less there were concerns that an estimated 40 to 50%
of HMOs in the city remain unlicensed, and that whilst the “good” landlords
continued to pay into the scheme, there were apparent incentives for the
‘rogue” landlords to continue to avoid it.

2. The agents represented welcomed the exploration of the re-introduction of an
extended license; there was agreement that 5 years would be ideal, but
understood that a license could not be granted beyond the term of any
scheme extension. There was further consensus that there should be a
number of prerequisites to the offering of the longer license.

A.) That some clarity was required about what constituted a fit and proper
person/organisation to own/manage a property offered an extended
license.

B.) That the property would need to be fully compliant with any historical
conditions imposed on the last license term.

C.) That the cost of such a license was calculated in such a way as to
represent a real incentive to apply for it.

D.) That the license holder, and or property manager would need to agree to
random auditing/moderation of standards at short notice. Such notice to be
negotiated.

3. The agents represented welcomed the idea of strengthening the accredited
status afforded to landlords and agents. In principle, it was accepted that the

222



accreditation scheme should be cost neutral, and we would welcome further
consultation on how this might be improved.

4. There was some frustration expressed about the delay in issuing some
licenses since before Christmas last year, and the difficulty with making
contact within the licensing team. The agents represented asked if we could
have a dedicated single point of contact as part of the accredited status
offering.

5. Similarly there was some concern expressed over inconsistencies and
inaccuracies in conditions imposed; a single point of contact would assist with
this too.

6. There were issues with organisations having to nominate an individual to be
the license holder; if the named individual leaves the organisation there is
potential for considerable expense. It was asked if we could explore an officer
position could be used as a license holder (with a named individual for fit and
proper person purposes) and if the licensed could be varied if the post holder
changed (subject to compliance with above)

7. The agents represented welcomed the news that the new database should be
rolled out before any renewal of the scheme. Plenty of volunteers for testing!

APPENDIX 3 - Oxford University Student HMO Focus Group

The purpose of this group is to seek views from students on the issues
relating to HMOs and the Licensing of this type of accommodation in the City.

Areas of interest

» Have you lived in an HMO in Oxford in the past five years?
« Do you know Licensing Scheme existed in Oxford since 20117
+ Wasi it licensed or not?

« Do you know the address?

+  What was the experience like?

« What was the property like?

* How did you find living there?

« Was this the first time in a private rented HMO?

+ What was your relationship like with the landlord/ agents?
« Were repairs dealt with promptly?

* How well was the property managed?

« Did it meet your expectations?

» Generally how was the experience?

Overview of Minimum Standards required in HMOs

223



e Capture experience

e Knowing what the minimum standards are for HMOs can you ‘see’ any
impact as a result of the Scheme?

e Have standards improved?

e Did your landlord /agent do regular management inspections?

e Any personal experience/ examples?

The future of Licensing

e |If the Scheme were to be renewed what could be introduced / changed
to improve your experience of living in a HMO?

Additional ways to get involved in the Consultation

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/consultation

RESPONSES
WHAT IS AN HMO?

Sharing
Separate Groups/ Individuals
Individuals pay Council Tax separately and share bills

HAVE YOU LIVED IN A HMO - yes (all 7)

Licensed? -5 knew Certificate was on wall (displayed) 2 not sure not seen
licence

DID YOU KNOW ABOUT LICENSING - 7 didn"t know but assumed certain
standards would have to be met

Didn’t check when looking for accommodation and not always clear what type
of property — learnt from experience on which properties/ agents to avoid.

Took initiative and adverts often put up by person moving out often has info.

EXPERIENCE OF LIVING IN A HMO

Good - Landlord has British Gas care and any problems are sorted
immediately.

Previous HMO took a long time to get anything fixed

Friends have had problems in older housing so decided to go with modern
house

Agent very responsive — landlord not so good

Not always clear about size of rooms and can mislead to get let.

224


http://www.oxford.gov.uk/consultation

RELATIONSHIP

Difficult to get repairs done — blame students for damage and can sometimes
be challenging

Landlord occasionally visits —3 don't know who their landlords are.

1 has exceptionally good landlord — gives notice etc..

1 has landlord who is ok — give notice and does repairs but not very quickly

2 have landlords who do not give notice and use shed/ garage to store stuff —
turn up without notice and move stuff — can be difficult to contact to get
repairs done — one day heard landlord in garden and didn’t even know he had
gone through the house.

MANAGEMENT
Cleaner comes in every week and written into tenancy agreement that a
management inspection every 6 months.

Inspection every few months with 1 week notice given —tidy up communal
areas ourselves

No management inspections —when report issues agent ignorant/ doesn't care
about problem (mould) not responsive to concerns raised eg. Shower tray
fitted wrong way causes flooding every time shower is used — NOPS slow to
deal with

Premier — Contract Late.. had to sit in office to get them to give it to me

Change of occupants.. not notified some random person in kitchen eating food
out of fridge

Communication not good!

Landlord empowers us to find replacement tenants when one person leaves
and to deal with B Gas Homecare to arrange repairs to items that are covered.

MEET EXPECTATIONS?
Had low expectations to begin with- heard a lot of horror stories from friends

Definitely dealt with differently to working professionals — because ‘just’
students

Felt pressured into taking properties on — bit of a bidding war created by agent
— scaremonger approach by Premier — changed goalposts and told us to we
had been gazumped

NOPS - 2 offices — clearly different — professionals office and students office —

different types of HMOs available — went into professionals office and told to
go next door

225



Brick walled by some agents who ‘don’t take students’. l,e NOPs no under 25's
for some properties

IMPACT OF SCHEME

Can't get something better as a student — first come first served as a student —
easier to find now not a student and started working do not have to rush or
settled for something less.

Found out for self and noticed slight change in that we needed to test fire
alarms

STANDARDS

Didn’t know what was required

Based on budget — lower rent — lower standards

Took on properties in better condition through advice from older students —
pick a decent letting agent as opposed to house or landlord

Reputable agent will deal with people’s expectations
University provides list of reputable agents

INTRODUCE TO CHANGE/ IMPROVE EXPERIENCE?

Know if it is a HMO

Checklist of requirements

List of Council approved agents

Facts sheets on minimum standards

Feed into ‘living out guide’

Freshers fayre — 2" years

30second video signposting

Notification of licence requirements to occupiers

226



APPENDIX 4 — NLA RESPONSE

Y

L

NATIONAL
LANDLORDS
ASSOCIATION

National Landlords Association:

Response to Oxford Council progosal for Additional Licensing

August 2015

227



The Mational Landlords Associstion (WLA| eosts to protect and promote the interests of privete
residential Iandionds. WWith more than 33,000 incividusl Brdiords from anourd the United Kingdom,
WE prowide B comprehensive range of benefits and ssrdicss to our members snd strive o s
sEanoarcs within the privete repted sschor.

The HLA seeks a fair legisiative and reguintory ersirorement for the privete rented ss=ctor while
miming to Ensune that Isndionds sre aware of their sterbubory Aights and responsibilites.

The Hatioral Lardlords Associetion (MLA) would like to thank Ocford Coundd for providing the
opportupity to comment on liosnsing.

In the Sovernment procedural documesnt - “Approval steps for Additionsl and Selective Licensing
Designation in England’, it stabes that in onder to apply Tor Additional Licensing a loml housing
suthaority "wil Fowe o show how such o designotion will be part of the cverall strotegic borough
wide goprocch, and how it fits with axsting poiicias on Homaiessress, Empty femes. Regensrchon
ond Anti-songi befoviour. ” with the council pot reviewing the articks £ dirsction in relstion to shared
hoeusing, this shows a failure in joined up policy by Cidford Coundl

We are disappainted by the councils lack of joined up policy meking. Feilure to wiew acditions]
licensing with the article 4 direction that ourrently is in place mesns that the joint impact is not
mesasured aoross Cford.

Whiy dises the ooundl mot pause the consultation wntl sfter the sowemment's consufation om
Houses of MuRipls Sooupation, before urdertaking such & Costly exercse?

One= of the dangers of the proposed Additional Licensing scheme is costs are passed through o
t=nants, thus inressing oest further for those who rent in an arss, slong with the oost of the council
Thus inmeasing oosts to Ouwford residents espedally the most vulnerable. This hiss already besn seen
with the coundil trying ko house people in Birmingham’. The current polices which the council is
Inoking to ke=p will make ratters worse.

The city courdl has a top three gloosl university which drews students from sooss the world; this is
putting pressure om the howsng markst. A4k a time when universities sre competing to get mons
skudents will put grester pressore on the dby's kousing market. With sbudents able to spend mons
than those in receipk of welfsre will only push more people from coford due 9 the lsck of shared
howusing.

In acdition to students, young professionals, migranks msks up an important part of the shared
housing market the UK The change in welfare housing means thers is &n inoeasing demand for
shared housing. For obvious economic reasons and fior flexibility, shared housing is @n impartant
source of housing fior these srouns. Howsser, demand is not siatic. Thus the impadt of these polices
will hewe an impact on the lower soonomic sroups within Cofiord.

228



. The use of Addithonal Licsnsing whidh is Iandiord/jproperty based, will not resokae misny of the issues

which are caused by temants — they are tenant based issess. Landlonds haee Bmited powers in
sdcressng these a5 any direct action by the landiord to address issues such 25 ASE oan be stmted a5
being harassment by the tenant.

. The coundl kas sinesdy had this scheme in place for five yesrs. I the scheme has been 8 sucoess,
why do=s the coundl need to keep it” The coundl has brought ail the properties up to stendard. IFit
has reot whiy is the ooundl undertaking & scheme that has failed?

. We are disappointed by the coundils atb=mpt to misuse statistics within the proposals.

. The HLA believes that any nepulstion of the private rented sector esds to b= balenosd. 1k should be
the shared cojectives of all partes imvolved to fudiitsbe the best possible cubcomes for landkords and
tenants and as such good practice should be recognised and encouraged in addition to the required
Tonzs on enforoement activity. In light of the curr=nk = conomic dimate. The last thing good lardiords
snd terants resd is sdditional costs.

. Agmain, the MLA would like to thank Owford Council for the opportunity to respond to this
consulkation and kope you find our comenenks wsshul

229



APPENDIX 5 — RLA RESPONSE

20" August 2015

A

RESIDENTIAL LANDLORDS
ASSOCIATION

By e-mail: hmos@oxford.gov.uk

Adrian Chowns
HMO Enforcement Team Manager

1 Roebuck Lane,
Sale, Manchester M33 7SY
Tel: 0845 666 5000

Oxford City Council Fax: 0845 665 1845
109 St Aldate's Chambers, Email:info@rla.org.uk
St Aldate's, Website: www.rla.org.uk
Oxford, Facebook: TheRLA

OX1 1DS Twitter: @RLA_News

Dear Mr Chowns

REVIEW OF LICENSING OF HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION 2015
RLA CONSULTATION RESPOSNE

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the above consultation. The RLA has a
concerns about licensing schemes in general, and a number in relation to the continuation of
the Oxford scheme.

General concerns:

Vi,

Discretionary licensing often entails much bureaucracy, time, effort and expense is
taken up in setting up and administering schemes; rather than spending it on the
ground and flushing out criminal landlords.

Discretionary licensing is not being used for its intended purpose of a short period of
intensive care; rather it is being used by the back door to regulate the PRS.

The level of fees which are ultimately passed on to tenants to pay is a major worry so
far as it affects landlords.

We believe that a significant number of landlords are still operating under the radar
without being licensed.

As always it is the compliant landlord who is affected by the schemes. They pay the
high fees involved but do not need regulation of this kind.

There is little use of “fit and proper person” powers to exclude bad landlords.

Specific concerns

Government Review of HMO Licensing
We believe that any decision to continue with additional licensing of HMOs in Oxford is
premature, in light of the Government’s plans to review mandatory licensing and HMO

230


mailto:hmos@oxford.gov.uk
http://www.rla.org.uk/
http://www.facebook.com/TheRLA

definitions. Oxford’s scheme could very quickly be superseded by a new mandatory
licensing regime, or HMO definition, wasting time and money of landlords and the Council.

Independent Verification of Data

We are concerned that there appears to be no external evaluation of the licensing scheme,
independent verification of the data presented in the reports to elected members or of the
option appraisal.

Room Sizes

Following Clark v Manchester City Council, while councils can offer guidance on what area it
considers too small for an adult bedroom, it cannot adopt mandatory standards non-
compliance with which would result in a determination that a house was not suitable. What is
required in each case is a consideration of the room and the property as a whole on their
merits, rather than by reference to a fixed minimum floor area.

Standards

Oxford’s licensing standards are, in many cases, excessive. Areas that give concerns are:
requirement of tiling of bathroom splashback and shower cubicles, when other solutions are
available; specification for equipment for kitchens and bedsits, such as a minimum fridge
size of 130l litres for a bedsit.

Costs

For landlords, the cost of licensing in Oxford is at the higher end of the scale. At present the
lowest cost over the five years of the scheme is £1120 for accredited landlords only (initial
one year licence at £712 and two two-year renewals at £208 each). Most landlords will pay
much more.

Accreditation

We believe that should include accreditation schemes other than those operated by the City
Council and the NLA. For example, the RLA operates a national accreditation scheme,
RLAAS, that meets the requirements of the London Accreditation Standard, likewise the
DASH accreditation scheme in the East Midlands. This would allow more landlords to
access reduced fees.

Again, thank you for giving consideration to the RLA’s concerns.

Yours Sincerely

John Stewart

POLICY AND COMMUNICATIONS MANAGER

APPENDIX 6 — CAB RESPONSE

From: Frank Newhofer [mailto:frank@newhofer.freeserve.co.uk]
Sent: 03 August 2015 14:04

To: HMOs

Subject: additional comments to HMO consultation from Oxford CAB

231


mailto:frank@newhofer.freeserve.co.uk

We have completed the on-line consultation on the ‘Review of Licensing of HMOs’ and submit
the following additional comments:

From our caseload in 2014/15 we have seen the following range of issues in relation to the
private rented sector:

Clients have told us of serious problems with:

poorly managed properties where health risks caused by disrepair are not addressed
retaliatory evictions as a result of complaints being made about the state of properties
failure to protect and return tenancy deposits

frauds and scams around the availability of private rented accommodation

we very strongly support the Council’s Option 3 to renew the licensing

scheme. Consideration might be given to increase the flexibility within the scheme so
that landlords who have proved themselves to be good landlords can derive benefit in
terms of lower fees and/or longer accreditation. Consumer protection for private renters
is indeed very poor and all measures that have the potential to bring pressure to bear on
landlords to manage their properties safely and more effectively are very welcome

Frank Newhofer
Oxford CAB

APPENDIX 7 —= OCF RESPONSE

Date: 24" August 2015
Topic : HMO Consultation 2015

Accreditation

Accreditation should be made easy, less bureaucratic; it is becoming
more complicated and confusing. Criteria used for accreditation should
be certified.

Lack of awareness among landlords and too much bureaucracy in
application, HMO + Accreditation.

Accreditation license period of 3 to 5 years for accredited landlords.
Conditions of houses: new officers to be more aware of laws and
guidelines.

HMO applications need to be simplified. Online system needs to
improve and should be simplified. There should be a summary before
the form is submitted.

Guidance/Guidelines (Not Standards)

232



The HMO policy requirements are used as strict standards therefore the
officers are enforcing the rules as strict standards and not showing
flexibility.

We believe that the HMO policies are a set of guidance/guidelines and
should not be perceived as strict standards. The problem with standards
is officers do not show any flexibility and rigidly follow the standards.
No cohesion between different officers, different advice and different
criteria.

Guidelines to be set in aid to help landlords in future HMO applications.
This should be clarified to new officers that these rules should be
guidelines, depending on varied circumstances from property to
property.

Adopt a policy of training new staff using new HMO rules (especially on
the condition of properties and renovation) as ‘guidelines/guidance’,
and not ‘standard.’

Officers should be aware of these guidelines.

General

Officers informed that there is a thought of introducing a league table
based on performance of managing agents and landlords. What are the
criteria for the league table?

Back log of issuing licenses.

General attitude of the council staff needs to be improved.

We were informed by the officers that the initial perception of OCC was
that there were 3000 HMOs in the city; the actual figure is could be as
much as 7000 HMOs. Where was this figure retrieved from? Is it based
on factual evidence? Why wasn’t the figure used in the 2010
consultation?

Various criteria by officers: training will be required, what kind of
training is provided?

Rogue landlords should be perused and targeted.

Tenants

Visiting student houses.
Tenants ought to be responsible for the issues caused by them.
Homelessness: increasing due to smaller HMO licensing.

233



e Families attempt to become intentionally homeless by not maintaining
the property and then reporting the issues to environmental health.
Environmental Health unwittingly helps the tenants to apply for council
housing.

e Clarification on the guidelines on issues such as: landlord lets the house
to a family; the family sublets the house/rooms, environmental health
becomes aware and informs the landlord. Now the landlord cannot
issue a Section 21 notice without a HMO application. Neither the
landlord nor the tenant is willing to apply for a HMO license.

With the scenario above, what measures should be taken to sort out this

issue? If the tenants sublet the property, the responsibility should be on
the tenant to apply for HMO and not the landlord.

234



E| AR
% | OXFORD
CITY
; COUNCIL
Overview of HMOs and Licensing In

GEC

Oxford
\ 4
Adrian Chowns
HMO Enforcement Team Manager
Oxford City Council



Oxford PRS

More households now rent rather than own their home

(30 90 AT 20 0% 70 DIOOMce o LA%rd POUSIAINS WO SWR TR POEn B onc e rom UL 1
1951 0 47% e 2001 Ahist T pOogonon W i 0 socml rosan peonely Cemad hom Ta coaal o a
Ponsny smochon) M deseed e 1908 Be propoten of focactekdc ang o prvals sorod e
ey savond dowtihed oo 16% (o 20% - e bl o of 2011 more housachokds seniog e owed By
e

PR

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

www.oxford.gov.uk

H

0.‘}'10“[)
Housing tenure of Oxford households, 1981 - 2011 P08

R Owner occupied
(@)}
829, -
52% 84%
47N Social rented Private rented
%
2%
% 1% 21%
1% 16%
W 1 o WL MY 1R 00 01 W o o e A

My Hates RO TG e [&F FATTeT S
Faviy Bare ot S AW S She L 4o e TRLLINLE T tnsas TRV A LM e Sl e
MRS 223 P A N

MESY °



Oxford HMOs

AN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

www.oxford.gov.uk

/.

| TE i qumu‘ “
ouidl . ABONE W h lli_ “1! IH--*‘:""

7‘1?’,‘33 Qi i fl |iﬂ1 il

S ¥

h
|

-



s

. . -
Oxford City Council S %
E AAA
The Council's ambition is for Oxford to be a 3 O)él;%[(m
‘World Class City for Everyone’... ; COUNCIL

Council has five priorities which directly address

the needs of the City

\ 4
Key driver is ‘Meeting Housing Needs’
Improving standards in the Private Rented Sector



£
Environmental Health Service 2 %
I
- Environmental Health Service “seeks to protect = O)gr?‘l(lD
and sustainably develop the environment for all ; COUNCIL

people living, working and visiting the City”..

Through Education, Engagement and
Enforcement
\ 4
Working with landlords since the mid 80's to
Improve conditions within the HMO stock
 Dedicated team developed in 1990 to tackle
growing problems in the City

* 6¢€¢



Environmental Health Service

ove*

Continued approach since with a variety of
Interventions to tackle problems in the HMO
stock

In 1999 the Council introduced a registration
scheme

Resulted in the migration of rental properties to
other parts of the City

Some landlords and agents tried to evade
regulation

More recently Landlord Accreditation

x %

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



n L] g
Licensing — The Early years 8 %
E A
« Dedicated teams proactively worked on 3 O’éﬁ’?"
mandatory licensing of HMOs ; COUNCIL

 Implemented arigourous approach to processing

the requirements of the legislation
N \ 4
£ Insisting that the licence must be more than just

a piece of paper
 Used to upgrade each property to a decent

standard



-
Licensing — The Early Years 2 %
A
« Enabled the Council to have a positive impact on 3 O)g;?gn
the condition and management of 581 properties ; COUNCIL

« Where compliance was not achieved enforcement

» Wwas pursued
D
\ 4
« Giving tenants and neighbours confidence that
the Council are serious about addressing issues
around HMOs

c



E
Licensing — The Early Years 2 %
£ AR
« Council had used existing powers to their full = O)g%)‘l(ln
extent ; COUNCIL

« Took more prosecutions against landlords than

any other Council in England or Wales
\ 4
But still wasn’t enough and concluded that more
needed to be done...
* Introduced additional licensing of HMOs enabing
a reactive and proactive approach to the whole of
the HMO sector

eve



Additional Licensing of HMOs

°

N
1SN
SN

In 2010 Oxford City became the first Local
Authority to designate the whole of its area
subject to Additional Licensing of HMOs

This is a power provided within the Housing Act
2004

Scheme operates for 5 years with Phase 1
commencing on the 24t January 2011 and Phase
2 on the 30" January 2012

2

PRI

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~

www.oxford.gov.uk



Purpose of Licensing

Sve °

Additional Licensing in Oxford provides a
mechanism to secure the improvement of all of
the HMO stock in the City and is a significant
undertaking by the Council.

When it was first introduced the overall purpose
of the licensing scheme was to: ‘alleviate the
housing situation by setting and maintaining
minimum standards across the city in the most
vulnerable sector of Oxfords private rental
market’.

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

PRI

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~



= u g
Future of Licensing s %
E AAA
 Under s.60 (3) of the Housing Act 2004 ‘a local = O)gr?‘l(lD
housing authority must from time to time review ; COUNCIL

the operation of any designation made by them’

, This review fulfils the responsibility under the

& legislation but also provides the Council with a &
progress report which will be used as a platform
for considering the future of the scheme.



E
Where are we now? 2 %
A
« Review complete and reported to City Executive = O)él;%l(m
Board in June 2015 ; COUNCIL

 Approved findings of review and proposal to

renew scheme in its entirety

\ 4
10 week statutory consultation commenced on
15t June 2015 ends on the 24t August 2015

Lye



=

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

www.oxford.gov.uk

The good, the bad, the ugly side of

HMO Licensing
Dawn Cox, Team Leader, HMO Licensing Team Y
Katherine Coney, Principal Lead Officer, HMO
Enforcement Team

8¢



Our experience of applicants
and licence holders

6¥¢

The Good - makes applying and retaining a
licence easier for all parties concerned

The Bad — makes applying and retaining a licence
more costly and may lead to enforcement

The Ugly — leads to enforcement, intervention and
prosecution

x %

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



The Good

NEW Licences

*0S¢

Application form is fully completed

All requested documents and fees are submitted
within the required deadlines

Proposed licence holder and/or manager are fit
and proper

House meets the required standard or is able to
meet the required standard subject to conditions
being applied to that licence

x %

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



The Good

EXISTING Licences

T6¢C°

We are informed of any material changes as they
happen ie: third parties and their contact details

We are informed of any issue for complying with
a condition ie: more time required

Appointments to visit the property to check
compliance with conditions are timely

Upon re-inspection the conditions have been
complied with

x %

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



=
The Good... g
E AAA
. OXFORD
<
RENEWED Licences ; CITY
COUNCIL

Application form, all requested documents and
fees are submitted within the required deadlines

All conditions have been discharged (complied [ 4
with)

* No justified service requests (complaints)

 Accredited by the NLA or OCLAS

WAST



=
The Good... 8 %
3| A
« HMO Enforcement Team don’t get involved = O)él;%[:n
; COUNCIL

€ac

~



E
The Bad... : %
A
Not necessarily avoiding responsibility... = O)él;%[:l)
; COUNCIL

» just don’t keep us informed, and/or

» don’t do things on time g
\ 4

1%



The Bad

NEW Licences

GGe °

Application form is not fully completed and
Important information missing. Further requests
for information are ‘drip fed’

Requested documents and fees are not submitted
within the required deadlines and we are not
Informed of any difficulties

Proposed licence holder and/or manager are not
fit and proper

Proposed licence holder and/or manager are not
the most appropriate person(s)

a2

=

=

% %’

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



=
The Bad... 2 %’
E AAA
. OXFORD

e
EXISTING Licences ; CITY
COUNCIL

« We are not informed of any material changes as they
happen i.e.: resulting in third party information being

inaccurate for the renewal declaration — frustrating for
applicants and causes delays
We are not informed of any issues with meeting \ 4
conditions: if further time is required we may be able to
vary the licence and delay the re-inspection (Note: the
re-inspection must occur during the life of the licence)
 Appointments to visit the property to check
compliance with conditions are delayed resulting in
renewal information not being clear i.e.: two different
fees quoted (and not able to offer a two year licence at I

* 946¢

that stage)



The Bad...

RENEWED Licences

LS¢e

Application form, all requested documents and
fees are not submitted within the required
deadlines

There are outstanding conditions

There may have been some justified service
requests (complaints)

x %

=3

>

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



E
The Bad... s %
E AAA
« And when the Licensing Team have done all they = O)g;?gn
can and the applicant / licence holder still hasn’t ; COUNCIL

complied.... Over to the HMO Enforcement Team

8G¢

~



The Bad...

6S5¢C

Failure to send in documentation for an
application — it will be invalid! It is an offence to
make an invalid application

Failure to send in gas or electrical certificates
when requested — it is an offence under
Management Regulations

We will write to the landlord to explain the
seriousness and if they still don’t comply....

x %

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



-

=
The Bad... g %
E AAA
* |Interview under caution — establish has an = O)él;ggn
offence been committed? ; COUNCIL

Refusal to grant licence because we don’t have
confidence in management

Possible prosecution or caution if an offence has

been committed! Then you would not be Fit and &
Proper and wouldn’t be able to hold a licence

We would revoke / refuse all licences

Someone else needs to hold a licence for you or

if you don’t find someone else we consider

suitable then Council will make an interim

management order where the Council take over

the management of the property -

09¢*

« All for not sending in something when asked!



The Bad...

* T19¢ °

Failure to complete work required as a condition

It is an offence to fail to comply with any
condition on alicence

Not done on first inspection — may carry over the
work to the next licence. This means landlords
are charged a higher fee.

Second re-inspection — still not done...

Interview under caution — has an offence been
committed?

Possible prosecution or caution!

Then you would not be Fit and Proper and
wouldn’t be able to hold a licence

Revocation of all existing licences
Could lead to an Interim Management Order (IMO)

a2

=

=

% %’

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



The Ugly.... : %
5| AAA
= | OXFORD

* Those § et

landlords that COUNCIL
ignore their
legal

¢9¢

responsibilities
* Don’t apply for
alicence

e Poor
conditions

* Over -
occupied

~



The Ugly...

4TS

Prosecuted 42
landlords / agents
for HMO related
offences

Issued 39 formal
cautions

129 offences In
total

Over £161,000 In
fines

Over £35,700 In
COSts

www.oxford.gov.uk

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

N



The Ugly...

16

14 -

9¢ ~

Number of Prosecutions and Cautions since 2011

2011 2012 PG E] FGE]

2015

W Prosecutions

® Cautions

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

PR

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~



The Ugly...

PN

OXFORD

CITY
COUNCIL

Number of offences since 2011

www.oxford.gov.uk

Failure to return $235 notice

o
-
o
[
Q
[
Q
&
o
=]
[~

70

0
Fallure to return 16 notice -
NF.;ilure to comply with Improvement Notice I '
o
F.’cn.lljt.»lre to comply with Management Regulations _
Failure to comply with conditions -
Over-occupation l



The Ugly...

Caution or prosecution leads to:

%9 °

Person who has committed the offence not being
fit and proper

Any one associated with them being not fit and
proper e.g. husband / wife / business partner

Refusal / revocations of licences
New application needed (full fee)
New licence holder cannot be related to applicant

If no application is made, the Council can take
over the management of the property for five
years

The Council has made 4 Interim Management
Orders since 2011

a2

=

=

% %’

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



19¢

Thanks
Any questions

i

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~

www.oxford.gov.uk



=

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

www.oxford.gov.uk

Blind Licensing — 1, 3 or 5 year

licences
\ 4
Katherine Coney, Principal Lead Officer, HMO
Enforcement Team

89¢



1, 3or 5year licences?

69¢°

The scheme is currently an annual licensing
scheme

Introduced 2 year licences to recognise
accredited landlords who complied with all their
conditions, submitted applications promptly and
fully completed and where there were no
complaints from tenants

Possibility of having longer licences with the
renewed scheme

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

PRI

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~



1 year licence - default

Scheme remains as annual licence
Default is to get a 1 year licence

Where we have concerns about the management
of the property e.qg.

— outstanding conditions,

— reminders needed to submit applications or documents,

— On re-inspection we find lots of repair problems leading to new
conditions and further re-inspection,

=

=3

>

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



3 year licence —some ideas

1.¢

To recognise and reward good landlords and
agents who are:

Accredited (OCLAS / NLA)

Attend one Oxford run training event each year
Make full applications on time and made valid quickly
All documents submitted and are current

On re-inspection find less than 3 new repair issues that could
be due to tenant behaviour

No more than 2 service requests about the property received
by Oxford

a2

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



5 year licences —some ideas

¢z

Applications submitted on time and made valid
without need for reminders

Fee and documents submitted on time

All conditions completed

No new conditions

No service requests received about the property
Have completed your own Fire Risk Assessment

x %

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



Other considerations

€2¢

Does this apply to each landlord or each
property?

Licences could be varied e.qg. if standards slip we
could vary the licence from 3 year to 1 year

Where there is improvement, you could move up
a level

Risk rate conditions e.qg. fire safety / poor
conditions may lead to a 1 year licence whereas
minor decoration would be accepted under a 3
year licence

x %

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



v/c

Key Findings from Review

Adrian Chowns
HMO Enforcement Team Manager

=

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~

www.oxford.gov.uk



_ =
Why Review? g %
E AAA
 Under s.60 (3) of the Housing Act 2004 ‘a local = O)él;%l;n
housing authority must from time to time review ; COUNCIL

the operation of any designation made by them’

 This review fulfils the responsibility under the
legislation but also provides the Council with a

cﬁﬂ progress report to use as a platform for L
considering the future of the scheme.



Scope

9.2

Profile of HMOs

Licensing

Compliance

Incentives

Enforcement

%

=3

>

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



4
. =
Profile of HMOs g
E AAA
. OXFORD
Growth of PRS in Oxford g CITY
COUNCIL

* HMOs currently make up ‘A A -
approx. 44% of stock ‘ N

Around 7,000 HMOs

°

N
\l
\l

* Increase of 36% over past 6
years

~




-
HMO Licensing Overview 2 %
E AAA
| OXFORD
* Licensed some 3,500 HMOs § CITY
COUNCIL

 Processed over 7,000 applications (new and
renewals)

& Attached around 80,000 conditions to licences v
e Over 19,000 visits carried out to HMOs
 100's of investigations

c



4
] =
Reminders g %
S| AA
Percentage of Applications requiring a g OXFORD
reminder E CITY
100% COUNCIL
00% B7%

84%

1056

0%
2012-13 201314 2014 Apr to Sep

BO%%
70% 719%

700

N 70% L 4
~l 68%
ord

S50% Fest Reminder

- Second Remmnder

A0%%

30%

2006



Invalid applications

80%
70%

S0%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Percentage Invalid applications

73%
64%

44%

9%
6%

2011 2012 2013 2014 Overall

~ePercentage Invalid applications

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

AN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~



Conditions

T8¢

Section 67 HA 2004

Council considers appropriate

Management, use and occupation
Condition and contents

May in particular include

Restricting numbers

Prevent or reduce ASB

Providing facilities and equipment

Keep facilities and equipment in good repair
Completing work within specified periods

=

=3

>

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



. E
Conditions s %
S| AAA
« Mandator g el
y CITY
— Gas certificate every 12 months COUNCIL

— Electrical appliances and declaration
— Furniture and declaration

— Smoke alarms installed and kept in proper order
and declaration &
— Written statement of terms on occupation
= ‘:_i b
] [H =1 H A |
B comesne 7
: msrpuen — - .

8¢

b T ATTENTION STOPS

—_—
N N« ver leave your cookin g unattende: ded
—_




Legal and Standard Conditions Fire Safety based Conditions
14000 « 6000
§
é 12000 11970 g 5000
10000
5660 g 4000 4018
| - 3
- 71172 2 2000
3 6000 g
= & 2500 2083
s 4000 E
§ 2000 2336 ‘E 1000 1139
2
0 E o
201112 2012-13 201314 2014.15 Apr to z 2011-12 2012-13 201314 2014-15 Apr to
Sep
Average Conditions per Licence
20
§is
3 14 1S
3 Additional Conditions
o
%10
s ¥ s
N i Managment Conditions
oo z
w £
Legally Required Conditions
[+
2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 201314 2014-15 Apr to
Sep
Amenities and Facilities based Health and Safety based Conditions
Conditions 16000
800 g 14000 13528
2 i 705 5
§ ‘g 12000
600
g Sy S 10000 0447
£ 500 3
b= @ 8000 ¢ 7708
2 a00 &
z 6000
& 300 s
£ 259 T 4000
5 200 = 3300
§ 100 108 z 2000
z
o 0
2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 Apr to 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 Apr to
Sep Sep




Compliance rates

¥8¢

20%
18%
16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%
2%
0%

Percentage of Renewal Applications with
conditions outstanding

18%

15% 13% 14%

7%

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 201314 2014-15 -Apr
Sep

%

=

>

(=)

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



Compliance rates

35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%

5%

34%

|

16%

www.oxford.gov.uk

26%

Works Done Licence

conditions
outstanding

Additional  Outstanding  Referrals to
conditions and enforcement
additional
conditions

‘l 4%

PN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

Works Done

30%
25%
‘ 11% ' 10%

Outstanding
and additional enforcement

A




Investment

 Estimated
approximately £3.2
million invested in
HMOs in the City.

Equates to £930.00 per
licensed HMO over past
4 years

98¢

* Average investment
annually grew up to
2014,

 Dramatically reduced in
14/15

www.oxford.gov.uk

£1,400,000
£1,200,000
£1,000,000
£800,000
£600,000
£400,000

£200,000

Investment in Licensed HMOs 2011 -

AN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~



Fees and Incentives

18¢

No fee or limit set by Government
Up to Council to calculate costs

Consider staff costs, training, inspections,
administration and publicity

Council sets its licence fees and if appropriate
may decide to subsidise licence fees in some
cases

x %

=3

>

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



Fees and Incentives

OCC introduced Scheme as self financing
Fees and charges reviewed regularly

In early years fees increased with inflation
2014 significant change

Simplify approach

Acknowledge that no time difference based on
size of HMO

x %

=3

>

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



Fees and Incentives 2 %
% | drromd

« New structure § CITY
COUNCIL

 Acknowledged lees time spent with ‘good’
landlords

:B Higher fee for ‘confidence in management’ | 4
©
« 2year licence for accredited landlords/agents



Fees and Incentives

062

Landlord accreditation

Improve condition and management of PRS
Free to join

Requirement to attend one day training

Provides an opportunity for landlords to become
better at managing and maintaining properties in
the PRS under their control without the need for
the Council s to intervene.

In 2014 ...94 Landlords and Agents have taken up
accreditation.. Current membership 77

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

PRI

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~



Enforcement

*T6¢

Proactive approach to enforcement

Took more prosecutions than most other LA's
100 s of investigations

33 successful prosecutions in the past 12 months
£110k fines

Interim Management Orders

x %

=3

>

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



Enforcement

62

Historically focussed on unlicensed HMOs

Non compliance cases informal approach

Formal action in handful of cases

Losing licence great concern

Steps taken to remedy without legal intervention

x %

=3

>

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



_ E
Recommendations s %
E AAA
« Scrutiny Panel considered report to June City = O’éﬁ’gn
Executive Board ; COUNCIL

« City Council renews the HMO licensing scheme in

Its entirety for a further 5 years
\ 4
Consideration should be given to appropriate
Incentives and disincentives for landlords
« Balance between taking a more pro-active
approach to compliance

€6¢

« Continuing efforts to extend the licensing
scheme to cover more HMOs.



E
Next Steps 5 %
S| AAA
. . . Z | OXFORD
« Statutory 10 week Consultation (minimum period) = CITY
; COUNCIL

« Consultation commenced 15t June

Concludes 24t August
4
« Variety of activities

62



Consultation

S6¢c °

Web based questionnaire for all
http://consultation.oxford.gov.uk/consult.ti/hmoli

censingreview/consultationHome = link on
Oxfordshire District Councils

Roadshows - aimed at general public completed
during June/July

Second Phase of Roadshows commencing 27
July at Cowley library and Oxford central library

28 July at Headington library
29 July at Blackbird Leys library

Similar events TBC at Summertown and Old
Marston libraries

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

AN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

~


http://consultation.oxford.gov.uk/consult.ti/hmolicensingreview/consultationHome
http://consultation.oxford.gov.uk/consult.ti/hmolicensingreview/consultationHome

Consultation

96¢

Meetings with Residents and Councillors -
ongoing

Flyers and posters — distributed to local agents,
community centres, libraries, Council offices

Newspaper adverts —ongoing in Oxford Mail,
Times

Social media updates

Advert on email signatures

Landlord Information Exchange — Today!
Proposed second event in Aug

x %

=3

=

=]

2

5| AR

% | OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

~



APPENDIX 9 = POSTERS, FLYERS AND NEWSPAPER ADVERTS

Tenants, Landlords and 1emng ﬂxgonh
Please Tell Us Your Views.. . .

Consultation 15 June to 24 August

Oxford City Council is consulting on the future of the HMO licensing scheme that
operates across the whole of the City of Oxford

An HMO is any private sactoe rented accomodation that s oocupied by three of more people who
form more than one househoid. We would fike to hear your views an Ondond's HMO licansing

scheme if you are:
o curreritly atenant or have been a tenant of an HMO in the st Syears
» a tandiord or have an interest in bacoming one

¢ 2 letting agent or irvoived in the management of HMO propesties

To have your say:
@ Visit: www.ox ford gov.uk /consuitation
@ Email: hmos@oxford.gov.uk

® Gall: 01885 25221

You can also see us in person at our roadshows:

® 24 une 10001200 Courtiand Road Ross Hill
1400 1600 Templars Square, Cowley
¢ XSune 100001200 Underhill Circus nr Neighbourhood centse, Barton
1400t 1600  London Road, Headngton
» 29June 100001200 Atkyns Road Wood Farm
140001600 Blackbird Leys Road, Blackbind Leys
¢ 30June 10001200 Banbuy Road/Oakthorpe, Summertown
1400t 1600 Oid Marston Road nr No.s 10-15, Marston
® TJuy 1000w 1200 Cowley Rd near Marwil Way, East Cowley
13.00 1500 Cowley Rd near Manzil Way, East Cowley
e 2July 1000t01Z00 LaMarsh Road, Botley
130001500  LaMarsh Aoad, Botey
» 6July 10001200 Carendon Centre Gy Centre
140001600 Walton Street, Jericho

Landlord’s Information Exchange
Kassam Stadium, 21 July 2015, 9.30am to4pm

Landiords and prospective landiords come an join us in person at an exchange of
advice, ideas and discussion on the future of HMO licensing in Oxford

297




Landlord’

Kassam S

Consultation 15 June to 24 August 2015  21July 2015

To have your say visit: www.oxford.gov.uk/consultation 9.30am to 4pm

4 4 A A
f % Information 3
s X Exchange
; A
tadium OXFORD

s

CITY
COUNCIL

Are you interested about Houses
in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)
in Oxford?

Do you own, manage or let HMOs in Ox-
ford? Have you lived in an HMO in the past
5 years? If so then read on..

An HMO is any house or
flat that is occupied by
three or more people who
form more than one
household.

A household may be

» asingle person or

+  several members of
the same family.

For example: a house

occupied by a brother,

sister and one other

unrelated occupant would

be an EMO.

The Council is consulting on the future of the
HMO licensing scheme that operates across
the whole of Oxford city and would like to
obtain your views.

How can | get involved?

Complete an online questionnaire at
www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/
decCo/Consultation.htm

Email hmos@oxford.gov.uk and express
your interest in being involved

Contact us about coming along to forth-
coming roadshows in your area during
June and July

298

=

=

S

g PN
OXFORD

; CITY
COUNCIL

Want to contact us or
comment?

Call us on 01865

252211,

Email:

hmos@oxford.gov.uk

W

OxfordCity

L f
3 /
. >
! ‘:xgrd:'f.t;i angl



Fundraising campaign aims to|swarssniet
give severely-ill son better life ==="20

o yoas o s
- M i o P )
Vo

T evord s bwng Fonted by St
N sty VAP, bt o\, v
" e AN B

i gt v 1t 11 o e o

R e s b S —

vwiey wie - . — b
ok MY g e A T et o MO, g
SSe. © Mmironte At 19,2 T Mt o0
[ ™ G
b vt 3 rew oo of sten L e
- i

ok o s Wild treasure hunt
Ao

S et b Pt Fartion e ok s s $ e

Aol b Wae (3 0 D

T skindy i sad Sl.lm;'lhnozwroldﬂ‘!ukm

1 At 20
tnontie | ow g i e The st swen shbed “The
Nod X Mo orie e 4t
Potre Shew b Pl Dok W g sk gl VAT 1 smrtiag el &
o b -t
T Wl e e o e 8 Do S Moo B 7T et L e b 8 g
Vg g, 1

PO -
Wa ™
o O NN
P I TR TS0 TLg —a e N

e sl HMO Roadshow

g
L ]
:
!
H
H
!
7
bk

17 August from T1am to 1pm

s s . Summertown Library
(eartvd sme v1ad bt o Bovary
s e : Tul ua puer views ont Nowses i

Uple
O ek | 7 —— - o
M

Bavr, bty dod levtan e bon.

|

To Aave your sy viei:
e

s - V- i - Lt T B
L L et 500 pannle harve st o awntert SIRG JicR

299



Motorwéy network is helping crime |
gangs target county for rural thefts | it
|

Firms suspect machinery s transported to eastem Europe then re-sold
ops b gmden -
Rt e ati

i
|
i

i
fi

e
the cowry's grerhwer % b
W AN et B e g 4
SETTer X ere W sl

il
ki

#or
T

wy
Lavt wek He Narowed Porw
w T NPT (! £
« e comt xfordase
lat ez ty e

b4
ji
y ¥

AR g
ot T Crics mdt 2 St el
orgorn o emer e

|
ey B - e wsrd
- Pl
B soht “Thor sere w b | v
AIE W A bk i:ﬂv
oo
A
et

Aokl R ORI TN
-

W ot b el S S e L sy O
e epers Wk s b
- g v g e adiad 22 O sSaEr' MK R Gedebonty e v

e
[l 2= 2
g ek b Tl Lol st SRRy e e e A W

T o
TR At bl et asd  COTY aad msiy st - ke whery LEme haee g
- o e

o paation wewn of to M B ve T
4 . bl WA rEw Oy Soraaowery ) b veand By 4
— o
d e AT vt e ARy Bl s
hacgen et " Foow viash vwe b (Yo Commiathowr St
WY ety Sohew ST by (rnadrm, (et M Twumes fabon i Sl Iy
el i G . 4 T b 8 R gt
i i et el A~ e T T |
L MW‘-:—' “ dowy Vebea il unul:nml-!
L otaed - ckeewias g Tt B swhie porhars Wy
PR WA RN Dt v coemr F et e ikl &

Former teacher dies fortnight after car
runs light and crashes into her vehicle

| | 17 August from T1am to Tpm

Summertown
ecwiet pas pusdy bufms b bbvey
For further ifermation wimact
b &0 01065 252211

Mamasan
atien (HMQ) Uneral

300



10 ODRD TIMES Trarwcaw, Ady 8, 2315

oxfordtimes.co.uk

Street attacker
has sentence
reduced after
court appeal

Rarvie Poctots, of Wikhezees
Wiy Cretet, W falded By €2
years ot Codd Cowse Coart in

Ooovie 8
Tz he pRb M
L:u-‘m et
arked \pats =k Nk, M Jee g
M, camatng Probes

O ok ke ad B vt | Do Wi, sy S S DAMI, ol Wavnrn

S o™ | Science centre takes first visitors in 10 years ’

"
Hn A8K Probids wak garwnend

1o walk awey ty 24 (rEnavl Py s
e e By 2oy Lo e The b e B Vo 8
ferter ¥ @) sk | Acmace e 10 T el 3pen ey Orgareess bt TOEE pcche aiw b of faking 30 v \eg
s back of T hamd™ | - s B 0 yeeh ied Gvar b eaana of Bebacay. g e e - Mhining ce e Gk st e
1 Jwsize Skase cedmrne) The s, wisch Beamies Be Veawes wars a0be o sww B ey o Ve & 7 sl g 0w Vow -
Frodes s deturkes, b | e m:ﬁ‘m Bviaras s Tewiaciogy Pavkdes et -
o e Toe o e dazmge S o | Sowws 1 ey ~ 8 B i
Lead [

een W) i T - ok T Soat ot

'\ Nurse is struck
M B after a secret a

SN M with male pati
HMO Roadshows

Employee kept a three-year relati

--h-l" woo0d lutisg her 23 & ol
e = 11 wms st Ll Decsoie 3003
1 dbm el

27 July from 10am to 12pm
Cowley Library in the foyer room

27 July from 2pm to 4pm Wi maskdp NUIX MO TETL | e it N Wisdem ekt
4
g Aot s b e pwed W Tisw's th cely
Oxford Central Libeary, 15t floor main hrary e ria Lititoprs  dncios Wl e bots RCe
Mesii Mhadti Crecre winre M.lh‘w?acv
28 Juty from 2pm to 4pm §en ezl 1y Jerm 218 o Sey o "
Headingto |m T gedr cei] 10 g ag 1 Whahs St viesnd 6 desal s
7 B e WAne: s seuta e
Lo
‘ 29 July from 2pm to dpm ‘ nnm‘.‘uuo:« RIS
Wlﬂlmmm et ik L :“‘:‘u’?"”m'
$ut wam e gutter ol 't
For barther i } -u;‘mu:‘m?;;n;:‘n e 0t Bawe i, v 0
‘ > ' :-m’:'n nn':'nmt- Windich, wivh 3 tox Twed
120 tuariag . el 2543,
 Cail: 91265 252211 | mm»-n"-'n-namu i tag ) seks
Bieg g S
* et skt otz ' m dchme 3 rviajaally

R
i
H
i
=1
i
¥
i
:

301



A Fmﬁumd_ﬁmmkhmmhsbodcdo

e show set to roturn
Bl W ——— o g ~ %
il i N S | |t
ey ! . Vibaie Mewn
s Bl gy wwnt 8 e st \ '

S e s ol e v o4 e
s .; Crhmge ve - ——
-.'.. 53 TV e W P

P e e b L (0 @ ) e
-:.". 2 > T ot by o e of $n Wy
e S e Ve by s e e @ 1T Mk
Cav Al e toone
o Brya €7 % sy 04 e o sioew
" b — - St -t
W, P e bl B v
Tha Mywacabh whe s siyien « oo
et WS Y e D
Ptk vt freite 16
Pt g by e 4 et poen] forres ey A
] o e 100 SO O S OGO G
— g v
wnaerm Thun were o e o0 o e v
Lprd e 4 s ind Ly s
w—ped Rowd ot b SEr) - D | N o
-‘. - v e T R v ey Sy
b A b G e e e
o B AR PO D e el b
.:‘. - - s e 7 G A
S S —
e
W T e, el a—
i 0wy woscen Coretery dewup
- m SaP 4 gt 0 8 hoAerg
X iy b oy ——— ) —
P wdrreny Bee wads were
Wt g e e .- . 4 %,
- et o o . 4 Wi B, b o
s W Ko AL s o b et
.

S e @0 Dah | b

Firefighter hangs up BEEES
helmet for final time RSO

Coll
Koown

GOODBYE: Dacolihres rebras oer 33
17 yeon of bosling 1o axtnguish blazes

han
e rethoed efier 17 penes’
wervre
Jomn Cwart's Ore < o0
—

Ui AT & SR M0 bt
NOU P01 T MEak ) Seih W

Entedow aad
B hmerrr it 17
Pemperne T ot (TEAZA Mor

&4
"o "

ereaerdl HMO Roadshows

e

302



W UPORD ML i, by LIS

Oxfond City Council Comudtation
15 June to 24 August 2015

@
*

s
i

|
i

i
L]
1
.'.
X
]
1

il

:ﬁiﬂ"i

3]

{tedils
B

i

¥

@ Aruand 105 peaphe e Dutand boe io an O,
pe dazt amitond)

Ed
H

H
it

n‘.n-uu
' To have say visit:

Dabdng s wa-e thaan ooy foe ereryees

| S e o8
!

a
i
i
i

I
|

L
i
it

§

}
-
i
’ﬂll

i
I
1
0

_E_
|

STARTS TUESDAY 7 JULX

S x
L B L L

303



M : Lot '*-u
College takes | AGirls try out hitech gadgets with guest engineers
over palace for ~
student awards

ETERIITR, w Sty
-t Ot stuncme
- o P Yow A 0

Rt

A b o4 35 Wt s b

AN N Tt YW N e
e g vt

——— i et e
Nevow o Wy i Ky mos wn el
s b g e o

o

e lE1 |'m cycling to Paris in
WA w g memory of my wife

¢ @
HMOs & * *; [

;

How should the Councdil ensure they :.‘_.'"“:";‘m"‘ e e e
r asnry
’ ¢ > in?

a0z walludanaged and safe to live in? JEEEEREITIRETS T
HEy n.;:m :':.:_::u‘?_ vt
o e Pl & wanben of $ wwed e
33 TS e e e
® Ao0n 1 5 pragie by Dol e be 2 0. Sagmmn S ke e b et v
® Ninou 3% povete reated properties s HW, .-lbl-;;“h‘-l ;-—-:.:l;--n
® Okt e the 1éth hegheot ssmber of HUWOs ey L SR B :-"‘-n"—a-"a-n-—""u
e coumry m;:.mmhwln s l“.:“::
To have your say visit: et SO
www.oxford.gov.uk/consultation e ihe i Chne 1 Bt ek
m.r-—t—- - hink O buivn wet o e

- W - Aoy w—— (s B Py
g Wiyl Vot 13 e Tiwes Gl Tom oo i
.*T_.*i“-- ™ ‘--‘-.:’u;nnn-.
‘:u;hw -‘mm“

304



M DNOA0 TIVES  Thu cedex Aty 3, 205

oxfordtimes.co.uk

T 5
NewMPpays (o) 1 111" Anima
tribute to her L X Y 4 & takes |
- A A (¥
predecessor in - =8 ’ place ¢
P Sa P W 3
maiden speech e TR family
L R4 . .
NEW Bashary WP Vicurw ’ A ROKY ol 2
Drvrns pasd At 1 o ared & Syt by
prev e NP & bae Bt spoech Wiy fac
it the Hewwr Of Commnsn o | T Mowd
Tharele = boeteg O
Tie Cowsviiie AP wwe wersod b5 S0
svaavad (e Purtanenl o O of
Grreal Blectiwy oo 7 == Ao s tonk <
ot dx rab iy b by This o
D e onir S Vogy Dby ol W sEpgr
B2 Toay shpped dewn Al o]
Tyt o ety W S |
Oenetatiry mawilinesy
ALre Prevais puad treduts o S The cay wi
Tour wrst spube of Loy rida la w A
T damat ey allsoteof &
s wfn (rainity
Sir Teng's knyaky sy il o
stwore o wirk O a Sl e o v tar
l.m\:(umu-nhv . - (e wtl
“Nenth Oufedibine s besti glaps e
Pt ploee 10 Do | w #ure ey Jenen Mewhd, wiket @ secdusce. and Nyw Kovrwen, 11 Wi felow comrfaetan e b Mgy o Leru's
et cn Wi of Lo

xx rives
by, ol 10 a0 mandionsl
chagchas encrcind by ¥

“The Vel DMONTITY of sy oo
athaaunts Live tnoes of ver (w0

' School pupils and teachers have tales totell  *ii

magy (ViR A schatzatnl | OSOSTE? b Feor e b ey bk 1 EESNDE
o M S e pakn, Serm tokien et P — rypo v
Frarstes Babaem e xozing comadc yewa s el Lod ol Da dusen Mews, The oppurionty s | soukint posety oo backy
TTYSThs In fot AR OTE sy | WM 5 new waBangy sheet e o e aotet Rt S, My of P by we ot ard Wilh
sords a3 and R I 1 Antgatea Pk Powd ‘oly ol sndass bet sl mery N&hnab:
Sary ¢ oo, e fris)
T e iray® | wttive o sttt ot sbartwioten  smrwwe of lhe yoo Grccpuciiornd  vory Peamabic.” i)

Oxford Gity Councll Consultation
15 June to 24 August 2015

o &
# ¢4

HMOs %™

o

How should the Council ensure they

'Residents consu
on major schem
ease flooding fe:

#
-

Bt

E L
il T o B wEl e

. o -y
* o and traw  Nml A
are well managed and safe tolive in? | o v PR o Skt
| RUTENEE I e & Ox L\M&M'mmu';-: mm?-’:

| Lol o

Tell us your views on | e e Ykt ey g ot e
Houses in Multiple Occupation I R e Lot g i o i ks
(HMO) Licensing scheme R ot Auiia. e Tt tad Mawiv1es ichuss
° 15 with e Sty of Ml csunsds Mo orgidly frem Astrala. Ve o
Aroued peogle In Oufoed fww in an HMO. 54 shar pRrTary, ward W n‘-'-“auh-:umm msl:‘u
: b ]
© Aoyt 5O% private nented properties arw HMOs. T P e e cxgienad ) vty e bacntest
o:-':umnm»w-mwmm ey * i and. v ":,‘.. ooy w1
my. e e s PN
nT-‘: 2‘- "“n- [ mm Ponred ba e :‘uﬁ
To have your say visit: {,‘:,.‘.“..,zm...;"..'.'.: T iy e R
m,oxmi.gw.uk/conwluﬁou Qorpteen | e U Wi S vt i v Arecsed
Yousrdewh o o mlh?umm :-hvmlm mn.:
drarlop our saroues. p' Y u—:m mM: W were on st phoes 15 Su1 T The coe
umﬂ\;lum» u'-m-ln '::l:.'.:
Buiding 2 marid- claas ity far everprens sorew w Teus Untd Com e S e S

305



Oxford City Council invites you to

Landlords

Information Exchange
21 July 2015 9:30am to 4pm

Kassam Stadium, Grenoble Road

Oxford, 0X4 4XP

Landlords and prospective landlords
come an join us at an exchange of
advice, ideas and discussion on the
future of HMO licensing in Oxford

4

To book a place and for further
information contact:

® Email: hmos@oxford.gov.uk
® Call: 01865 252211

Building a world-class city for everyone

306



Landlords and % g
prospective landlords ¢
come an join us at an
exchange of advice,

ideas and discussion

on the future of

HMO licensing in

Oxford

l d I d To book a place and for
a n o r s further information contact: ph
||'|f0|'mation EXChange ® Email: hmos@oxford.gov.uk

21July 2015 9.30am to 4pm @ Call: 01865 252211
Kassam Stadium, Grenoble Road

Your view is important to us and will help us improve
Oxfo rd, 0X4 4XP and develop our services. ~

Building a world-class city for everyone

307



are well managed and safe to live in?

Tell us your views on

Houses in Multiple Occupation
(HMO) Licensing scheme

® Around 1in 5 people in Oxford live in an HMO.

® Almost 50% private rented properties are HMOs.

® Oxford has the 14th highest number of HMOs
in the country.

To have your say visit:

www.oxford.gov.uk/consultation &

Yourview is important to us and will help us improve and

develop our services.
Building a world-class city for everyone

308



15 June to 24 August 2015
LA

How should the Council ensure they

are well managed and safe to live in?

Tenants, Landlords and Letting Agents
Please Tell Us Your Views...

Bullding a world-class city for everyone

15 June to 24 August 2015

How should the Council ensure they

are well managed and safe to live in?

Tenants, Landlords and Letting Agents
Please Tell Us Your Views...

Building a worid-class city for everyone

309

Oxford City Council is consulting Q
on the future of the HMO licensing renD
scheme that operates across the | LENRY

whole of the City of Oxford e

An HMO 5 any prvate secior iented 200
0 form more than

madation that & occupeed by
e household. We would ke 1o
wfoed's HMO liconsing scheme if you are

three Of moce pe
hear your views o

cumently 3 terant o have baen 3 tanant of an HMO in the last S years
a landiord or have an mterest n becoming one

2 letting agent or mvolved in the management of HWO properties

To have your say:

o Visit: www.oxford, gov.uk /consultation
» Email: hmos@oxford.gov.uk

o Call: 01865 252211

You can also see us in person at our

roadshows:
1 Judy 0001200  Conwley R nsar Marail Way, East Cowley v
10w 1500  Condey Rd near Manil Way, Last Cowley
2 July 01200 LaManhfload Botley
w50 2 Mansh Road. Botley
6 My 1000w 1200 Geendon Centre, City Corn
0w 1600  Walton Stiest, Jeekhy

Landlord’s Information Exchange
Kassam Stadium, 21 July 2015, 9.30am to 4pm
Landlards and prospective Landlords come an join us in porson st an ~

oxchange of advice, iWdeas and discussion

Oxford City Council is consulting

AR
on the future of the HMO licensing OXFORD
scheme that operates across the ufmn

whole of the City of Oxford

» renied

] accomochaton th
than one hous

g sches

at 5 occupied by
ofd. We would Hee to

if you ase

CufTently 3 tenant or have

enant of 30 HMO in the st 5 years
3 lanciiord of have an nteest in becoming one

A lettng agent or ewoived in the sanagement of MO propenes

To have your say:

o Visit: www.oxford.gov.uk /consultation
« Email: hmos@oxford.gov.uk

e Call: 01865 252211

You can also see us in person at our
roadshows:

29 June 10000 17 00
M0 i
3 June 100080 12
140016
v 1 iy 10008012
110080 150
s 22y 10000
1100t
X
X



Timeline Photos
Back to Album - Oxford City Council's photos - Oxford City Council's Page Previous - Next

Album: Timeline Photos
dwith- @ Public

% Oxford City Council

222 Jianhua Wang, of Nicholson Road, Oxford, became our 50th successful prosecution when
he was found guilty of failure to comply with HMO licence conditions and fined £3,300 at
Oxford Magistrates’ Court. He was also ordered to pay costs of more than £2,000.

Open Photo Viewer

The Council is currently consulting on proposals to extend the HMO licesning scheme for Download
another five years. The consultation closes on 24 August 2015; you're all encouraged to Embed Post
visit our website, oxford.gov.uk, and submit your views.

hitp:/iwww.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/newsarticle him?newsarticle_itemid=57346

14 August

310



Timeline Photos
Back to Album - Oxford City Council's photos - Oxford City Council's Page Previous - Next

g Oxford City Council Album: Timeline Photos
222 We're inviting you to participate in the ongoing HMO licensing consultation before it closes Shared with. @ Public
on Monday 24 August 2015.
We estimate that one in five residents lives in an HMO and because of Oxford's acute Open Photo Viewer
housing shortage, this number is likely to continue to increase. Downioad

Embed Post
The HMO licensing scheme has helped to improve standards in the private rented sector

and we would like to see further improvements to ensure tenants are not left at risk in
poor condition houses.

hitp:/iwww_oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/newsarticle.ntm?newsarticle_itemid=57357
19 August

311



More Videos by Oxford City Council

Oxford City Council
Want to improve standards of homes rented out to more than two tenants? Take part in
our consultation to review the Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOQ) licensing scheme:

hitp://consultation.oxford.gov.uk/cor

ult.tiylhmolicensingreview/consultationHome

Additional consultation events will take place across Oxford from 2-4PM at the following
venues

312

@ Public



You ar= here Ravisw of HNO Gcznsing schems - Cdendar

B3

3

OXFORD

H

CoUNCL

Review of HMO licensing scheme

Corsukation

How and why we
consult

Cument consaltations
Closed coasutatioss

Search consuitatioss

Calendar

Listzveris This year

2015 June

=]

15th June, Monday

Consuitstion Open Date

30
24th June, Wednesday

1} HMO Licensing Roadshoe - Rosehil (Courtiand Road)
Wz vl be . e Rosehd ares R

firad) 1 anses 2ny Eeshoes you may 2ae

aboat HD Scensing of Bie cons
H0I-1200

25th June, Thursday

1) HHO Licensng Roadshos - Barton Undestill Corous 2¢. Neighbourhood Cestre)

7 Saton {Underhill Cross) n asswer 3y qussions you may have zhout HWD

rS y0U mE3y have 2Dowt

4001600

28th June, Monday

1} HMO Licznsing Readshoe - Wood Fam (Afkyns Rozd)

e Woodarm (Afyns Road) b an:

2y guestons you may kase asod HMO

313



2015 July

30th Jume, Tuesday

] HMO Licensing Rozdshow - Summertows (Banbury Road'Oakthorpe)
%2 Wi b= o Senmedown Barbury ReadOatharne) 15 3sower =ny QuUSSIoes you may
havs atout HMO Licersing or Be consatsion
1000- 1200

1} HMO Licznsing Rozdshow - Marston {0k Marsion Road)
Yz ol b = Marsion (0id Marston Road ar. 18-15 Okl Marston Rad) i asswer any
queshions you M=y fave 2Doat HUMO Licensieg or he consuiioe
14001600

15t July, Wednesday

Ve wil D= i East Oiond (Cowdey Rosd ar. Mol Way) fo arswer any quesiions you may
have Sbout HRD Liczesing or e consistafion
000- 1500

2nd Juty. Thursday

3} HMO Licznsing Roadshow - Bofiey {Lz Marsh Risad)
e wil D2 in Bofiey L= Marsh Rrad} o answer 2y questions you may have 2boud HWO
Licersng ot e consalton
1000- 1500

Sth Juy, Monday

¥z wil b 1 2nd gound e Crandon Canbrz oo e 237d Jene between 10am and
12n00n ip 2nswsr 2y eshions you may heve abad HMO Soznsng and T consul=in
3000-1200

) HMO Licznsing Roadshow - Jericho (Wallte Stret)
Vi wil D= m Jerich (Wisfon Sias{) between Z (0om and 4 20pm 2 answer 2ny quesions
you may have stout HID Scessing or Be consuition
1£00- %600

21st July, Tuesday

3} Landionds nfoomaton Exchange - HMO Liceasing
This evend will 2eld 31 e Kassam Sodure and will nciude presenisioes Tom Be Coucd
ot 2 cumend scheme and N2 e propased renenal of e kcensng scheme: Fusiter

O3k wil be s2ri ol 1D Endiords and agens.
1000-%30

27th July, Monday

[} HMO Licensing Drap in 3t Cowley Libeary
500- 1200

314



2015 August

2015 October

1} HMO Licensing Dvop in at Central Library (frst foor)
1400-15100

28th July, Tuesday

1} HMO Licensing Drop in Headingion Library
14:00- 1500

23th Juty, Wednesday

4} HMO Licensing Drop In 3t Blackbird Leys Lieary
1400- 16400

5th August. Wednesday

i’, Landlords Event - Town Hal
Second Landiord Evert 2t !he Town Hai o dscuss HMO Licersing
0500- 1390
"j Lye Valey Residents Meeting
Lye Yalizy mesing zbout HFMO Licensing Scheme
1500-2300

17th August. Monday

4} HMO Consultaton Roadshow - Summertown Library
Rpadshow =i Sermmerioes Library 10 speak i ofcers sbout HMO Loensing Scheme
11:00-1300

24th August. Monday

Caonsuitaton Clos= Datz
2358

15th October, Thursday

Qutcome Pubfication Date
{opeded;
0100

315



PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR
CODE OF PRACTICE

Updated July 2015

BPF ,

BRITISH PROPERTY
FEDERATION

my|depositscouk W e NLA ~Z  ombudsman PRS
Tenancy deposit protection Letting NATIONAL NAEA Serviceseeoe

National Association of Resolving Consumer Disputes
LANDLORDS N Estate Agents d PYS Property Redress Scheme

%%qciafio,,

&,
%
=
=]

>
3
,\?
&'

&

:

ASSOCIATION

P
LA (brics OTDS T

RESIDENTIAL LANDLORDS ) ALA
ASSOCIATION Tenancy Deposit Scheme ST
OF LETTING AGENTS

316



Private rented sector code of practice
Updated July 2015

This code of practice, originally published in September 2014, has been revised to reflect more recent
changes in legislation.

Published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS)
Parliament Square

London

SW1P 3AD

UK

WWW.rics.org

No responsibility for loss or damage caused to any person acting or refraining from action as a result
of the material included in this publication can be accepted by the authors or RICS.

ISBN 978 1 78321 063 3

© Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) July 2014. Copyright in all or part of this publication rests
with RICS. No part of this work may be reproduced or used in any form or by any means including
graphic, electronic, or mechanical, including photocopying, recording, taping or web distribution,

without the written permission of RICS or in line with the rules of an existing licence.



Acknowledgments

Lead author:

Christina Hirst

Working group:
Mike Basquill
Andrew Bulmer
Michela Hancock
Tracey Hartley
Ruth Hayes
Geeta Nanda

Theresa Wallace

Industry group:

Association of Residential Letting Agents
Association of Residential Managing Agents
British Property Federation

Chartered Institute of Housing

Institute of Residential Property Management
National Approved Letting Scheme

National Landlords Association

National Association of Estate Agents
Residential Landlords Association

Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

The UK Association of Letting Agents

Ombudsman Services: Property
Property Redress Scheme
The Property Ombudsman

Deposit Protection Service
My Deposits

Tenancy Deposit Scheme

With thanks to the Department for Communities and Local Government and those who contributed to the
wider stakeholder consultation.



Contents

Acknowledgments........coieeeiiiimmmmmmimrrnnssr s ————————————— i
0 =T 0T o v
1 INtrodUuction..... ..o s 1
L R S TeTo o /= TSRO PPPPPPPRRPRR 1
1.2 HOW 1O USE ThiS COE ... 1
2 Lettings and management.............ciiimmiiiinmmme s 3
2.1 Forlandlords only: selecting an agent ..........oovvvviiiiiiiiiii e 3
2.2 For agents only: accepting instructions from a 1andlord.............cooeviiviiiiiiie 3
3 IR 1 T T 5
3.1 Marketing and adVertiSiNg ... ..coooiiiii i 5
3.2 ThE GreBN DAL ....eeeiiiiiiiii e 6
B.3 VIBWINGS e 6
3.4 AGreeing the IEHHING ...uuuuiii e 6
3.5 References and ChECKS ......coiiiiiiiiii e 6
BuB  INVENTONY ettt e et e e e e e e e 6
T A o = U=Te =TT o 1= P PUPURRUS 7
3.8 Tenancy deposits for assured shorthold tENANCIES ......uvvviiiiiiiiiiiiecee, 7
I I @o T oo T=T 0 1YY £ O EEPRRR 7
4 Property management ..........ccomeeeiiinnmmmmsssimmmmmssssmnsssssssssssnnssssssssnnssssas 9
4.7 General arrangEmMIENTS ......i it 9
4.2 FINanCial ManagemIENt ... .. oo et 9
4.3 TeNANCY MANBAGEIMENT....utitiiiiiiieee ittt e e e e e et et e e e e s s e st ereeeeeeeaan 10
5 Terminating @ teNaNCY......ueeeeiiiiiimmeiiiiir e 16
5.1 Bringing atenanCy t0 an €Nd .......ccooi oo 16
5.2 Once the property has Deen vaCated ..........vuviiiieeiiiii e 16
6 Tenancy renewals and changes..........ccciemeiiimmmemceinnmnnnmee - 17
7 Additional responsibilities for the management of multi-let buildings
£= 1o T I oo T o] 0 Lo o I o T- L £ 18
7.1 Health @nd SafEly ......ueeeiiiii 18
7.2 Disposal of waste and re€CYCHNG ...uurerriiiiiiiiiee e 19
7.3 Staff MaNaGEMENT ... 19
T4 INOISB ..ttt e e 19
7.5 MiIXEA TENUIE SCNEIMES.....iiiiiiii it 19



7.8 DSPULES i iie ittt e et oot e e e e e e e et e et e e e e e e e n e ane s 20

TS =TTV ) 1P RUPRRRRPPRP 20
Yo 0 1= Lo [ o= 21
APPENIX A: GIOSSANY Of TEIMNS ...ttt e e aeeee s 21
Appendix B: Landlord’s CheCKIIST.........viiiiiii e 25
Appendix C: Legislation referred 10 in thisS COAE ...uuuviiiiiiiiie e 26



Foreword

We are committed to building a bigger and better private rented sector. The private rented sector provides
valuable flexibility within the housing market, with increasing numbers of tenants choosing to rent as a matter
of choice. We want to support it and see it grow.

A key part of this is our commitment to minimising excessive regulation of the sector, which would force up
rents and reduce choice for tenants. We have put in place measures to create greater choice, professional
services and higher quality properties for tenants. That is why we are financing the construction of up to
10,000 new homes specifically for private rent through our £1 billion Build to Rent Fund, while our Private
Rented Sector Housing Debt Guarantee Scheme will support up to £3.5 billion of investment in private rented
projects, plus a potential share of £3 billion held in reserve.

We know that the majority of tenants are satisfied with the performance of their landlords and that the majority
of landlords and letting agents provide a good service. However, the small minority of rogues or criminals who
exploit tenants drag the reputation of the sector down. We are cracking down on these landlords using a
range of tools from legislation, funding and other support to local government.

It is important that tenants and landlords are able to choose letting agents who do operate to best practice.
That’s why, in October 2013, we asked the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors to work with other leading
sector organisations to develop a Code of Practice.

| am delighted that the leading organisations representing landlords, letting agents and property managers
have come together to create this comprehensive Code that may be used by anyone involved in the letting
and management of private rented property.

Where this Code is particularly valuable is that it not only explains what is legally required, but provides a
model for best practice. Members of any organisations which have signed up to this Code agree to abide by
its contents, giving tenants assurance of a good service, driving up standards in the sector.

| am delighted, therefore, to introduce this Code of Practice. | truly believe it will lead to an even better and
more professional private rented sector in England.

KSM

Brandon Lewis, Minister of State for Housing and Planning




1 Introduction

1.1 Scope

This Code is intended to promote best practice in the letting and management of private rented sector
housing in England. The aim of the Code is to ensure:

e (Good-quality homes for rent.
e Consistent and high standards of management.
e Choice for the consumer.

The Code is intended for use by landlords and lettings and management agents in the private rented sector
(PRS).

Whether you are a landlord or an agent, if you are responsible for the letting and management of homes you
have a minimum duty to achieve basic compliance required by law. However, landlords and agents should
aspire to a standard above minimum legal requirements and in line with industry best practice as set out

in this Code. If you are unsure of what you should do or what is required of you, seek professional advice.

Ignorance or inexperience is not an acceptable defence for poor practice.

A useful checklist has been provided for inexperienced landlords at the back of this Code of Practice — see
Appendix B.

1.2 How to use this Code

Terms shown in italics are defined in a glossary at the end of the Code.

Landlords are responsible for ensuring that they comply with the law when letting and managing
residential property. When a landlord engages an agent, the tasks and responsibilities of letting
and managing property will be allocated between them. It is for the landlord and the agent to
decide and to understand who is responsible for which tasks and responsibilities.

This Code uses the words ‘you’ and ‘responsible person’ to refer to whoever is responsible for a
particular task or responsibility. Where items in the Code are aimed only at agents or landlords, this
is indicated where required.

In the Code:

e The word ‘must’ indicates a legal requirement.
e The word ‘should” indicates best practice. Where you should do something and have not, you ought to
be able to justify reasons for not doing it.

Where procedures are recommended for specific tasks, these are intended to represent ‘best practice’; that
is, procedures that, in the opinion of the property management industry, meet a high standard of competence.

When an allegation of professional negligence or a breach of obligation is made against a responsible person,
a court or tribunal is likely to take account of the contents of the Code in deciding whether or not you have
acted with reasonable competence.

The principles on which this Code is based are:

1 To comply with all laws relating to the letting and management of residential private rented sector

property.

To meet all other legal requirements and relevant codes of practice.

To let and manage properties in an honest, fair, transparent and professional manner.

4 To manage properties with due skill, care and diligence, and ensure that, where staff are employed, they
have the skills and training needed to carry out their tasks.

5 To do their best to avoid conflicts of interest and, where they do arise, to deal with them openly, fairly and
promptly.

wW N



6  You must not discriminate on the basis of age, gender, race, language, sexuality or any other factor that
might place an individual at a disadvantage.

7 To ensure that all communications and dealings with clients and tenants are fair, clear, timely and
transparent.

8 To ensure that all relevant information is provided to clients and tenants, including publicising fees, prior to
them committing to a transactional decision.

9 To ensure that all advertising and marketing material is accurate and not misleading.

10 To take steps to look after client money and to hold this separately from other funds.

11 To behave ethically and responsibly at all times.

The Code contains some principles aimed specifically at letting and management agents, as follows:
e o ensure that landlords and tenants are given details of complaints-handling procedures and the redress

scheme to which the agent belongs.
e o ensure client money is covered by client money protection.



2 Lettings and management







3 Lettings

As described in section 2.2.5, landlords who use an agent will have agreed the scope of work that the agent
will provide. If the landlord has not instructed an agent to carry out the following tasks then the landlord is
responsible.

3.1 Marketing and advertising

You must always act in good faith, with the standard of care and skill that is in accordance with honest market
practice.

Before letting, you must obtain any consent needed — for example, joint owner, lender, insurance company,
superior landlord, freeholder and local authority. You must also comply with the obligations and requirements
of the various safety legislation, standards and regulations that apply to rented property.

If the owner of a leasehold property wishes to let, they must consider the terms of that property’s lease to
the immediate landlord and any covenants or other obligations that will need to be included in the tenancy
agreement. You must draw these to the attention of potential tenants at the earliest appropriate opportunity.

You must not exert undue pressure on any potential tenant.

You must comply with the Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008 and the Consumer
Rights Act 2015.

You should treat all tenants, prospective tenants, landlords and prospective landlords as consumers for the
purposes of the regulations, unless they are clearly not, such as in the case of a limited company landlord or tenant.

You should refer to the Competition and Markets Authority’s Guidance for lettings professionals on consumer
protection law for further information and guidance.

You must take reasonable steps to ensure that all statements made about a property, whether oral, pictorial
or written, are correct and are not misleading. The information must be provided in a clear and timely manner
and must not omit or hide material information.

You must not engage in any unfair commercial practice by saying, doing or omitting to do something which
causes, or is likely to cause, the average consumer to take a different transactional decision.

You must not engage in any of the 31 specific practices that the Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading
Regulations 2008 ban outright (see Regulation 3 and Schedule 1 of the Regulations).

Advertisements must comply with the Committees of Advertising Practice (CAP)’'s UK Code of non-broadcast
advertising, sales promotion and direct marketing.

You must ensure that the property particulars and any advertisements include the alphabetical Standard
Assessment Procedure (SAP) rating from the EPC.

You should explain all the possible tenancy options to the prospective landlord and tenant, including any
potential for longer term lets. You should also explain that longer agreements may include rent review clauses to
allow for changes in rent during longer fixed-term tenancies. If the agreement is for a fixed term of three years
or more, the agreement must be executed as a deed. If you know that the property is only available in the short

term, you should advise prospective tenants of this at the earliest opportunity, preferably before viewing.

“To let’ boards must comply with planning requirements.

For agents only

If asked to let a leasehold property, the agent must ask the leaseholder for full details of all covenants or
obligations that may apply to the tenant and which must be incorporated in any tenancy agreement.



3.2 The Green Deal

You must disclose the existence of a Green Deal charge to a potential tenant at the earliest appropriate
opportunity using the prescribed wording in the Statutory Instrument. You must obtain confirmation in writing
from the tenant that they understand they will be:

e liable to pay the Green Deal plan and instalments; and
e bound by the terms of the Green Deal Plan.

3.3 Viewings

You must advise tenants of all material information and ensure that there are no misleading omissions from the
information provided. This includes responses to questions from potential tenants.

When arranging for a potential tenant to view an already tenanted property, you must ensure that the existing
tenant is given appropriate and reasonable notice (24 hours recommended) of the appointment and in
accordance with any provisions within the tenancy agreement, unless other arrangements have been made
with the agreement of the tenant.

When accompanying a potential tenant on a viewing, you should take appropriate steps to ensure the
personal safety of all involved.
3.4 Agreeing the letting

You should ensure you understand the requirements of potential tenants and the flexibility on tenancy length
offered by the assured shorthold tenancy to meet these requirements. Consideration should be given to the
granting of longer tenancy agreements where this is appropriate for both parties.

You should provide tenants with a copy of How to rent — the checklist for renting in England.

When negotiations are concluded, you should send written confirmation to the potential tenant setting out:

e the tenancy terms

e the costs that the tenant will be responsible for

e the deposit

e any holding deposit, clearly stating the basis of such a deposit and all associated terms and conditions
e the total sum required on signing

e any guarantor requirements, if applicable

e the methods of payment that could apply; and

e the procedure to follow when the tenant comes to sign the tenancy agreement.

3.5 References and checks

You must obtain the prospective tenant’s consent before seeking a reference or carrying out a credit check.

You should take references that are in accordance with the individual circumstances of the tenant and should take
care in validating their authenticity. You should keep a record of the steps you take to do this. You should ensure that
you understand any additional requirements around obtaining a reference for a tenant in a selective licensing area.

You must make reasonable endeavours to check the lawful immigration status of any potential tenant or other
persons living at the property where required to do so by law (Immigration Act 2014).
3.6 Inventory

Prior to the commencement of the tenancy, an appropriate inventory should be prepared. The principle
items to be included in the inventory must be made clear to the potential tenant at the earliest convenient
opportunity.

You can find further guidance about inventories in A guide to best practice for inventory providers published
jointly by RICS, APIP, ARLA, Asset Skills and NAEA.




3.7 Formal agreement

The tenancy agreement should be written in plain, intelligible language. You must give a prospective tenant
enough time to read and understand the agreement before signing. You must give the tenant the opportunity
to raise queries to clarify the rights and obligations of the tenancy agreement.

An appropriate payment method for the rent should be agreed with the tenant.

The tenancy agreement must be signed by the landlord or their representative. The counterpart tenancy
agreement must be signed and dated by all of the tenants in order to come into effect. The tenant should
be given the signed tenancy agreement. The landlord should retain the counterpart agreement.

Where letting to joint tenants, you should ensure that all tenants sign the tenancy agreement wherever
possible. If this is not practical, someone else can sign on their behalf so long as they are duly authorised to
do so and you have clear evidence of this authority.

Any guarantors must sign a written deed of guarantee that clearly states their obligations.

You should ensure the inventory is signed by or on behalf of the parties and dated.

You should provide the tenant with at least one complete set of keys that is recorded in the inventory.

You should consider identifying a lead tenant to whom key correspondence and enquiries are directed and
who arranges rent payments. However, some legal documents need to be served on all tenants.

3.8 Tenancy deposits for assured shorthold tenancies

Tenancy deposits for assured shorthold tenancies must be protected in a Government-authorised scheme
within the statutory timescale and otherwise in accordance with the relevant scheme rules.

You should consider the amount of a deposit based on what is fair in relation to the potential liability the tenant
has in relation to the property.

The tenancy agreement must make provision for the holding of any deposit, specifying:

e how the deposit is to be held; and

e who keeps any interest earned on it.

The tenancy agreement must also state why the deposit is being held and the circumstances in which it is to
be released, in whole or in part.

The tenancy agreement should also state which tenancy deposit protection scheme the deposit is held under.

You must make prescribed information regarding the tenancy deposit protection scheme available to the
tenant(s) within the statutory timescale of receiving the deposit. See www.gov.uk for further information. The
tenant(s) must be given an opportunity to check and sign the prescribed information.

Where a deposit is held by an agent, this should be held as a ‘stakeholder’ on behalf of both parties. These matters
should be made clear to the prospective tenant before the deposit is paid and the tenancy agreement is signed.

Where a deposit is held by an agent, deposit money must be dealt with in the same way as other client
money (see section 4.21). The letting commission or other charges owed by the landlord to an agent must not
be taken from the deposit.

The deposit must be released only in compliance with the terms under which it was originally held.

3.9 Company lets

Where residential properties are let to a company rather than an individual, the company is responsible for
all of the tenant’s obligations under the terms of the tenancy agreement in the same way an individual tenant
would be. Company tenants are not treated as consumers under the relevant legislation. Agreements will
not be an assured shorthold tenancy.



You should request sufficient details to legally identify the company, such as the company registration number
and who may legally contract on behalf of the company.

You should be informed of the identity of the licensee of the tenant company. The tenancy agreement should
allow the property to be occupied by the permitted occupier together with their family.

The tenancy agreement should include a clause making clear that money paid by the licensee towards the
rent will be paid as an agent on behalf of the company and will not give the licensee rights as a company
tenant.



4 Property management

41 General arrangements

You should always manage properties in a professional manner. If you are unsure what this entails then
consider either undertaking accreditation or similar qualification yourself or using an accredited agent.

You should always manage properties in an open and transparent way, subject to maintaining confidentiality in
respect of personal information.

You should advise tenants of your contact details for day-to-day tenancy management matters and should be
available:

* to be contacted during normal working hours
e to meet tenants; and

* toinspect the property at reasonable times and intervals.

If requested, you should assist tenants in understanding their tenancy agreement or other terms of occupation
by explanation or by referring them to www.gov.uk and to the Citizen’s Advice Bureau for independent advice.
You should not give advice about the tenant’s legal rights, and should avoid a conflict of interest when giving
any advice.

You should maintain appropriate records relating to the building and decide how long to keep them, taking
account of periods of statutory limitation of action.

You should take steps to keep informed of developments in legislation affecting residential management to
keep wholly within the law.

So far as it is reasonably practicable and consistent with statutory and contractual obligations, personal
information must be kept confidential and must not be disclosed to other people without consent. It may

be permissible to disclose information without consent in accordance with the advice of the Information
Commissioner’s Office (ICO). However, a privacy notice to the tenant may be required. You are required

to register with ICO if you hold any personal data electronically (this would include holding a tenant’s

phone number in your own phone) or pass personal information to someone else, such as carrying out an
immigration check with the Home Office. Aimost all agents and landlords who do not use agents need to
register with the ICO. Landlords who use agents for some or all of the letting and management process may
need to register depending on personal information held and/or passed on. See www.ico.org.uk.

You should be aware of the local private rented sector licensing requirements in the area of the premises.
This includes additional licensing, selective licensing and mandatory Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs)
licensing and planning consent requirements (see Licensing of houses in multiple occupation in England:

a guide for landlords and managers and Selective licensing in the private rented sector: a guide for local
authorities).

You must ensure that the property and all equipment meet the requirements of the relevant regulations and
licensing.

You must not cause or permit a dwelling to be overcrowded.
4.2 Financial management

421 Client’s money

Money held, deposits or rent collected for and on behalf of an applicant, tenant or ex-tenant, client or ex-client
landlord is considered as client money.

You should keep adequate accounts and records to show all dealings with client money.

Client money should be held separately from landlord or agent money and you must be able to account
immediately for all money held on behalf of a client or a tenant.



Clients’ money should only be withdrawn from an account:

e where it is properly required for payment to, or on behalf of, the person entitled to it

e when meeting agreed costs

e for payment of any remuneration or reimbursement of expenses in carrying out services to which the
landlord or agent is entitled, with the written agreement of the client

* inthe exercise of any lien to which the landlord or agent is entitled

e for transfer to another client account; and

e when non-client money was used to open or maintain the account.

Otherwise, no deductions should be made from clients’ money without that client’s prior written permission

You should give sufficient notice prior to the deduction so they are able to object to it.

You should advise clients or tenants in writing that you are not liable to repay lost money through bank failure.

4.2.1.1 For agents only: client’s money

You should keep adequate and up-to-date accounts and records to show that money has been paid into a
dedicated client account and to explain all dealings with that money.

You should advise your client or tenant that the monies will be held in a designated client account and
provide them with details of this account.

A client account should be in credit at all times. There must not be any borrowing from one client’s fund to
pay another client or those entitled to receive money from the latter’s account.

The clients’ money should be deposited into a Financial Conduct Authority (FCA)-authorised bank or
building society.

Unless the client or tenant has agreed otherwise in writing you should credit interest earned on any client
bank accounts to the appropriate client or tenant.

The letting commission or other charges due to the agent from the client must not be taken from a tenant’s
deposit. You must ensure at all times that the deposit is released only in compliance with the terms
under which the deposit was originally held.

You should be a member of a clients’ money protection scheme and you must clearly display, in your offices
and on your website, whether or not you are a member of such a scheme.

4.2.2 Proceeds of crime

You must report any suspicion that another person is engaged in money laundering or other related financial
crime to the National Crime Agency (NCA) before proceeding with any transaction with that person.

4.2.3 Taxes

Landlords should ensure that HMRC is aware of rental income and deductions and that they pay the
appropriate tax.

4.3 Tenancy management

You must levy rents and other charges and manage the property in accordance with the law and the
clauses of the relevant tenancy agreement.

You must include the landlord’s name and address on any written rent demand. Until such information is
provided, rent is deemed not to be lawfully due from the tenant. If that address is not in England or Wales then
you must notify the tenant of an address in England and Wales to which notices may be served.

You must give the tenant the landlord’s name and address within 21 days of any written request. If the landlord
is a company and the tenant requests more information after receiving the name and address of the landlord,
the name and address of the directors and the secretary of the company must also be given to the tenant

within 21 days of that request.



You should communicate promptly with the tenant, and any client as appropriate, on any important issues
or obligations relating to the use and occupation of the property, including material breaches of the tenancy
agreement that you become aware of.

You should respond promptly to reasonable written requests from tenants for and, where appropriate,
consents required under the tenancy agreement should be granted promptly. Where applicable
under the terms of the tenancy when an application is refused, reasons should be given. Unless
authorised by the tenancy or lease or, in the case of certain transactions accepted by the courts (e.g.
subletting), you should not charge the tenant for considering an application or granting permission.

4.3.1 Actions following a new letting

You should assist the tenant with the necessary information to ensure that the tenant registers as the
customer for services from the commencement of the letting in accordance with their obligations under the
tenancy agreement.

Where utilities are metered, meter readings should be taken and recorded. The local authority should be
informed of the date the letting commences for council tax and utility companies should be similarly advised

for water, sewerage, gas and electricity, as appropriate.

4.3.2 Rent
4.3.2.1 Rent payments and review of rent

Rent demands (if used) should be clear and easily understandable by tenants. Avoid using codes and
abbreviations if possible; if you do use them, they should be clearly explained.

You must provide a rent book if the rent is paid weekly and ensure that any rent book is kept up to date. Where
payment of rent is handed over in cash, a receipt should be given. In other cases, a receipt should be given if
requested. An annual statement of rent payments received should be made available to tenants on request.

Where rent review clauses are included in the tenancy agreement you must follow those procedures for any
review of rent.

4.3.2.2 Local housing allowance and rent

Where appropriate, you should co-operate with a tenant’s claim for local housing allowance/housing benefit/
Universal Credit and supply any necessary information promptly to ensure that the claim can be processed as

quickly as possible.

You should ensure the tenant is made aware before signing any agreement that they are committed to pay the
rent, whether or not they are entitled to receive local housing allowance/housing benefit and that they will be
required to make up any shortfall of local housing allowance/housing benefit.

4.3.2.3 Arrears

Where rents are not received when due, you should communicate promptly with the tenant. Where housing
support is being paid directly to the tenant, for example local housing allowance (LHA) or as part of Universal
Credit, and payments cease or are varied, you should inform the local housing authority or the Department for
Work and Pensions as soon as possible. Where housing support is paid directly to you and payments cease

or are varied, you should notify the tenant as soon as possible.

You should keep channels of communication open with your tenants and encourage tenants to let you know if
they are under financial difficulties. You should maintain contact with tenants in cases where arrears continue

to accumulate and recommend that they seek independent advice (e.g. from the Citizens Advice Bureau, the

Money Advice Service, or a legal adviser).

A tenant must not be evicted without a possession order and following due process. If tenants are facing
eviction and are threatened with homelessness (especially if they are vulnerable or there are children living with
them) you should suggest they contact their local authority housing team for support in accessing alternative
accommodation.



For agents only

If you are retained to collect rent, you should have a system in place to notify a client landlord promptly if
rent becomes overdue. In the event of arrears, you must notify any rent warranty insurers promptly and
ensure that the timescale for any rent warranty notification is met.

4.3.3 Service charge

If administering a service charge, refer to the RICS Service charge (residential) management code for
guidance, as this is outside the scope of this Code.

4.3.4 Repairs and maintenance
You must take all reasonable measures to provide housing that is safe and without risks to health.
The duties of the parties should be stated in the tenancy agreement, as set out in relevant legislation.

You should be aware of repairing obligations imposed by statute and common law.

You must ensure a safe and healthy environment for the tenants and act upon demands for improvements by
the local housing authority under the Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS).

You must be prudent in the selection of persons who are competent to perform repairs and maintenance on
the property. You should take reasonable steps to ensure such contractors have:

e public liability insurance

e professional indemnity insurance, if appropriate

e relevant trade qualifications where required; and

e appropriate health and safety risk assessments and adopt safe systems of work.

You must also pass over any relevant health and safety information you hold to any contractor/designer,
including regarding asbestos.

Matters of disrepair should be dealt with promptly and in a timely manner appropriate to their urgency, placing
a priority on reducing any risk to people.

You should ensure tenants know how to report repair and maintenance issues and have an established
procedure for dealing with urgent requests for repair work, particularly for out-of-office hours.

Tenants must never be evicted for simply requesting repairs to the property.

Landlords must keep the structure and exterior of the property in repair. If an agent is charged with this duty then,
in the event that the agent is unable to carry out this duty for any reason, the duty must return to the landlord or
otherwise provisions must be put in place for keeping the structure and exterior of the property in repair.

You must repair and keep in proper working order the installations for space heating and water heating,
together with the installations for the supply of gas, water, electricity and drainage.

You must take reasonable care to maintain and repair paths, driveways and car parking areas so that they are
safe to use. You must maintain and repair gutters, downpipes, drains and gullies.

You should ensure that tenants are aware of their responsibility to act in a tenant-like manner and to carry out
minor repairs, such as replacing bulbs or clearing pipes or drains they have blocked.

When arranging repair and maintenance work on a let property, you must be aware that tenants are
entitled to the quiet enjoyment of their homes and you must seek to minimise disruption.

You should consult tenants on the details and programme for carrying out such works, unless urgency or
the tenancy agreement dictates otherwise. Works must be carried out to a reasonable minimum standard
so that they do not need to be repeated within a short period of time relative to their nature and reasonable
expectations.



You should maintain accurate and complete records of all maintenance and insurance of the property and
hold records safely for the required period of time.
For agents only

You should ensure that sufficient funds from the landlord are available prior to instructing a contractor. The
method of payment should be agreed between all parties prior to works commencing.

You should disclose any commission you might receive from the contractor at the time that estimates are
provided to the landlord.

For landlords only
If you use a managing agent, you should ensure that the agent is provided with sufficient funds to be able to
commission agreed repairs/maintenance once an estimate has been accepted.

4.3.5 Health and safety and contractor management

You should inspect the property at appropriate intervals to identify whether or not there are any hazards or
repairs that require attention. You should maintain a record of the inspections and any action required and taken.

You should seek to reduce any unacceptable health and safety risks that are identified.

4.3.6 Services
4.3.6.1 Fire safety and testing

You should have regard to the Local Government Association (LGA) LACORS Housing — Fire safety guidance.
For larger buildings such as HMOs and buildings with common parts, you should have regard to the
Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) document Fire safety risk assessment: sleeping
accommodation.

Where recommended in accordance with the above guidance, fire extinguishers and fire blankets should be
provided and must comply with current British Standards. Where they are required they must be provided,
including complying with HMO licence conditions.

Where required (any building where there are common parts) you must ensure that a fire risk assessment
is carried out to identify and evaluate all fire risks to which anyone legally allowed on the premises could be
exposed.

You must ensure that any furniture provided by the landlord complies with current regulations for fire safety.

All properties should be fitted with smoke detectors. Properties built after 1992 must be fitted with smoke
detectors. With effect from 1 October 2015 all properties must be fitted with a smoke alarm on every floor
(The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations 2015).

Detectors must:

e comply with current British Standards
e be installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations; and
*  be kept in working order and tested at the beginning of each tenancy.

Tenants may be made responsible for replacing batteries by prior written agreement made at the start of the
tenancy.

4.3.6.2 Carbon monoxide alarms

Carbon monoxide detectors should be provided in all properties where a gas or solid fuel appliance is present.
Detectors must comply with current British Standards and be installed in accordance with the manufacturer’s
recommendations. The fitting of carbon monoxide detectors is mandatory when a new solid fuel burning
appliance is installed and it will become mandatory for all rooms with an existing solid fuel appliance from 1
October 2015 (The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations 2015). Alarms must be tested

at the start of all new tenancies.




4.3.6.3 Electrical

You should ensure that a competent electrician undertakes a full-fixed wiring test within 10 years of installation
for new properties/full installations and it is recommended every five years thereafter. For HMOs the test must
be undertaken every five years or as recommended by an electrician.

On any change of tenancy, you should check the fixed wiring installation for defects that are visually obvious
to a non-qualified layman, including checking leads and plugs (unless the plug is of the moulded type).

You should provide an appropriate electrical certificate to the tenant.

You must ensure that all alterations/repairs/improvements to the fixed electrical system comply with the latest
edition of Part P of the Building Regulations and the latest Institution of Engineering and Technology (IET)
Wiring Regulations.

A competent person should undertake a portable appliance test (PAT) of all moveable electrical items

or equipment provided by the landlord; for example, kettles, fridges, etc. as recommended in the HSE
publication Maintaining portable electrical equipment in low-risk environments, or at more frequent periods
recommended by a competent person or as a result of a risk assessment.

If you are informed of a fault that could compromise safety, this should be dealt with immediately.
4.3.6.4 Gas

All gas appliances, flues, installation pipework etc. must be maintained in a safe condition in accordance with
the Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998.

A gas safety check must be carried out every 12 months by a Gas Safe-registered engineer, and a record
kept for two years. You must issue a copy of this safety check to each existing tenant within 28 days of the
check being completed and to any new tenants before they move in.

You should ensure that new tenants understand how to turn off the gas supply in case of an emergency. If a
fault is reported, this must be dealt with immediately.

4.3.6.5 Solid fuel

You must ensure the safety of solid fuel heating installations and carry out appropriate routine maintenance.
You should maintain a record of servicing and work carried out.

4.3.7 Access

The tenancy agreement may stipulate the procedure for the routine inspection of the property by the landlord
or agent. If this is not stated in the tenancy agreement, the property must be visited at normal times of the
day, provided that reasonable written notice (at least 24 hours) has been given to the tenant.

If the tenant refuses access, you have no right to enter the property without a court order. To enter the
property against the wishes of the tenant may be considered harassment.

The tenancy agreement should contain provision for entry in emergencies. In the event that you hold a spare
key, entry should only be with the express consent of the tenant or in the case of a genuine emergency.
Forced entry should only be considered:

e fitis an emergency event such as a fire

* inthe event of problems with gas, electrics or escape of water that pose real risk of injury or significant
damage to the property or adjoining properties; or

* inthe event that the tenant is unavailable or does not respond and you have genuine reason to believe
the property has been abandoned.



4.3.8 Harassment and unlawful eviction

Tenants are entitled to quiet and peaceable enjoyment of the property. You must not interfere with this right
except with the tenants’ agreement or in the event of an emergency. Locking the tenant out of the property,
cutting off services or otherwise interfering with the tenants’ right to quiet and peaceable enjoyment is an
offence.

4.3.9 Insurance

The insurance obligations of the parties should be set out in the tenancy agreement. The tenant should be
made aware of their responsibilities and the scope and limitations in respect of any insurance held by the
landlord in respect of the property.

Insurers should be notified of claims or potential claims at the earliest opportunity. Claim settlements should
be treated as belonging to the persons suffering damage. Unless otherwise agreed, you should not deduct
arrears or other payments due when passing them on to the claimant.

Any arrangements regarding payment of any excess should be clearly set out in the tenancy agreement.

Agents dealing with insurance issues should be mindful of the insurance regulations on regulated activities.
See the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) website (www.fca.org.uk) for further guidance. When a claim
arises it should be processed promptly and appropriately. Agents may charge for this service, depending on
the terms of engagement.



5 Terminating a tenancy

5.1 Bringing a tenancy to an end

On giving or receiving notice to bring a tenancy to an end, you should provide a tenant with general written
guidance as to what steps need to be taken to prepare the property for the final checkout, handover of
keys and other matters. You should draw the tenant’s attention to any specific clauses or obligations within
the tenancy agreement relating in particular to proposed deductions from the tenancy deposit but also, for
example, to specified standards of cleaning etc.

If you serve a notice on a tenant to terminate a tenancy you must ensure that the deposit has been protected
and that the tenant has, at the appropriate time, been given the correct prescribed information relating to the
protection of their deposit. The property must also have a valid EPC and CP12 Gas Safety Certificate. There

should be a system in place to monitor the response from a tenant regarding the vacation of a property when
notice has been served.

For agents only

You should inform a client landlord, promptly and in writing, of the receipt of a lawful notice from a tenant.

Where a tenant does not vacate a property on the due date, you should make reasonable efforts to ascertain
the tenant’s intentions as soon as practicable and before instigating possession proceedings through the
courts.

For agents only

Where a tenant does not vacate a property on the due date, you should advise the client landlord promptly
and co-operate fully and promptly with legal advisers acting for, or appointed on behalf of, client landlords.

Where appropriate, you must take steps to notify any legal protection or expenses insurer.

All keys and fobs relating to the tenanted property should be received or collected on the day the tenancy
terminates.

5.2 Once the property has been vacated

The vacated property should be inspected within 24 hours of vacation, or on the next working day, to
establish whether it has been returned to the landlord in the condition specified in the tenancy agreement.
The tenant should be given a reasonable opportunity to attend the inventory checkout.

The local authority and utility companies should be notified of the change in, or discontinuance of,
occupation.

In obtaining estimates for restoring the property and contents, all actions should be duly recorded. You must
make proper allowance for fair wear and tear and no claim can be made for any deterioration which is fairly
attributable to fair wear and tear. You should seek guidance from the relevant tenancy deposit scheme.

The tenant’s deposit should not be refunded until the final inspection has taken place and you are satisfied
that the deposit should be refunded. Deposit sums not in dispute should be refunded to the tenant within a
reasonable time (in accordance with the scheme rules) from the end of the tenancy. Any balance remaining
should be refunded within a reasonable time (in accordance with the scheme rules) after reaching agreement
between the parties of what is to be refunded or after the decision of the tenancy deposit scheme adjudicator.

The grounds for any retention from the deposit must be provided to the former tenant in writing, if requested,
and in compliance with tenancy deposit legislation and the requirements of the relevant tenancy deposit
protection scheme.

You should refer disputes about the return of tenancy deposits to the relevant tenancy deposit protection
scheme.



6 Tenancy renewals and changes

If necessary, you should seek legal advice in connection with company tenancies, as the legal requirements
will differ from lettings to individuals.

You must be clear and transparent about all fees payable and potentially payable to you by a tenant in all and
any circumstances prior to that tenant making a transactional decision to enter into a contractual relationship
with you in the first place, i.e. before the tenancy is entered into.




7 Additional responsibilities for the management of multi-let
buildings and common parts

71 Health and safety

Note: In sections 7.1.1-7.1.6 the terms ‘responsible person’ and ‘you’ do not refer to the person
responsible for the maintenance and management of the building but are defined by the Health and Safety
at Work etc. Act 1974 as being the person responsible for all health and safety matters in regard to the
building.

7.1.1 Health and safety risk assessment and policy

Health and safety risk assessments and policies vary significantly in scope and proportionality depending on
the building and individual circumstances. While legal responsibilities and liabilities are absolute, the required
actions to ensure compliance should be proportionate to the individual circumstance.

A competent ‘responsible person’ as defined by the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 must be
appointed and that person must be clear as to their responsibilities and liabilities.

A health and safety risk assessment of any common parts must be carried out by a suitably competent
person.

The risk assessment and the subsequent health and safety policy must be proportionate in scope to the
property and circumstances. You must continually ensure the scope of the risk assessment has not changed;
for example, if the building is let to individuals who are unusually vulnerable or have special needs. The health
and safety policy must address lone worker safety.

All recommendations of the risk assessment and policy must be carried out, with appropriate records kept
safely to demonstrate compliance.

You should put a monitoring process in place to ensure the requirements of the risk assessment and policy
are being met at all times and that suitable training is provided to individuals to ensure and demonstrate that
they are competent to carry out their duties to satisfy the requirements of the assessment.

The risk assessment and policy must be reviewed at the appropriate intervals as recommended by the risk
assessment author.

You must put in place a system of contractor control to ensure that all hazards and requirements identified in
the risk assessment and policy are drawn to the attention of any party that needs to know that information;
for example, staff or contractors working at the building. You must instigate an appropriate system of ensuring
contractor compliance with the building’s health and safety risk assessment and policy.

Where appropriate you must ensure that contractors carry out their own risk assessments and maintain their
own health and safety policies.

7.1.2 Risks specific to common area management

Risk assessments must be considered for:

e the operation of mixed use areas, including waste disposal and car parking

e car park and personnel gates, both in terms of operational safety and means of escape in the event of fire
e gym, pool, leisure and common rooms

e cycle parking or bike stands; and
e ifts including maintenance and operation in the event of fire.

7.1.3 Asbestos

An asbestos risk assessment must be carried out to common parts. You should take reasonable measures
to identify the presence and assess the risk of asbestos to let areas. If appropriate, depending on



circumstances such as the age and history of the building, an asbestos survey should be carried out with all
recommendations adhered to. You must draw the attention of occupiers, contractors and others at potential
risk to the presence of any asbestos and take all necessary measures to ensure the risk is managed safely.

7.1.4 Fire safety
You must carry out a fire risk assessment and implement all recommendations.

You must formulate and maintain a method of monitoring that all recommendations are continually adhered
to, for example maintaining clear escape routes and signage. You must be vigilant to any change in on-site
conditions that may require a re-assessment of risk, for example the loss of an assembly area.

7.1.5 Water safety

You should clearly understand the ownership and maintenance responsibilities of the water supply(ies) to the
building. Where you are responsible for the maintenance of the supply, you must instigate a programme of
maintenance in accordance with your health and safety risk assessment to ensure the supply is clean and fit
for its intended purpose. A risk assessment for the control of legionella bacteria must be carried out and all
recommendations should be adhered to.

7.1.6 Crisis management

You should develop an appropriate policy and procedure for dealing with emergencies and crisis
management. In addition to procedures to follow in the event of an emergency, this should include:

e record keeping

* reporting lines

® insurers’ details

e press and communication procedures; and
e counselling.

7.2 Disposal of waste and recycling
You should provide adequate means of storage of waste so as to prevent a risk to health and hygiene.

You should, as required by the local authority or waste removal contractor, provide adequate means of
separation of waste by type, including for recycling, and provide clear signage and guidance for tenants on
the requirements for waste separation as appropriate.

7.3 Staff management

You should notify tenants of any change in staff who are the tenants’ main point of contact.

7.4 Noise

You should seek to reduce disturbance to residents from noise; for example, noisy mechanical and electrical
installations or hard surface floors in inappropriate locations.

You should ensure that the right to quiet and peaceable enjoyment of the accommodation is incorporated
into the tenancy agreement and that the agreement imposes that obligation on tenants for the benefit of other
residents.

7.5 Mixed tenure schemes

Where properties include affordable or social housing alongside private housing, arrangements should
be established with the registered provider (of the social housing) for exchange of information and your
attendance at joint management meetings.



7.6 Disputes

You should put in place policies and procedures for handling disputes and complaints of nuisance between
occupiers. These procedures should be made available, their existence made known and the response times
for their various stages included. All parties should be dealt with fairly.

Disputes should be resolved by informal means where possible before turning to any formal provision in the
tenancy agreement. Where not provided for in the tenancy agreement, alternative dispute resolution methods
may be suggested, rather than litigation, as a means of settling particular disputes.

7.7  Security

You should provide adequate security measures, procedures and systems to common parts and living spaces
for the protection of residents, visitors and possessions.

You should make reasonable efforts by way of referencing and vetting procedures to ensure that staff and
workers employed in a building are fit and proper persons appropriate to their role and level of responsibility
and supervision.

You should provide appropriate means of holding mail and deliveries until collected by the tenant.



Appendix A: Glossary of terms

This glossary gives definitions of key terms used in the Code.













Appendix B: Landlord’s checklist

The following checklist is provided for inexperienced landlords to give a summary of some of the key aspects
of this Code that they should follow. However, it is important that you read the whole Code to be familiar with
all its suggested best practice and legal requirements.

1

10
11

12

13

14

15

Only use an agent that is accredited. This will provide valuable protections to you and your tenants (see
section 2.1).

Be clear about all fees that tenants will have to pay you and your agents, and be proactive in making
tenants aware of these in advance of them making a decision to take or renew a tenancy (see section 2.2.6
and section 2.2.7).

You, or your agent, will have to provide tenants with various documents at different stages of letting the
property. This must include an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) and, where gas is provided at the
property, a current Gas Safety Certificate (see section 2.2.9).

Make sure you advertise your property honestly and in accordance with the law. Do not mislead
prospective tenants (see section 3.1).

Provide tenants with a clear written tenancy agreement, agree an inventory, and if you are taking a
deposit make sure it is taken in accordance with the law and that relevant documents are served on time.
(see sections 3.6 to 3.8).

Provide tenants with contact details, including a telephone number they can use in case of an emergency
(see section 4.1).

Keep informed of developments in legislation affecting residential management so you keep wholly within
the law (see section 4.1).

Be clear who is responsible for various bills and co-operate with your tenant to ensure they are only
getting charged for their usage of the property (see section 4.3.1).

It is your responsibility to keep the property you rent out safe and in good repair. Be proactive in
maintaining your property. You or your agent should let your tenant know how they can report repairs and
should respond promptly and prioritise according to urgency (see section 4.3.4).

Houses in Multiple Occupation may require additional services/standards (see section 4.3.6).

You must provide working smoke and carbon monoxide alarms, a mandatory requirement from 1
October 2015. You should test electrical wiring at least every 10 years. You must test the electrical wiring
every five years for certain Houses in Multiple Occupation, You must arrange an annual gas safety check
(CP12) where gas is present (see section 4.3.6).

You cannot enter your tenant’s home unless invited or with prior permission. You should give at least 24
hours’ notice. Be specific in the tenancy agreement about what will happen in an emergency if you need
access (see section 4.3.7).

Provide your tenant with clear instructions on what they should do at the end of a tenancy. Inspect the
property within a day if possible. Make sure any deposit is released in accordance with the rules of the
tenancy deposit scheme it is held under (see sections 5.1 to 5.2).

Monitor health and safety according to occupation. If one of your tenants is a vulnerable member of
society, for example they are elderly or very young, it may mean you have to consider additional health
and safety requirements (see section 7.1).

Provide tenants with a clear means of making complaints, including any dispute resolution schemes or
mechanisms you are a member of. Ensure tenants are aware of the standards of behaviour they should
follow and how they will be dealt with if they fail to meet such standards (see section 7.6).




Appendix C: Legislation referred to in this Code

Business Protection from Misleading Marketing Regulations 2008
Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008
Consumer Rights Act 2015

Deregulation Act 2015

Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998

Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

Housing Act 1988

Housing Act 2004

Immigration Act 2014

Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982

The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (England) Regulations 2015 (subject to Parliamentary approval)
Unfair Contract Terms Act 1977



Oxford City Landlord Accreditation Scheme

www.oxford.gov.uk

2

PN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

ACCREDITED PROPERTY - SELF-CERTIFICATION INSPECTION CHECKLIST

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

1. Current Gas Safety Certificate.
(PLEASE ENCLOSE A COPY WITH THIS FORM)

Y/N*

2. Inspection report from a competent electrician who is a member of a nationally recognised

body (e.g. NICEIC)
(PLEASE ENCLOSE A COPY WITH THIS FORM)

3. General Requirements.

(a) Isthe property in a reasonable state of repair and free from avoidable hazards?

(b) Do you have emergency repair arrangements? (displayed in prominent place)

4. Fire Safety

(a) Does the property have adequate means of escape and fire precautions?
(as per the scheme requirements)

(b) Do the furnishings comply with Fire Safety Standards?

5. General Standard of Management:
Do the management arrangements for the property comply with the
code of management practice? (see code for details)

6. Thermal Comfort & Domestic Energy Performance Certificates
(a) Does the property have an adequate heating system and

effective thermal insulation? (as per the scheme requirements)
(b) (PLEASE ENCLOSE A COPY WITH THIS FORM)

7. Security
Is the property secure? (as per the scheme requirements)

8. HMOs
Is the property an HMO?
If so, does the property comply with the relevant requirements for amenities?
Will the HMO need to be licensed?
Does the property have an existing HMO licence

*Y /N - Circle as appropriate

Y/N

Y/N
Y/N

Y/N
Y /N

Y/N
Y/N

Y /N
Y/N
Y /N
Y /N

| hereby confirm that | carried out an inspection of the above property on ............cccocoiiiiiiiiiiinnes

and that it meets the standards set for accreditation.

Please printname ..o,
(If signing on behalf of a company, please state in which capacity you are signing)

Send all forms to:

Oxford City Council
Environmental Development
Ramsay House

10 St Ebbes Street

Oxford OX1 1PT

348



www.oxford.gov.uk

DECLARATION OF BEING A "FIT AND PROPER" PERSON

1. | declare that | am a fit and proper person to be accredited. I, nor any
person associated or formerly associated with me, have any unspent
convictions that are relevant to my application, in particular:

a.

b.

Any offence involving fraud or other dishonesty, or violence or drugs, or
any offence listed in Schedule 3 to the Sexual Offences Act 2003
Undertaken any unlawful discrimination on grounds of sex, colour,
race, ethnic or national origins or disability in, or in connection with, the
carrying on of any business;

Contravened any provision of the law relating to housing or of landlord
and tenant law; or

Been found to have acted otherwise than in accordance with any
applicable code of practice approved under section 233.

2. Additionally in the last five years, neither | nor any person associated or
formerly associated with me have:

a.

b.

Been in control of a property subject to a Control Order under section
379 of the Housing Act 1985.

Been refused a licence, had a licence removed, or breached conditions
of a licence for any property in relation to a mandatory, additional or
selective licensing scheme under the Housing Act 2004.

Been in control of any property that has been subject to an Interim or
Final Management Order or a Special Interim Order under the Housing
Act 2004.

Been in control of any property on which a Local Authority has carried
out works in default.

Been in control of any property where you have been found guilty of a
criminal offence or been the subject of legal proceedings commenced
by a Local Authority or other Regulatory Body (such as breaches of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990, Planning Control, Compulsory
Purchase or Fire Safety Requirements).

Been convicted of any charges relating to harassment or illegal
eviction.

Signed on behalf of the applicant by the Chief Executive, Principal, Partner or
Director

Signature......cooeviie i, Date

Printname.........cooovvii e

Position in the Company/Organisation...........cc.coveiiiiiiie i e

349

%3

AN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 13

www.oxford.gov.uk

To: City Executive Board
Date: 150ctober 2015
Report of: Executive Director Regeneration and Housing

Title of Report: Oxpens Delivery Strategy

Summary and Recommendations

Purpose of report: To provide an update and seek approval for an
amendment to the OxpensDelivery Strategy and budgetary adjustments.

Key decision Yes

Executive lead members:

Clir Bob Price, Board Member forCorporate Strategy and Economic
Development;

Clir Ed Turner, Board Member for Finance, Asset Management and Public
Health;

Councillor Alex Hollingsworth Board Member for Planning & Regulatory.

Policy Framework: Corporate Plan- vibrant & sustainable economy; Core
Strategy 2010; West End Area Action Plan 2008; Regeneration Framework
2010; Oxpens SPD 2013.

Recommendations: That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Note the contents of this report;

2. Delegate to the Executive Director Regeneration and Housing authority to
agree terms for the acquisition of land at Oxpens(in consultation with the
Chief Executive, s151 Officerand Monitoring Officer) subject to Council
agreeing the recommendation set out at number 4 below;

3. Approvethe creation of a wholly owned investment vehicle and the
commencement of a competitive exercise to secure a joint venture partner
to become a Member of such a vehicle; and

4. Recommend Council to resolve toapprove the establishment of a capital
budget of £8.4m to progress the project through the next stages.

351

%3

(e )

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL



Appendices
Appendix 1 Risk Register
Appendix 2 Confidential Appendix

Background

1.

In April 2015, CEB agreed to establish an investment vehicle with a private
sector partner, Exemplar Properties Ltd, and to an agreement with the
Department for Transport/Cabinet Office (DfT/CO) for the acquisition of the
railway lands. The background to the project and fuller details are as set
out in the previous CEB paper and as such are not repeated here.

The partner withdrew at late stage as it no longer wished to proceed on
the agreed basis. This report sets out the proposed revised arrangements
and budgetary implications.

Priority

3. The Oxpens development is a strategic priority in the Oxford City Deal and

the Oxfordshire Strategic Economic Plan and unlocks major private sector

investment and jobs as well as delivering significant wider benefits,

including:

e essential business space and accommodation for new and growing
enterprises and services which require links to the universities and
service economy

¢ city centre regeneration linked to major investment committed at the
railway station and Westgate (£500m redevelopment starting in 2015)

e transport improvements and flooding infrastructure which are essential
to enable the city’s economy to grow

e providing a platform for wider regeneration including employment areas
near the station and Osney Mead, and supporting redevelopment
around Frideswide Square

e providing new market and affordable housing (over 300 homes), and
visitor accommodation.

Timing & Way Forward

4. Central Government is still to confirm how it now wishes to handle the

disposal of the railway lands at Oxpens. It is possible that the Government
(through London and Continental Railways who are the owners of the
site)will offer the site for sale to the previous biddersbased on an
unconditional contract and that this transfer willtake place swiftly.If this
were to be the case, the Council would also be invited to make a bid and it
is therefore important that it is in a position to move quickly to seek to
acquire the site if this takes place.

352



5. The Council proposes to seek to acquire the railway lands in order
tocombine the site with its adjoining holdings and promote mixed-use
development. The Council would then seek a private sector partner to
undertake a comprehensive scheme of development. The partnership
structure would adopt the same principles as the Barton LLP with
Grosvenor. A number of leadingdevelopers have already expressed strong
interest in working with the Council on this basis.

6. If the railway land can be acquired the Council intends to run a competition
for a partner and the development will proceed as planned with strategic
infrastructure being installed, planning permission sought and onward sale
of plots for development. The private sector partner would become an
equal partner with the Council and refund half the costs of acquiring the
railway lands-with the balance of the land value together with any
development uplift being returned to the Council as development takes
place. The Council’'s own land will be also transferred into the partnership
for an agreed price subject to an independent valuation.The intention is to
have a new partner in place within six months of the acquisition.

7. The Council has taken independent advice from leading property advisers
JLL who has also carried out soft market testing withmajor private sector
developers. This has demonstrated that there is significant interest in the
wider Oxpens site from developers of excellent standing, who have proven
track records in bringing forward large, complex regeneration sites,
combining housing and commercial elements.These developers also
agree that the Oxpens opportunity site should be brought forward as a
comprehensive scheme to maximise receipts and reduce delivery risk. An
equaljoint venture partnership with the Council is considered to be a
positive proposition.

Delivery and Development Programme

8. ltis anticipated that infrastructure development could start on site in 2017
with the support of secured Local Growth Fund (LGF) funds already
allocated.

Legal and Procurement Issues

9. Powers: The City Council is entering into the project for the purposes of
regeneration and economic growth exercising the General Power of

Competence in Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011.

10. Procurement: PinsentMasons solicitors haveprovided procurement advice
to the Council. Selection of a partner will require a form of competition.

Financial Issues& Due Diligence

11. TheCapital Programme Budget for 2015/16 that was agreed at full Council
on 18 February 2015 included £2.0m for investment at Oxpens. The

353



revised approach will require budgetary provision to be made for a variable
investment with a maximum exposure of £8.4m.

12. Timeframes for receipts: Returns will be linked to sales of land plots. The

revised programme currently anticipates first sales in 2018. This will be
subject to a detailed business plan that will be agreed between partners
and reported back to CEB.

13. Further details are provided in Appendix 2.

14.Legal, Property and Technical Fees: The CEB and Council Reports of 3

July 2014 and 14 July 2014 respectively identified a total estimated cost of
£370k, of which an initial budget of £320k was established to progress the
first stages, wholly funded from the New Growth Points grant. The CEB
report of 28 April 2015 confirmed that the initial budget of £320k was
adequate but that any changes in the original planned delivery route would
require a review of the cost of fees. Abortive cost and rework means that
the revised estimate of fee expenditure reverts to the full original estimate
of £370K. A budget change will be required accordingly.

Oxpens Delivery Strategy legal, property, technical fees

Total Current Spend/Committed | Approved | Additional

Estimated | Estimate | to date Budget Budget
(NGP) Regq.

370k 370k 114k 320k 50K

15. The funding of the additional £6.4 million of capital expenditure will be

through prudential borrowing. There is an option to provide internal funds
to finance the deal which will result in a loss of investment interest at an
average rate of around 1.5%of up to approximately £120k per annum
which would need to be adjusted in the Council’'s Medium Term Financial
Plan.The return on the investment is shown in the Confidential Appendix 2
but officers are confident in recommending the transaction at this level; it
would be above the returns expected from other options for use of the
resources such as indirect property funds.

16. The Council will need to take further advice onthe taxation aspects of this

type of arrangement and will seek to ensure that the arrangements do not
put pressure on the Council’'s VAT partial exemption position. No issues
around this are envisaged at this time but more detailed analysis will be
required as the scheme develops.

17.An authority is required to make a “prudent provision” in respect of its

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) charge, and to arrange for its debt
liability to be repaid over a similar period to that which the asset
associated with the capital expenditure provides benefits such that the
majority of new capital expenditure “financed by borrowing” is subject to a
charge which reflects its estimated useful life. The guidance enables local
circumstances and discretion to taken into account.

354



18.1n the case of the investment proposed the Head of Financial Services
considers that there is no requirement to make an MRP over the term of the
investment because the Council would not itself be developing the site, rather
this would be undertaken by a private developer. At this point a capital receipt
would be used to repay the debt liability at the end of the investment period.
This approach needs to be agreed with the Council’s auditors.

19. Should the value of the capital investment reduce and not be sufficient to
repay the entirety of the “borrowing”; an MRP charge would need to be made
to make up the shortfall.

Environmental Impact

20.Site area is on the Council’s Prioritised list under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 and an intrusive investigation will be
required as a condition of planning for any proposed change of use.
Remediation will be required to make the land suitable for residential uses.

21.The project provides the opportunity to remediate or remove the historic
landfill on the site and to improve the flood capacity of the Oxpens area

Equalities Impact

22.The Initial Assessment is that the contents of this report do not lead to any
unjustifiable differential impact on relevant groups.The project will provide
an important means to deliver new private and affordable housing and
commercial spaces in support of economic development and the creation
of new jobs.

Name and contact details of author:-

NameFionaPiercy
Service Area: Regeneration & Housing
Tel: 01865 252185 e-mail: fpiercy@oxford.qov.uk

Background Papers: None

355




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 — Risk Register

Oxpens Delivery Strategy

Proximity
of Risk
(Projects/
Corporate[Gross |Current|Residual{Owne |[Date Risk|[Contract
Risk ID |Risk Objective [Risk |Risk |Risk r |Reviewed|s Only)
Category
-000-
Service Opportu
Area nity/ Risk Date
Code Risk Title Threat Description Risk Cause Consequence raised|1to 6 I P I P |
CEB-001- Investor Threat Failure to secure Differing objectives, Delays in delivery Oct 15 4 4 4 |3 |4 3 [R&H 1 mths
R&H Agreement investor partner unattractive terms (DE)
CEB-002 — |LGF Funding Threat Funding Terms not |Lack of Investor Delays in delivery whilst (Jan 15 4 4 |4 |3 |5 3 |R&H 3 mths
R&H met agreement new partner sought. (DE)
(QEB-003- Site conditions |Threat Cost increases Abnormals above that |Longer development Jan 15 5 |5 |4 4 |4 3 |R&H
EE&H arising from unduly |anticipated period, reduced returns (DE)
high abnormals
CEB-004- Market Changes |Threat Downturn impacts  |Property Market & Return on investment  {Jan 15 3 3 3 |3 I3 3 [R&H 3-5yrs
R&H on returns economic cycles reduces (DE)
CEB-005- Market Changes |Opportunit|Upturn impacts on |Property Market & Return oninvestment  (Jan 15 3 3 I3 3 I3 3 R&H 3-5yrs
R&H \% returns economic cycles increases (DE)
CEB-006- Land assembly |Threat Unable to agree Unrealisitic Delays & exercise of CPO{Jan 15 4 14 |4 3 |4 3 [R&H 1mth-3
R&H terms with adjacent |expectations powers incurs additional (DE) years
landowners cost
Accept,
Contingency,
Transfer,
Action |Reduce or Milestone 6Action |Date
Risk ID |Risk Title Owner [Avoid Details of Action Key Milestone Delivery Date IComplete |Reviewed
Investor Accept & aim to |Negotiate and agree, early testing, Soft market testing
001 agreement R&H (FP) |reduce alternative approach Agree draft heads of terms | Dec 15 10%




Accept & aim to

002 LGF Funding R&H FP  |reduce Complete investor agreement. Engrossed documents March/April 16 0%
Accept & aim to Complete desktop studies.
003 Site Conditions R&H reduce Site investigations. Desktop research. [Complete September 2014 [100%
Accept & aim to Complete intrusive
003 Site Conditions LLP reduce Site investigations. detailed investigations Spring 2016 0%
Defined level of investment capped
004 Market downturn R&H (FP) |Accept relative to baseline land value. JLL RLV appraisal Dec 2014 100%
Finance MRP to be made should value of land
004 Market downturn (NK) Accept drop below investment value Annual Monitoring Oct 2015 0%
Accept & aim to
006 Land Assembly R&H (FP) |reduce In principle agreement on railway land. |Finalise acquisition. Dec 2015 0%
0 Accept & aim to |Complete negotiations with relevant
06 Land Assembly R&H (FP) |reduce landowners. Finalise position. Spring 2016 50%




Agenda Iltem 15

MINUTES OF THE CITY EXECUTIVE BOARD z

PN

OXFORD
CITY
COUNCIL

Thursday 10 September 2015

www.oxford.gov.uk

COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Price (Leader), Turner (Deputy
Leader), Brown, Hollingsworth, Rowley, Simm and Sinclair.

OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Jean Fooks, Councillor Craig
Simmons and Councillor Louise Upton

OFFICERS PRESENT: Peter Sloman (Chief Executive), Tim Sadler (Executive
Director Community Services), Nigel Kennedy (Head of Financial Services),
Lindsay Cane (Law and Governance), lan Brooke (Head of Community
Services), Matthew Bates (City Development), Lyndsey Beveridge (Senior
Planner), Geoff Corps (Cleaner Greener Services Manager), Paul Wilding
(Benefit Operations Manager) and Catherine Phythian (Committee Services
Officer)

64. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Clir Kennedy and Clir Tanner.

65. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

66. PUBLIC QUESTIONS

The City Executive Board noted the following public questions and the written
officer responses (as published) on agenda item 7. Adoption of the Leisure &
Wellbeing Strategy:

e Mr Nigel Gibson
e Mr Artwell

67. COUNCILLOR ADDRESSES ON NEIGHBOURHOOD ISSUES

ClIr Sinclair addressed the Board with regard to the closure of the Ampleforth
Tavern. She said that the pub had closed suddenly earlier in the year and that
some local residents (The Ampleforth Revival group) were hoping to re-open it
as a community asset. CliIr Sinclair asked whether there was any practical
support that the City Council could provide to this group, for example in drafting

359



the business case. She also suggested that there might be an opportunity to
use the premises/site for housing units.

The Board noted that the number of closures of pubs across the city was an
issue of concern. They Board agreed that the Council should provide some
practical support to the resident group and that it would be appropriate to ask
Housing Association partners to make contact as well. The Board requested that
the Head of Financial Services and Head of Housing and Property should take
this forward with the local resident group.

68. SCRUTINY COMMITTEES REPORTS

The Chair of the Scrutiny Committee submitted the following reports for
consideration by the Board:

(a) Leisure & Wellbeing Strategy 2015-2020

This report (previously circulated, now appended) was considered as part of the

discussion of agenda item 7: Adoption of the Leisure & Wellbeing Strategy 2015-
2020 (minute 70).

(b) Oxford Growth Strategy

This report (previously circulated, now appended) was considered as part of the
discussion of agenda item 9: Oxford Growth Strategy (minute 72).

(c) Report of the Scrutiny Finance Panel - Municipal Bonds

This report (previously circulated, now appended) was considered as part of the
discussion of agenda item 12: Treasury Management Annual Report 2014-2015
(minute 75).

(d) Report of the Cycling Review Group

The Scrutiny Officer submitted a report (previously circulated, now appended)
which detailed the findings and recommendations of the cross-party Cycling
Review Group, and the City Executive Board responses to those
recommendations.

ClIr Upton, Chair of the Cycling Review Group presented the report. She said

that the first meeting of the Cycling Forum had taken place on 9 September 2015
and that this promised to be fertile ground for further progress and initiatives.

360



She urged the Board to support the case for a dedicated “cycling officer” either
as a City Council post or through some joint funded arrangement with either the
County Council, the NHS and the universities. In discussion the Board
concluded that it would be a better use of limited resources to support and
develop the role of the Cycling Forum and joint working with other organisations.

The Board noted that there had been no response from the County Council with
regard to the Council motion on cyling which was passed at the meeting on 14
December 2014.

With reference to the Cycling Review Group recommendations the Executive
Board Member for Planning, Transport and Regulatory Services confirmed that
the Council would accept and progress Recommendation 1 on signage as a
“‘quick fix”. He said that the Board was generally supportive of the
recommendations and that where there was “agreement in part” this was
because there was further work needed on the details and costings of the
recommendation before it could be accepted. Similarly it was important to focus
the limited resources on those recommendations where the Council had most
control and the greatest chance of success.

The Board commended the Scrutiny Cycling Review Group on an excellent
piece of review work and thorough report.

The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. Agree the following recommendations from the Cycling Review Group:
Recommendations 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 9.

2. Agree in part the following recommendations from the Cycling Review
Group: Recommendations 1, 2 and 8.

(e) Report of the Waste Water Flooding Panel

The Scrutiny Officer submitted a report (previously circulated, now appended)
which detailed the outcomes of the Waste Water Flooding Panel's recent
engagement with Thames Water Utilities on the progress of the Oxford
Catchement Study.

Clir Simmons, Chair of Scrutiny Committee presented the report, highlighting the
fact that although this was a relatively short report it was the product of a
significant amount of underlying discussions and interactions between the
Council and Thames Water Utilities. He said that he was confident that as a
result of the work of the Scrutiny Panel the Council was now receiving a better
level of service from Thames Water Utilities. The Board endorsed this view.
The Board supported the suggestion that the next meeting with Thames Water
Utilities should be an all member seminar rather than a meeting with the Scrutiny
Panel.

361



The City Executive Board resolved to AGREE the Scrutiny Committee
recommendation:

1. That the City Council continues to engage with Thames Water Utilities
(TWU) at a senior level through the Oxford Area Flood Partnership and
other appropriate channels. This should include early engagement in
relation to future development proposals that affect TWU.

69. COUNCILLOR ADDRESSES ON ANY ITEM FOR DECISION ON THE
BOARD'S AGENDA

Clir Fooks addressed the Board with regard to agenda item 9: Oxford Growth
Strategy and agenda item 13: Integrated Performance Report Quarter 1 2015-
16.

Her comments were addressed during the discussion of those items (Minutes 72
and 76).

70. ADOPTION OF LEISURE & WELLBEING STRATEGY 2015 - 2020

The Head of Community Services submitted a report (previously circulated, now
appended) which presented the Leisure & Wellbeing Strategy 2015-2020 that
had been updated to reflect responses from public consultation.

Clir Rowley, Executive Board Member for Leisure, Parks and Sports presented
the report and tabled the City Executive Board responses to the Scrutiny
Committee recommendations (appended).

Clir Simmons, Chair of Scrutiny Committee, said that the Scrutiny Committee
had concluded that the overall leisure offer in the City was very good and he was
pleased to note that the recommendations had been accepted in whole or in
part.

The Head of Community Services undertook to provide the Board with an update
on progress in developing and improving the leisure elements of the Council’'s
social media apps.

In discussion the Board noted that although the Council did not provide any
specific leisure activities for disabled residents on the autistic spectrum, the “low
impact” activities such as pilates and outdoor activities were regarded as being
suitable. These were complemented by activities provided by organisations like
the Pegasus Theatre and the South Oxfordshire Adventure Playground. The
Head of Community Services said that this was a matter that could be kept
under review. The Board was pleased to note the important role of volunteers in
providing the City’s leisure service.

362



The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. Approve the Leisure & Wellbeing Strategy, 2015-2020.

71. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR DISPOSAL OF WASTE FOR
RECYCLING

The Head of Direct Services submitted a report (previously circulated, now
appended) which detailed the procurement process for the disposal of City
collected recyclate and requested that the Director of Community Services be
given delegated authority to award contracts to a supplier or suppliers having
completed the open procedure of tender.

The Director of Community Services and Deputy Head of Direct Services
presented the report. They said that the Council faced substantial pressure on
the waste collection service due to the dramatic fall in market prices for
recyclate. They explained that this was linked directly to global oil prices. The
Board noted that this would be a complicated procurement process but that the
intention was to retain maximum flexibility in order to respond to changing
market conditions going forward.

The Board agreed that recommendation 2 should be approved as drafted but
added the caveat that if there were any complications in the procurement
process the Director of Community Services should bring the matter before the
Board.

The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. Grant project approval in regard to the project for the disposal of recycled
materials, as described in this report;

2. Delegate authority to the Director of Community Services, after consultation
with the Council’'s s151 and Monitoring Officers, to award the contract or
contracts to the supplier or suppliers selected following completion of the
EU-compliant open tender process described in this report, for the disposal
of the City’s recyclate.

72. OXFORD GROWTH STRATEGY

The Head of Planning and Regulatory Services submitted a report (previously
circulated, now appended) which detailed the progress of the Oxford Growth
Strategy and identified future financial pressures which may arise as a
consequence of it.

Clir Hollingsworth, Executive Board Member for Planning, Transport and
Regulatory Services presented the report and tabled the City Executive Board
responses to the Scrutiny Committee recommendations (appended). In summary
he said that the aim of the Growth Strategy was to promote and deliver
sustainable urban extensions to Oxford, by way of a Green Belt review in order

363



to meet the huge housing need within the City. Fundamental to this was the
success of the City Council’s joint working with the other Oxfordshire authorities
and stakeholders.

In discussion the Board noted the importance of ensuring that the Growth
Strategy addressed both social/affordable and private housing need and also the
requirements of the local workforce. The Board also commented on the
challenges facing the Council in delivering the Growth Strategy.

The Board thanked officers for the clear and comprehensive report.
The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. Note the contents of this report, in particular the potential need to identify
additional resources of £310,000.

73. COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME 2016-2017

The Executive Director of Organisational Development and Corporate Services
submitted a report (previously circulated, now appended) which detailed
recommendations for the operation of the Council's Council Tax Reduction
Scheme in 2016-2017.

Councillor Brown, Executive Board Member for Customer Services and
Corporate Services presented the report.

In response to questions from the Board regarding future cost projections the
Revenue and Benefits Programme Manager said that any future increase in
expenditure under the scheme would be directly proportional to the reduction in
overall grant funding. The Head of Financial Services advised the Board that it
would be prudent to assume that the Revenue Support Grant could reduce to
zero by 2017-18 and that this would have a significant impact on the future cost
of the scheme.

The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. Approve the existing Council Tax Reduction Scheme for use in 2016-
2017.

74. AWARD OF INTERNAL AUDIT CONTRACT

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report (previously circulated, now

appended) which requested authorisation to award a contract to deliver the

Council’s Internal Audit service.

Councillor Turner, Board Member for Finance, Corporate Asset Management
and Public Health presented the report.

364



The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. Approve the award of the Internal Audit Service contract to BDO LLP for a
period of 3 and a half years initially with the possibility of an extension for up
to 2 years.

75. TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2014-2015

The Head of Financial Services submitted a report (previously circulated, now
appended) which detailed the Council’'s treasury management activity and
performance for 2014-2015 and recommended some changes to the Treasury
Management Strategy for 2015-16.

Councillor Turner, Board Member for Finance, Corporate Asset Management
and Public Health presented the report.

In discussion of this agenda item the Board also considered the report of the
Scrutiny Finance Panel on Municipal Bonds (agenda item 5c refers) and the City
Executive Board responses to the Scrutiny recommendations.

The Board welcomed the establishment of the Municipal Bonds Agency (MBA)
as an alternative source of financing, whilst noting that the City Council was
unlikely to need to use its services in the immediate future. The Section 151
Officer said that he and the Council’s financial advisers had some reservations
about the detail and robustness of the MBA service offering and preferential
investment rates. The Board Member said that he would bring an update report
to the City Executive Board once these points had been clarified. The Board
noted that the final decision on any potential future investment would be a matter
for the Section 151 Officer in consultation with the Portfolio Holder.

The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. Note the Treasury Management Annual Report; and

2. Recommend Council to resolve to approve the Revised MRP Policy as
set out in Appendix 1 and approve the amendment to the Non-Specified
Investments list attached at Appendix 2 of the report.

76. INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REPORT QUARTER 1 2015/16

The Head of Financial Services and the Head of Business Improvement
submitted a report (previously circulated, now appended) which detailed the
Council’'s projected outturn for finance and performance and the risks faced at
the end of Quarter 1, 30 June 2015.

Councillor Turner, Board Member for Finance, Corporate Asset Management
and Public Health presented the report. He said that the overall position was
satisfactory but drew attention to Recommendation 5 which was in response to
the Chancellors July Budget Statement proposals which would significant

365



ramifications for the Council's Medium Term Financial Plan and the Housing
Revenue Account. He said that the Council needed to be cautious at this stage
and that it was hoped that there would be greater certainty about the situation at
the time of the budget consultation.

The Board noted that the Scrutiny Finance Panel would be meeting to scrutinise
the budget proposals and agreed that this should include the proposed
deferment of some capital projects.

The Head of Financial Services undertook to provide a written response to Clir
Fooks’ query regarding the % estimated savings that relate to the total budget.

The Leader of the Council expressed concern about the following Financial
Services performance indicators:

¢ % of invoices paid on time — currently 85.2% of invoices paid on time against
a target of 98%;

e Time to process new benefit claims — currently at 15.66 days against a target
of 14 days.

He acknowledged the hard work of the Financial Services staff but stressed that
these were performance indicators for two very important Council functions
which had a direct impact on residents and businesses.

The City Executive Board resolved to:

1.  Note the projected General Fund outturn of £0.385 million which will be
funded from corporate contingencies, the break-even position on the
Housing Revenue Account and projected Capital underspend and slippage
of £0.921 million

2. Note the performance and associated risk positions as set out in
paragraphs 11-15;

3. Approve a £0.300 million virement from the corporate policy contingency
to the Culture service;

4. Recommend to Council to resolve that additional budget of £115,289 for
parks works be included in the Capital Programme to be financed from
external grant funding; and

5. Approve the recommendation to apply a temporary moratorium on General
Fund and HRA capital expenditure in accordance with paragraphs 14 and
15.

ClIr Turner left the meeting at the end of this item.

77. LOAN FACILITY TO LOW CARBON HUB

The Head of Direct Services submitted a report (previously circulated, now
appended) which detailed the first draw down and repayment of the Council’s
loan to the Low Carbon Hub agreed by the City Executive Board at its meeting
on the 11 June 2014 and recommended subsequent drawdowns.

366



The Executive Director, Community Services reminded the Board that he was a
Non-Executive Board Member of the Low Carbon Hub.

The Head of Financial Services presented the report, highlighting the work of the
Low Carbon Hub on projects which had delivered £500k benefit to the residents
of Oxford as detailed in paragraph 8 of the report.

The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. Note the success of the first draw down and repayment of the 2014 loan
facility, and approves a further draw down from the loan facility as follows:
a) 800k secured against solar panel equipment (as in the previous
tranche)
b) 823k secured against the Hub’s income stream from current projects
c) that such further draw down be on a 12 month repayment timescale at
an interest rate of 5%, and
2. Delegate authority to the Council’s Section 151 Officer, in consultation
with the Monitoring Officer, to enter into a Supplemental Agreement with
the Low Carbon Hub, reflecting the arrangements for the further draw down
from the loan facility.

78. BMW DEVELOPMENT AND HORSPATH SPORTS PARK

The Head of Community Services submitted a report (previously circulated, now
appended) which detailed proposals to agree a contract with BMW which would
transfer their sports facilities to a new site enabling future development of their
factory.

The Executive Board Member for Leisure, Parks and Sport presented the report,
noting that the proposals related to outdoor facilities only and did not concern the
sports and social club facilities.

The Board noted that this would be a complex and challenging project to deliver.
The City Executive Board resolved to:

1. grant project approval to facilitate the transfer of the existing sports facilities
on land owned by BMW at its Horspath Road, Cowley site (“the BMW Site”)
to adjacent land held by the Council (“the Council Land”);

2. agree to the termination of the Council’s current use of the Council Land, on
the basis that it is to be used for the purpose of re-providing the sports and
leisure facilities currently on the BMW Site.

3. grant delegated authority to the Executive Director, Community Services, in
consultation with the Council’s s151 and Monitoring Officers, to

a. negotiate and agree the terms of the arrangement with BMW, on the
basis that the total payment received from BMW is not less than £4.9m
(index linked as stated in the report) and that any contract agreed with
BMW contains provisions to ensure that the Council receives an

367



appropriate share in any uplift in value of the BMW Site on any future
sale of it;

b. award, after undertaking a suitable procurement process and securing
planning consent a contract to the selected supplier or suppliers, to
undertake all construction work required for the re-provision of the sports
and leisure facilities; and

c. undertake a market testing exercise of the management of the re-sited
sports facilities on the Council Land.

4. seek to protect and re-provide, where possible, all current use by sports
clubs of the sports and leisure facilities on the BMW Site.

5. recommend Council to resolve to agree a new capital budget of £4.9
million funded by the capital receipt from the sale of the land to fund the
replacement of the facilities.

79. ITEMS RAISED BY BOARD MEMBERS

No items were raised by Board Members.

80. MINUTES

The Board resolved to APPROVE the minutes of the meeting held on 30 July
2015 as a true and accurate record.

Matters Exempt from Publication

The City Executive Board resolved to exclude the press and public from the
meeting during consideration of the items in the exempt from publication part of
the agenda in accordance with the provisions in Paragraph 21(1)(b) of the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (England) Regulations 2000 on the
grounds that their presence could involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as described in specific paragraphs of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972 and that, in all the circumstances of the case, the public
interest in maintaining the exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing
the information.

81. CONFIDENTIAL APPENDICES FOR LOW CARBON HUB

The Board received and noted the contents of the not for publication appendices to

the report at agenda item 14 (minute 77).

82. CONFIDENTIAL APPENDICES FOR BMW DEVELOPMENT AND
HORSPATH SPORTS PARK

The Board received and noted the contents of the not for publication appendices
to the report at agenda item 15 (minute 78).

368



The meeting started at 5.00 pm and ended at 6.30 pm

369



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

371



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 18

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

373



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	7 City Centre Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO)
	Appendix 1 - draft PSPO
	Appendix 2 - eConsult survey and results at 31 March 2015
	Appendix 3 - PSPO The eConsult consultation survey and results as at 31March 2015
	Appendix 4 - PSPO  Crisis Skylight email and signatory list
	Appendix 5 - PSPO consultation engagement methods
	Appendix 6 - PSPO risk assessment - October 2015
	Blank Risk Register  

	Appendix 7 - PSPO Equalities Impact Assessment - October

	8 Proposed Lease and monitoring arrangements for community centres
	Appendix 1 - lease lengths
	Appendix 3 Risk Register - updated

	9 Financial Inclusion Strategy (FIS) - Action Plan update
	Appendix 1 - Review of Initial Action Plan
	Appendix 2 – Revised Action Plan
	Appendix 3 - Risk Register 2015 - FIS
	Blank Risk Register  


	10 Changes to charging for Planning and Listed Building pre-application advice and Building Control application fees
	Appendix 1 - current and proposed schedule of fees for planning pre-app ad...
	Appendix 2 - risk register

	11 Arrangements to facilitate the fitting of solar panels on council-owned housing stock
	Risk Register - Arrangements for solar pv on social housing...
	Blank Risk Register  


	12 Review of Additional Licensing Scheme for Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in Oxford.
	Appendix 1 - Report on Consultation of Additional Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation 2015
	Appendix 2 - HMO licensing Fees and Charges January 2016
	Appendix 3 - Eligibility Criteria for HMO Licences January 2016
	Appendix 4 - Risk Register for HMO Licensing Oct CEB 2015
	Blank Risk Register  

	Appendix 5 - EIA for HMO Licensing October CEB 2015
	Appendices to Appendix 1 - Report on Consultation of HMOs
	Appendix 12 - OCLASAgentFitandProperDeclaration.pdf
	DECLARATION OF BEING A "FIT AND PROPER" PERSON



	13 Oxpens Delivery Strategy
	Appendix 1 Risk Register - Oxpens Delivery Strategy

	15 Minutes
	17 Confidential appendix: Community Centres
	18 Confidential appendix: Oxpens Delivery Strategy

